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A dynamic, growing company with a proven track record, 
Fidessa is recognised as the thought leader in the 
marketplace, with an unrivalled set of products and services 
which set the benchmark for this industry and, uniquely, serve 
both the buy-side and sell-side communities globally.

With 28 years’ experience delivering powerful, resilient, 
mission-critical systems, Fidessa develops all its products itself 
from the ground up, investing heavily in their continual 
evolution. The resulting leading-edge, truly integrated solutions 
have established Fidessa as the industry’s number one choice, 
and are used by over 85% of tier-one, global financial 
institutions.

Headquartered in London and with regional operations across 
Europe, North America, Asia, and the Middle East, Fidessa 
supports over 24,000 users across 730 clients, serving a broad 
spectrum of customers from major investment banks and asset 
managers through to specialist niche brokers and hedge funds.

Fidessa group is listed on the London Stock Exchange (symbol 
FDSA) and is a FTSE 250 company. 

About Fidessa 

Fidessa group is the leading supplier of multi-asset trading, 
portfolio analysis, decision support, compliance, market data 
and connectivity solutions for firms involved in trading the 
world’s financial markets. Fidessa’s products and services are 
built on the simple vision of making it easier to buy, sell and 
own financial assets of all types on a global basis.
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Highlights for the year ended 31st December 2009 

•	Revenue	up	26%	to	£239	million.

•	Recurring	revenue	now	accounting	for	81%	of	total	revenue.

•		Cash	of	£45	million	and	no	debt,	with	operating	cash	flow	of	£60.3	million	 

and	167%	operating	cash	conversion.

•	Special	dividend	of	40p	per	share	declared.

•	Consultancy	revenue	remaining	solid.

•		Increased	market	share	despite	difficult	markets,	illustrated	through	growth	in	 

customer numbers, users and transaction volumes, emphasising the underlying  

strategic strength of the business.

Recurring revenue (£m)

Recurring revenue Non-recurring revenue Total revenue
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 2009 2008 Change At constant currency

Revenue £238.5m £189.1m +26% +17%

Adjusted operating profit1 £36.0m £26.8m +34% +23%

Operating profit £29.9m £22.5m +33% 

Adjusted pre-tax profit1 £36.2m £27.6m +31% 

Pre-tax profit £31.0m £36.0m -14%2 

Adjusted diluted earnings per share1 68.8p 51.8p +33% 

Diluted earnings per share 58.9p 79.1p -26%2 

Annual dividend per share 30.0p 24.5p +22% 

Special dividend per share 40.0p 0p – 

1  Adjusted where relevant to remove the effect of Touchpaper gains, acquisition intangibles amortisation, patent dispute settlement, Lehman receivable write off 
and notional interest charge.

2  2008 includes the exceptional gain from the Touchpaper disposal.

Results at a glance
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Despite the challenging market conditions Fidessa has  
continued to deliver high growth for 2009 as a whole.

Overview

Despite the challenging market conditions Fidessa has continued 

to deliver high growth for 2009 as a whole. This growth has 

benefited from sterling's weakness compared to the prior year but 

even at constant currency the underlying growth rate is still strong 

across the year.

Whilst stability started to return to the market during 2009, 

conditions remained difficult for much of the year with customers 

under pressure to reduce their costs and higher levels of 

consolidation across the industry. During 2009 we have seen a 

mixture of conditions within our customer base, with some 

expanding to take advantage of market improvements whilst 

others are still finding conditions extremely challenging with 

pressure particularly acute across our buy-side customers. Overall, 

we have been able to make good progress across both existing 

accounts and new business lines, enabling our customers to take 

advantage of new opportunities that are arising whilst also 

helping them to control the costs of operating their core business. 

The strength of our business has been reflected in a number of 

key metrics including the number of users of our services and the 

transaction volumes going through our network. This strength has 

also been reflected in our cash balance which has enabled us to 

declare a special dividend of 40p, the third time we have been 

able to return cash to shareholders in this way.

Through the end of 2009 market conditions have steadily 

improved. However, we expect that the macroeconomic situation 

and the possibility of government regulation will continue to make 

2010 particularly difficult to predict. On the assumption that 

markets remain reasonably stable we believe that we can continue 

to deliver good growth for 2010 as a whole. However, the impact 

of higher levels of consolidation and business closures within our 

customer base during 2009, will inevitably have some effect on our 

growth during 2010. As a result we do not believe that the overall 

rate of growth in 2010 will be as high as that seen during 2009.

Overall, we expect that 2010 will bring more clarity around the 

future structure of the financial industry and we are confident 

that Fidessa will continue to play an important role in  

providing the solutions the industry needs. As a result, we  

expect that we will see further significant growth opportunities 

and will maintain our strategy of investment in the business  

as we develop these solutions across all the regions in which  

we operate.

Results
In	2009	strong	growth	in	revenue	has	been	achieved,	up	26%	 

to	£238.5	million	(2008:	£189.1	million).	The	growth	has	been	

assisted by sterling's weakness, especially in the early part of the 

year. At constant currencies the revenue growth was 17%. The 

global financial crisis of 2008 has resulted in some impact on the 

growth rate because of insolvencies, sector consolidation and cost 

cutting.	In	the	absence	of	these	events	the	growth	in	2009	could	

have been at least six percentage points higher. There has been 

some evidence of a slowing in the frequency of these events,  

but the time delay in them being fully reflected in revenue means 

that the impact on revenue in 2010 may be slightly greater than 

that in 2009.

Recurring	revenue	continued	to	provide	the	momentum	growing	

by	32%	to	be	81%	of	revenue	(2008:	77%).	Growth	continued	

to be strong across all regions and consultancy revenue grew by 

5%	to	£44.6	million,	representing	19%	of	total	revenue.	The	

deferred revenue in the balance sheet at the end of the year was 

£47.7	million,	an	increase	of	25%	in	the	year	and	represents	

around a fifth of 2009 revenue which can all be recognised in  

the current financial year.

Looking at the breakdown of recurring revenue across Fidessa's 

areas	of	focus,	indicative	values	for	the	year	are	that	£122	million	

(2008:	£91	million)	arose	from	sell-side	trading,	£14	million	
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Recurring	revenue	continued	to	provide	the	momentum	
growing by 32% to be 81% of revenue.

(2008:	£12	million)	from	buy-side	trading,	£37	million	 

(2008:	£27	million)	arose	from	connectivity	and	£21	million	

(2008:	£17	million)	from	market	data.

Strong	growth	in	EBITDA	(earnings	before	interest,	tax,	

depreciation and amortisation and adjusted for capitalised 

product development) and operating profit has also been 

achieved.	EBITDA	has	increased	by	41%	to	£43.5	million	 

(2008:	£30.8	million).	The	adjusted	operating	profit	was	up	34%	

to	£36.0	million	(2008:	£26.8	million).	This	represents	an	

operating margin of 15.1% for the year, up from 14.2% for 

2008. The profit growth has also been assisted by sterling being 

weaker and at constant currencies the adjusted operating profit 

growth was 23%. The adjusted operating profit has been 

measured before the amortisation of acquired intangibles and 

with the settlement of the patent dispute and Lehman Brothers 

receivable write off removed from the comparable period. The 

unadjusted	operating	profit	was	up	33%	to	£29.9	million	(2008:	

£22.5	million).	In	order	to	be	more	prudent	and	consistent,	the	

estimated lives of the complete technology and marketing related 

intangible assets arising from the LatentZero acquisition have 

been reduced and as a result the amortisation of the acquisition 

intangibles	has	increased	to	£6.1	million	(2008:	£2.6	million).

In	2008	the	disposal	of	the	investment	in	Touchpaper	provided	a	

material gain and this, combined with the reduction in interest 

rates on bank and other deposits, accounts for the decrease in 

finance	income	to	£1.2	million	(2008:	£13.9	million).	In	2009	

income	of	£1.0	million	has	been	recognised	relating	to	the	

Touchpaper disposal as one of the retentions was settled and the 

potential receipt from the remaining retention was reassessed.

The underlying tax rate was 33.3%, being an improvement from 

the 35.5% incurred in 2008. This measure excludes the effect of 

the majority of the Touchpaper gains being non-taxable. The 

effective	tax	rate	including	these	gains	is	32.2%	(2008:	23.1%).	

The cash tax rate continues to be materially lower than the charge 

in the income statement and was 28.5% in the period.

Diluted earnings per share, adjusted for the operating profit 

adjustments and to exclude the notional interest charge and 

Touchpaper gains, which the directors believe provides a better 

indication of the underlying performance of the business, have 

increased	by	33%	to	68.8	pence	(2008:	51.8	pence).	The	IFRS	

diluted	earnings	per	share	were	58.9	pence	(2008:	79.1	pence),	 

a	decrease	of	26%	due	to	2008	including	the	majority	of	the	

Touchpaper gain.

The business continues to be strongly cash generative closing the 

year	with	a	cash	balance	of	£45.5	million	(2008:	£33.1	million)	

and no debt. The market conditions impacted cash collections  

in the first half of the year but an improving trend has been 

noticeable in the second half, contributing to the positive working 

capital performance for the year. During the year the final part  

of the contingent consideration for the LatentZero acquisition  

was	paid	and	capital	expenditure	was	6%	of	revenue.	The	net	 

cash	generated	from	operating	activities	was	£60.3	million,	

representing	an	operating	cash	conversion	rate	of	167%.

A second interim dividend has been declared by the directors in 

place of a final dividend for 2009. The second interim dividend is 

60.0p	per	share	and	comprises	20.0p	per	share	as	a	replacement	

for a final dividend for 2009 and 40.0p per share as a special 

dividend, in recognition of the strong growth in the cash balance. 

This	will	be	the	third	occasion	that	the	Group	has	returned	cash	to	

shareholders in the form of a special dividend. The second interim 

dividend will be payable on 29th March 2010 to shareholders on 

the register at the close of business on 5th March 2010, with an 

ex-dividend date of 3rd March 2010.
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Fidessa expects that it will see further significant growth 
opportunities and will maintain its strategy of investment  
in the business.

2009 important events
During	2009	the	key	events	in	the	Group’s	development	have	

been	the	implementation	of	the	Group’s	business	plan	against	the	

background of the worst recession for several decades. The 

market has been unpredictable and currency movements have 

increased	the	level	of	risk	faced	by	the	Group	compared	to	prior	

years.	Despite	this	environment	the	Group	has	continued	to	

deliver strong growth through focus on market requirements, 

most notably delivering lower cost of ownership whilst still 

allowing customers to maintain their position in the market and 

participate within the more fragmented liquidity environment.

During	2009	the	Group	has	continued	with	the	fit	out	of	new	

datacentre space in both Europe and North America in order to 

provide further capacity for growth in its ability to offer software 

as	a	service	(SaaS)	across	all	its	businesses.	The	Group	believes	that	

its range of SaaS offerings will be an increasingly important part 

of its service in the future.

Other important events are as noted elsewhere in this  

Annual	Report.

Risk factors
As	with	all	businesses,	the	Group	is	affected	by	certain	risks,	not	

wholly within its control, which could have a material impact on 

the	Group's	performance	and	could	cause	actual	results	to	differ	

materially from forecast and historic results.

The	principal	risks	and	uncertainties	facing	the	Group	include:	the	

current state of the world’s financial markets, regulatory issues 

affecting Fidessa and/or its customers, customers’ financial 

stability and ability to pay, M&A activity within the customer base 

and within the technology sector, dependence on Fidessa’s core 

technology, competition, levels of operational spending versus 

revenue, other economic and market conditions, volatile 

exchange rates, continued service of executive directors and 

senior managers, hiring and retention of qualified personnel, 

product errors or defects, lawsuits and intellectual property claims.

In	addition	to	the	foregoing,	the	primary	risk	and	uncertainty	

related	to	the	Group's	performance	for	2010	is	the	challenging	

macroeconomic environment caused by the global financial crisis, 

which	could	have	a	material	impact	on	the	Group's	performance	

over the year and could cause actual results to differ materially 

from expected and historical results. A continued downturn in 

buy-side trading or in company market valuations, or an increase 

in discount rates, could result in an impairment to the carrying 

value of goodwill from the LatentZero acquisition.

Outlook
Through the end of 2009 market conditions have steadily 

improved. However, Fidessa expects that the macroeconomic 

situation and the possibility of government regulation will 

continue to make 2010 particularly difficult to predict. On the 

assumption that markets remain reasonably stable Fidessa 

believes that it can continue to deliver good growth for 2010 as a 

whole. However, the impact of higher levels of consolidation and 

business closures within its customer base during 2009, will 

inevitably have some effect on growth during 2010. As a result 

Fidessa does not believe that the overall rate of growth in 2010 

will be as high as that seen during 2009.

Overall, Fidessa expects that 2010 will bring more clarity around 

the future structure of the financial industry and is confident that 

it will continue to play an important role in providing the solutions 

the industry needs. As a result, Fidessa expects that it will see 

further significant growth opportunities and will maintain its 

strategy of investment in the business as it develops these 

solutions across all the regions in which it operates.
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There has been an increased requirement for automated 
and smart trading solutions and more focus on multi-asset 
class support.

Market review1

Introduction
As 2009 progressed, a degree of stability returned to the financial 

markets. However, the effects of the events of 2008 continued to 

be felt with significant cost pressure throughout the industry. This 

resulted in higher levels of consolidation and business closure 

particularly amongst Fidessa’s buy-side and smaller sell-side 

customers, with a total of around 12 significant customers either 

ceasing trading or consolidating with another firm during 2009. 

Fidessa’s larger customers on the sell-side, where the conditions 

in 2008 resulted in capacity being rapidly removed from the 

market, saw somewhat of a resurgence in 2009 as these firms 

benefited from stabilised balance sheets and were able to expand 

in a less competitive market.

Although there has been some negative impact from the market 

conditions, some of the changes have been beneficial for Fidessa, 

such as increased fragmentation of liquidity as participants search 

for lower cost execution. There has also been an increased 

requirement for automated and smart trading solutions and more 

focus on multi-asset class support and cross border trading as all 

participants seek to leverage their cost base to maximum effect.

Although there has been acute pressure across the market to 

reduce headcount, this has not been reflected in the number of 

users taking Fidessa solutions as any losses have been more than 

offset by gains from new customer wins. There has also been no 

reduction in the transaction volumes across Fidessa’s network as 

Fidessa has continued to win market share. The total number of 

Fidessa positions increased to over 24,500 (from around 22,000 

at the end of 2008) and the total number of messages across 

Fidessa’s global connectivity network increased by around 40% 

to 250 million messages per month.

Across the market a number of trends are expected to develop 

further in 2010. Fragmentation of liquidity is expected to increase 

with more firms making use of the existing alternative trading 

venues and the venues themselves spreading into the regions 

allowing more cost effective execution across the world. Many 

market participants also look set to continue their regional 

expansion as they look to leverage their core franchise more 

widely and a similar driver is also likely to fuel multi-asset 

requirements across both the buy-side and the sell-side. There is 

also an expectation that there will be a closer alliance between 

the buy-side and sell-side from a technology perspective, as 

buy-side firms look at different models to fund their technology 

requirements, increasingly bringing this funding inside their total 

execution cost.

After the crisis in 2008 there was a strong expectation across the 

industry of increased regulation. This regulation failed to 

materialise in 2009 and it is now widely expected that it will start 

to take shape in 2010. Some of the options being publicly aired 

are quite radical and at the present time it is very difficult to 

predict what the impact of this will be on the financial industry 

and consequently on Fidessa. Many of Fidessa’s customers are 

looking closely at possible regulation and tax changes and it is 

expected that there may be some relocation of elements of these 

customers' businesses as they look to optimise their locations in 

the light of new regulation. Overall, whilst the impact of new 

regulation is currently very much unknown, it is likely to result in 

changes to workflow, increased reporting requirements and may 

even lead to the break up of some firms, reversing the impact of 

the consolidation seen recently. All of these are likely to be positive 

for Fidessa as they result in increased demand for world class 

compliance and automation solutions which can operate in the 

new environment in an extremely cost effective way.

Directors’ report – market review

1		The	Market	Review	addresses	the	structure	of	the	marketplace	and	therefore	
differs from the segment reporting which reflects the structure of the business 
operations focused on the method of delivery to the marketplace.
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Interest	continues	for	solutions	to	assist	with	compliance	
and operational control. This is an area in which Fidessa is 
particularly well positioned.

Buy-side trading
During 2009 the markets have been challenging for buy-side 

firms with an unpredictable investment climate combined with 

pressure on fee income. This has resulted in a number of buy-side 

firms reviewing their operations and significant consolidation 

within the industry including at larger firms. There has, however, 

been a continued stream of additional projects mainly focused 

around reducing the total cost of ownership of the systems that 

are used. This has manifested in customers looking for wider asset 

class support within the Fidessa LatentZero product set so that 

they can maximise the value they get from these products across 

their business.

In	anticipation	of	additional	regulation	of	the	financial	markets,	

interest continues for solutions to assist with compliance and 

operational control. This is an area in which Fidessa is particularly 

well positioned and Fidessa’s lead was once again confirmed 

when the Fidessa LatentZero compliance module, Sentinel, took 

Product of the Year at the Buy-Side Technology Awards as well as 

being named best buy-side compliance product for the second 

year running. Fidessa plans to build on this lead with further 

investment planned throughout 2010.

During 2009 Fidessa has continued to make progress with the 

buy-side	in	Asia,	with	LIM	Advisors	Limited,	an	Asian-based	

multi-strategy investment group with approximately US$900 

million in assets under management, successfully going live with 

the full Fidessa LatentZero front office suite. Fidessa has also 

been	successful	in	China,	where	the	introduction	of	the	QDII	rules	

(Qualified	Domestic	International	Investor)	has	enabled	some	

larger Chinese asset managers to invest outside of China. These 

firms need access to the best available technology to support their 

international business strategy and Fidessa has already signed its 

first Chinese customers.

The focus on total cost of ownership has also driven buy-side 

firms to consider hosted solutions as an alternative to owning and 

operating their own technology. At the end of 2009 Fidessa 

launched LatentZero as a Service, giving customers the 

opportunity to access a comprehensive workflow solution at a 

very attractive price. The solution leverages the infrastructure, data 

centres, network and high quality data services that Fidessa 

already has in place for its sell-side operations.

The Fidessa LatentZero execution management workstation 

(EMS), which provides order routing and execution tools for 

non-member firms to trade financial markets, has continued to 

expand its customer base with the addition of over 30 customers. 

In	addition	to	the	new	customers,	the	attraction	of	the	Fidessa 

LatentZero EMS as a means for accessing brokers has resulted in 

an increase of more than 50% in the total number of connections 

taken through the product as existing customers increase their 

usage. During 2009 Fidessa has continued to invest in the EMS 

product adding support for program and basket trading as well as 

introducing support for US equity options. All of this functionality 

successfully went live during 2009 and is expected to contribute 

to further growth for this product during 2010.

Global connectivity
Despite challenging market conditions, the rising demand for 

electronic connectivity for trading the world’s financial markets 

has continued unabated. Changing regulations mean the number 

of new alternative trading venues is increasing and the 

corresponding fragmentation of liquidity across these new venues, 

as well as across traditional exchanges, persists. This, combined 

with factors such as the growing demand for high performance, 

low-latency trading links, has helped fuel the on-going growth of 

Fidessa’s leading global connectivity solution.
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The rising demand for electronic connectivity for trading the 
world’s financial markets has continued unabated.

Many buy-side firms are now looking to spread their trading risk 

by connecting electronically to a large number of sell-side brokers 

instead of just a few. This, coupled with a desire to cover more 

asset classes as well as more international markets, means they 

now need connectivity to a more diverse selection of brokers and 

venues around the globe. The communications infrastructure 

needed to facilitate all this is large and complex, and their desire 

to outsource is helping to drive the need for comprehensive 

connectivity solutions such as Fidessa’s.

Sell-side firms too are looking to diversify the services they offer 

and expand their geographic reach as they strive to succeed in an 

increasingly competitive world. Many of their new services such as 

algorithmic trading systems, dark pools and smart order routing 

services are reliant on fast communications links, and so the desire 

from both the buy-side and sell-side for electronic connectivity to 

access these new services continues. The ever evolving market 

landscape presents additional challenges to the brokers too, as 

changing regulations drive the emergence of new venues, the 

launch of new services from existing venues and the ongoing 

fragmentation of liquidity around the world. All this means these 

brokers need fast, comprehensive market connectivity to ensure 

they can continue to offer attractive services to their clients as  

well as meet their obligations to achieve best possible transaction 

prices for them.

Fidessa believes that the interaction between buy-side and 

sell-side firms will become increasingly electronic, driven by lower 

cost, improved compliance, a growing familiarity with electronic 

trading and a desire to standardise on common mechanism.  

As such Fidessa believes that over time sell-side firms will have 

electronic connections to virtually all their clients making this an 

exciting growth market for Fidessa.	In	order	to	encourage	this	

Fidessa is at the forefront of making electronic communication 

more cost effective by reducing the overall cost of each link to  

the participants.

During 2009, the Fidessa network has continued to expand and 

now encompasses over 2,300 buy-side firms, around 500 sell-side 

brokers and connects to 130 trading venues around the world. 

Usage of the network has continued to rise too with a 40% 

increase in traffic to around 250 million messages per month 

which	carries	a	business	flow	of	around	$640	billion	dollars	on	a	

monthly basis. Advanced trading practices such as algorithmic 

trading and high frequency trading have helped fuel the 

expansion of network activity as well as drive the need for super 

fast, highly resilient connectivity.

In	response	to	all	this	Fidessa has continued with its investment in 

its network infrastructure, with larger, faster network pipes and 

expanded data centre facilities. Coverage has also been extended 

with the addition of new venues and broker services covering 

more derivatives markets, such as US stock options, and further 

penetration into regions such as Asia, Latin America and the 

Middle East. This investment will continue in 2010 with new data 

centres and network hubs planned to support the emerging 

regions, and the use of high-performance market gateways 

co-located at trading venue premises to provide ultra-low latency 

market access.

Hand in hand with trading connectivity comes the need for fast 

and accurate market data and Fidessa has continued its push  

in this area by expanding further its global data coverage and 

launching new data services within its product set. As new  

trading venues continue to appear, the provision of instrument 

prices and other market information from all these new systems  

is an ongoing activity. Hence, Fidessa has continued to extend  

the geographic reach of its data service to match its trading 

venues by adding additional markets in Asia, Latin America  

and the Middle East as well as by adding new data sets such  

as unit trust coverage.
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Fidessa has continued to make good progress with its  
sell-side offerings taking orders for around 70 new sell-side 
trading platforms spread across all regions.

This expansion of coverage will continue in 2010 with fixed 

income content becoming a particular area of focus. The 

comprehensive market data that Fidessa collects and distributes 

across its global network is fast becoming a valuable asset in its 

own right, and the company is now looking to start leveraging 

this capability further through new product initiatives over the 

coming year.

As Fidessa’s network of buy-side and sell-side customers continues 

to expand, its real power and value is coming to the fore as other 

brokers, destinations and investment firms all clamour to become 

part of this important global trading community. This Fidessa 

community is now seen as a vital link for those serious about 

trading the world’s financial markets, and the reach it gives to firms 

joining it provides them with a valuable asset that they can 

leverage to significantly grow their own business.

Sell-side trading
Fidessa has continued to make good progress with its sell-side 

offerings, despite the market conditions, taking orders for around 

70 new sell-side trading platforms spread across all regions. This 

has been driven by continued pressure for customers to 

implement tools to reduce their operating costs, coupled with 

demand for new services to help customers leverage the 

operations	they	already	have	in	place.	In	particular,	there	has	been	

increased demand for Fidessa’s suite of advanced trading tools, 

increased interest in global trading services and demand 

developing for high frequency trading. Fidessa’s success has also 

continued within the derivative markets with 17 customers now 

making use of Fidessa’s support for derivative markets. These 

services range from full member trading solutions through to 

non-member trading solutions taking advantage of the derivative 

brokers now available through Fidessa's global connectivity 

network.	In	the	US	there	has	also	been	particular	success	with	

Fidessa’s support for US equity options and this is an area which 

is expected to grow throughout 2010.

During 2009 market conditions resulted in many of Fidessa’s 

smaller hosted customers seeing continued pressure on their 

margins. This has had an inevitable impact on Fidessa with some 

of these customers reducing the level of service that they took or 

exploring alternatives. However, the same pressure also benefited 

Fidessa with some customers looking to take Fidessa services and 

switch from other suppliers in order to reduce their costs while 

maintaining the level of quality and reliability that they need.

Within Fidessa’s larger enterprise customers, an appetite for 

expansion developed during 2009 with many of these customers 

looking to extend the service that they offer or increase the 

support they provide within different geographies. As a result, 

Fidessa saw increased demand for support of the Latin American, 

Nordic	and	Russian	markets	with	firms	looking	to	support	flows	in	

these regions from within their global platform. Development of 

these markets is expected to continue into 2010 and will provide 

further growth opportunities within these regions as well as 

opportunity to extend the breadth of service Fidessa is able to 

offer	to	existing	customers.	Growth	is	also	expected	to	continue	

across the Canadian market where volumes are rising as a result 

of	increased	electronic	trading.	In	this	market	demand	from	

smaller brokers is expected to grow as the market regulator 

ensures firms comply with market integrity rules meaning that  

the smaller brokers will require access to more sophisticated 

technology.

Fidessa's success in Asia continued with strong growth for the 

sell-side	platform	with	six	additional	customers	signed.	Interest	in	

the region has increased as US and European firms expand their 

operations to take advantage of greater growth opportunities in 

this area of the world and local firms respond with more robust 

and global solutions. A number of key central markets in the 

region are upgrading their systems, increasing their performance 

and making more complex trading strategies possible. This 

enables Fidessa to provide advanced trading tools within the 
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Fidessa’s estimate of its addressable market has increased 
to $3.7bn of annual revenue despite the recent events in 
the markets.

region. There is also increasing interest in low touch trading with 

firms looking to increase their ability to support DMA (Direct 

Market Access) flows. Fragmentation looks likely to become an 

increasingly important element within the region with the launch 

of Chi-East scheduled for later in 2010. Fidessa is also seeing 

strong	interest	in	India,	Thailand	and	Indonesia	as	these	markets	

develop further.

Fidessa has continued to invest in the Japanese market 

supporting the Tokyo Stock Exchange’s (TSE) arrowhead initiative. 

Fidessa worked closely with the TSE during 2009 to test 

arrowhead and ensure that Fidessa’s trading platform made full 

use of all the benefits offered by the new system. Fidessa's 

solution was independently verified to provide the lowest latency 

and highest throughput available for this market. The majority of 

the leading brokers in Japan use Fidessa as their execution 

platform and all were able to go live seamlessly on day one of the 

new arrowhead system. The launch of arrowhead is expected to 

change the landscape for trading in Japan by fuelling further the 

demand for algorithmic trading systems, as well as stimulating 

interaction between the main exchanges and alternative dark and 

lit trading venues.

Fidessa’s strength in the US market was reaffirmed again in  

2009 when Fidessa was voted Best Sell-side Order Management 

System (OMS) in the annual Waters magazine readers' rankings. 

This was the second straight year Fidessa has won top position  

in this category.

During 2010 Fidessa expects that many of the key drivers seen 

during 2009 will continue, with the focus on regional expansion, 

advanced trading tools, continued fragmentation and multi-asset 

class	support.	It	is	expected	that	competition	between	execution	

venues will continue to drive development of the core exchange 

platforms and we expect to see a number of major upgrades 

including one at the London Stock Exchange which plans to 

migrate its main cash market from TradElect to the new 

MillenniumIT	platform.	All	of	these	upgrades	are	expected	 

to create opportunities for new services to be offered within  

these markets.

Market sizing
Following the events of 2008, Fidessa has conducted a further 

exercise to look at the potential market size for its products. The 

exercise was comparable to exercises carried out by Fidessa in 

2005	and	2007.	It	should	be	noted	that	this	exercise	involves	

estimation of the number of potential customers in the market, 

estimation of customer spend and assumptions regarding the 

applicability of Fidessa products to certain markets and the results 

are necessarily subjective. The conclusion of the market sizing 

shows Fidessa's estimate of its addressable market has increased 

to	$3.7bn	of	annual	revenue	(2007:	$2.3bn)	despite	the	recent	

events in the markets. The primary reasons for this are the 

increased coverage of Fidessa's products, particularly in the areas 

of derivative trading, and Fidessa's belief that some product 

areas, such as execution workstations and connectivity services, 

have wider applicability than originally assumed.
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Strong	growth	in	EBITDA	and	operating	profit	 
has been achieved.

Finance review

Revenue
In	2009	strong	growth	in	revenue	has	been	achieved,	up	26%	to	

£238.5	million	(2008:	£189.1	million).	The	growth	has	been	

assisted by sterling's weakness, especially in the early part of the 

year. At constant currencies the revenue growth was 17%. The 

global financial crisis of 2008 has resulted in some impact on the 

growth rate because of insolvencies, sector consolidation and cost 

cutting.	In	the	absence	of	these	events	the	growth	in	2009	could	

have been at least six percentage points higher. There has been 

some evidence of a slowing of these events but the time delay in 

them being fully reflected in revenue means that the impact on 

revenue in 2010 may be slightly greater than that in 2009.

Recurring	revenue	continued	to	provide	the	momentum	growing	

by	32%	to	be	81%	of	revenue	(2008:	77%).	Growth	continued	

to be strong across all regions and consultancy revenue grew 

by	5%	to	£44.6	million,	representing	19%	of	total	revenue.	

The deferred revenue in the balance sheet at the end of the year 

was	£47.7	million,	an	increase	of	25%	in	the	year	and	represents	

around a fifth of annual revenue which can all be recognised  

in the current financial year.

Profits
Strong	growth	in	EBITDA	(earnings	before	interest,	tax,	

depreciation and amortisation and adjusted for capitalised 

product development) and operating profit has also been 

achieved.	EBITDA	has	increased	by	41%	to	£43.5	million	 

(2008:	£30.8	million).	The	adjusted	operating	profit	was	up	 

34%	to	£36.0	million	(2008:	£26.8	million).	This	represents	an	

operating margin of 15.1% for the year, up from 14.2% for 2008. 

The profit growth has also been assisted by sterling being weaker 

and at constant currencies the adjusted operating profit growth 

was 23%. The adjusted operating profit has been measured 

before the amortisation of acquired intangibles and with the 

settlement of the patent dispute and Lehman Brothers receivable 

write off removed from the comparable period. The unadjusted 
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This	will	be	the	third	occasion	that	the	Group	has	returned	
cash to shareholders in the form of a special dividend.

operating	profit	was	up	33%	to	£29.9	million	(2008:	£22.5	

million).	In	order	to	be	more	prudent	and	consistent,	the	estimated	

lives of the complete technology and marketing related intangible 

assets arising from the LatentZero acquisition have been reduced 

and as a result the amortisation of the acquisition intangibles has 

increased	to	£6.1	million	(2008:	£2.6	million).

Finance income and cost
In	2008	the	disposal	of	the	investment	in	Touchpaper	provided	a	

material gain and this, combined with the reduction in interest 

rates on bank and other deposits, accounts for the decrease in 

finance	income	to	£1.2	million	(2008:	£13.9	million).	In	2009	

income	of	£1.0	million	has	been	recognised	relating	to	the	

Touchpaper disposal as one of the retentions was settled and the 

potential receipt from the remaining retention was reassessed. 

Tax
The underlying tax rate was 33.3%, being an improvement from 

the 35.5% incurred in 2008. This measure excludes the effect of 

the majority of the Touchpaper gains being non-taxable. The 

effective	tax	rate	including	these	gains	is	32.2%	(2008:	23.1%).	

The cash tax rate continues to be materially lower than the charge 

in the income statement and was 28.5% in the period.

Earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share, adjusted for the operating profit 

adjustments and to exclude the notional interest charge and 

Touchpaper gains, which the directors believe provides a better 

indication of the underlying performance of the business, have 

increased	by	33%	to	68.8	pence	(2008:	51.8	pence).	The	IFRS	

diluted	earnings	per	share	were	58.9	pence	(2008:	79.1	pence),	 

a	decrease	of	26%	due	to	2008	including	the	majority	of	the	

Touchpaper gain.

Dividends
A second interim dividend has been declared by the directors in 

place of a final dividend for 2009. The second interim dividend is 

60.0p	per	share	and	comprises	20.0p	per	share	as	a	replacement	

for a final dividend for 2009 and 40.0p per share as a special 

dividend, in recognition of the strong growth in the cash balance. 

This	will	be	the	third	occasion	that	the	Group	has	returned	cash	to	

shareholders in the form of a special dividend. The second interim 

dividend will be payable on 29th March 2010 to shareholders on 

the register at the close of business on 5th March 2010, with an 

ex-dividend date of 3rd March 2010.

Cash and treasury
The business continues to be strongly cash generative closing the 

year	with	a	cash	balance	of	£45.5	million	(2008:	£33.1	million)	

and no debt. The market conditions impacted cash collections  

in the first half of the year but an improving trend has been 

noticeable in the second half, contributing to the positive working 

capital performance for the year. During the year the final part  

of the contingent consideration for the LatentZero acquisition  

was	paid	and	capital	expenditure	was	6%	of	revenue.	The	net	

cash	generated	from	operating	activities	was	£60.3	million,	

representing	an	operating	cash	conversion	rate	of	167%.

The use of financial instruments is managed under policies and 

procedures approved by the Board. These are designed to reduce 

the	financial	risks	faced	by	the	Group,	which	primarily	relate	to	

credit, interest, liquidity and currency risks, which arise in the 

normal	course	of	the	Group’s	business.	

Financial	instruments	which	potentially	expose	the	Group	to	credit	

risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and trade receivables. 

Cash equivalents are deposited only with major financial 

institutions that satisfy certain credit criteria as specified in the 
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Group's	treasury	policy.	The	maximum	deposit	with	a	counterparty	

is	£5,100,000.	At	the	balance	sheet	date,	there	were	no	

significant concentrations of customer credit risk. Our largest 

customer	accounts	for	less	than	5%	of	the	Group	revenue	and	

the	ten	largest	customers	account	for	less	than	30%	of	the	Group	

revenue. All material trade receivable balances relate to sales 

transactions	with	financial	institutions.	The	Group	provides	credit	

to customers in the normal course of business and the amount 

that appears in the balance sheet is net of an allowance for 

specific doubtful receivables, the allowance being due to 

insolvency	or	age	of	receivable.	In	most	situations	where	a	

receivable is aged but no specific allowance has been made  

for it no revenue has been taken and it forms part of the  

deferred revenue balance.

The	Group	holds	net	funds	and	hence	its	interest	risks	are	

associated	with	short-term	cash	deposits.	The	Group’s	overall	

objective with respect to these deposits is to maintain a balance 

between security of the funds, accessibility of funds and 

competitive	rates	of	return.	In	practice	this	means	that	no	 

deposits are made with a maturity date greater than three 

months.	All	deposits	are	at	current	market	rates.	The	Group	 

has no borrowings.

The	Group	operates	internationally	and	is	exposed	to	foreign	

currency risk on transactions denominated in a currency other 

than the functional currency and on the translation of the balance 

sheet and income statement of foreign operations into sterling. 

The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily US dollars, Euros 

and	Japanese	Yen.	The	Group	has	both	cash	inflows	and	outflows	

in these currencies that create a natural hedge.

In	managing	currency	risks	the	Group	aims	to	reduce	the	 

impact	on	short-term	fluctuations	on	the	Group’s	cash	inflows	

and	outflows	in	a	foreign	currency.	The	Group	has	not	entered	

into hedging contracts for cash positions denominated in  

foreign currencies. 

Over the longer term permanent changes in foreign exchange 

would have an impact on consolidation of foreign subsidiaries 

earnings.	It	is	estimated	that	a	general	increase	of	one	 

percentage point in the value of sterling against other  

currencies	would	have	decreased	the	Group’s	profit	 

before	tax	by	approximately	£127,000	for	the	year	ended	 

31st	December	2009	(2008:	£148,000).

The	Group	maintains	a	strong	capital	base	so	as	to	maintain	

employee, customer, market, investor and creditor confidence in 

the business. Special dividends have been used to return surplus 

capital to shareholders. The Board monitors the retained cash and 

reserves and determines the level of annual dividend and when 

and how a return of capital to shareholders is appropriate.
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Corporate information

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for Fidessa	group	plc	(company	number	03234176)	for	the	year	

ended	31st	December	2009.	These	will	be	laid	before	the	shareholders	at	the	Annual	General	Meeting	to	be	held	on	27th	April	2010.

1. Directors
The Board comprises a Chairman, three independent non-executive directors and two executive directors. The Board considers its overall 

size and composition to be appropriate, having regard to the experience and skills which the Board members bring together and the fact 

that	the	Board	considers	the	three	non-executive	directors	to	be	independent	of	management.	The	serving	directors	are:

John Hamer (age 50), Chairman

John	Hamer	joined	the	Group	in	January	1983.	He	has	a	BSc.	Hons.	in	Computer	Science	from	Leeds	University	and	was	Chief	Executive	

of	the	Group	between	1992	and	July	2001	when	the	Group	had	multiple	divisions	each	division	having	its	own	Chief	Executive.	John	

became	Chairman	of	the	Group	in	July	2001	when	the	Group	focused	on	the	Fidessa business by divesting the help desk and call centre 

software businesses. The Board considers the Chairman role to be similar to that performed prior to July 2001 when there were multiple 

businesses and there to be no conflict with Chris Aspinwall, the Chief Executive, who was already the Chief Executive of the Fidessa 

business prior to July 2001. He currently has no other material business commitments. 

Chris Aspinwall (age 46), Chief Executive 

Chris	Aspinwall	joined	the	Group	in	August	1986	as	a	software	engineer	and	was	appointed	to	the	Board	in	1992.	He	 

became Chief Executive of the Fidessa	business	in	1992	and	has	grown	it	to	its	current	world	leading	position.	In	July	2001	 

he	became	Group	Chief	Executive.	He	has	a	BSc.	Hons.	in	Computer	Science	from	York	University.	

Andy Malpass (age 48), Finance Director

Andy	Malpass	joined	the	Group	in	1995	as	Finance	Director	and	has	over	25	years'	experience	in	the	software	industry,	with	both	private	

and	public	companies.	He	has	a	BA	Hons.	in	Accounting	and	Finance	from	Lancaster	University	and	is	a	fellow	of	the	Chartered	Institute	

of Management Accountants. 

Ron Mackintosh (age 61), Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Ron	Mackintosh	was	appointed	to	the	Board	in	June	2004.	He	is	Chairman	of	CSR	Plc.	Ron	has	held	a	number	of	senior	executive	

positions in European technology companies. Between 1992 and 2000 he was chief executive of Computer Sciences Corporation’s (CSC) 

European business which had revenue of $2.5 billion. He is also the former chairman of each of Smartstream Technologies Ltd, Northgate 

Information	Solutions	plc	and	Differentis	Limited	and	a	former	director	of	Gemplus	SA.

Philip Hardaker (age 62), Independent Non-Executive Director

Philip Hardaker joined the Board as a non-executive director in February 2005. Philip is an experienced Chartered Accountant who 

previously	served	for	20	years	as	a	partner	in	KPMG	UK.	As	a	partner	he	led	teams	providing	audit,	advisory	and	transaction	due	diligence	

services	to	a	broad	portfolio	of	clients.	He	also	held	a	series	of	managerial	and	leadership	positions	in	KPMG,	both	in	the	UK	and	overseas.	

Philip	is	a	Trustee	of	Charities	Aid	Foundation,	chairing	the	Audit,	Risk	and	Compliance	Committee,	a	director	of	CAF	Bank	Limited,	a	

director of The St. John of Jerusalem Eye Hospital and an independent non-executive on the Audit Committee of Lovells LLP.

Elizabeth Lake (age 67), Independent Non-Executive Director

Elizabeth Lake was appointed to the Board as a non-executive director in October 2008. Until the end of June 2009, Elizabeth was a 

director	and	President	of	Securities	Processing	Solutions	International,	a	subsidiary	of	Broadridge	Financial	Solutions,	Inc	(“Broadridge”),	

a global provider of technology based outsourcing solutions to the financial services industry. She continues at Broadridge as a strategic 

adviser	to	the	company.	She	was	a	partner	in	the	consultancy	practice	of	KPMG	and	has	also	held	senior	executive	positions	at	CSC	Index	

consultancy	within	the	financial	services	sector	and	at	Ziff-Davis	Technical	Information	Company	where	she	was	responsible	for	software	

products and services for the financial services industry. 

Directors’ report – corporate information
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In	accordance	with	the	Articles	of	Association	of	the	Company,	Andy	Malpass	and	Ron	Mackintosh	retire	by	rotation	at	the	forthcoming	

Annual	General	Meeting	and,	being	eligible,	offer	themselves	for	re-election.	The	biographies	of	Andy	Malpass	and	Ron	Mackintosh	are	

set	out	above.	Following	formal	performance	evaluation	of	Andy	Malpass	and	a	rigorous	review	of	the	role	of	Ron	Mackintosh,	the	

Chairman	confirms	that	the	performance	of	each	of	Andy	Malpass	and	Ron	Mackintosh,	continues	to	be	effective	and	that	they	continue	

to demonstrate commitment to their roles bringing their considerable commercial experience to the Company; accordingly the Chairman 

recommends	their	re-election.	The	senior	independent	director,	Ron	Mackintosh,	confirms	that	following	formal	performance	evaluation	

of Mr Hamer by himself and the other non-executive directors, the performance of the Chairman continues to be effective. 

Directors’	interests	in	shares	and	share	options	in	the	Company	are	detailed	in	the	Directors’	Remuneration	Report.	

At	the	date	of	this	Directors'	Report,	indemnities	are	in	force	under	which	the	Company	has	agreed	to	indemnify	the	directors	and	the	

Company Secretary to the extent permitted by law and by the Company’s Articles of Association in respect of all losses arising in their 

capacity	as	officer	of	the	Company	or	of	any	member	of	the	Group.	In	addition	the	Group	has	purchased	and	maintained	throughout	the	

financial period, directors' and officers' liability insurance in respect of itself and its directors. 

2. Principal activities and business review
The	Group	is	the	leading	supplier	of	multi-asset	trading,	portfolio	analysis,	decision	support,	compliance,	market	data	and	connectivity	

solutions for firms involved in trading the world’s financial markets. Fidessa’s products and services are built on the simple vision of 

making	it	easier	to	buy,	sell	and	own	financial	assets	of	all	types	on	a	global	basis.	Further	details	of	the	Group’s	primary	markets	and	the	

development	of	the	business	are	stated	in	the	Overview	and	Market	Review	sections	of	this	Directors'	Report.	

The	Company	is	required	to	set	out	in	this	report	a	fair	review	of	the	business	of	the	Group	during	the	financial	year	ended	 

31st	December	2009	and	of	the	position	of	the	Group	at	the	end	of	the	financial	year	and	a	description	of	the	principal	risks	and	

uncertainties	facing	the	Group,	constituting	the	business	review.	The	information	that	fulfils	the	requirements	of	the	business	review	can	

be	found	in	this	Directors’	Report	in	the	Corporate	Information,	Overview,	Market	Review	and	the	Finance	Review	sections.	Details	of	the	

Company’s	compliance	with	the	revised	Combined	Code	on	Corporate	Governance	issued	by	the	Financial	Reporting	Council	in	June	

2008	are	set	out	in	the	Corporate	Governance	section	of	this	directors’	report.

3. Risk factors
This	Directors'	Report	contains	certain	forward	looking	statements	which	by	their	nature	involve	risk	and	uncertainty.	The	forward	looking	

statements are based on the knowledge and information available at the date of preparation and on what are believed to be reasonable 

judgements. A wide range of factors may cause the actual results to differ materially from those contained within, or implied by, these 

forward looking statements. The forward looking statements should not be construed as a profit forecast. 

Identification	and	management	of	risk	is	an	integral	part	of	the	day	to	day	activities	of	the	Group;	please	refer	to	the	paragraph	headed	

“Internal	Control”	in	the	Corporate	Governance	section	of	this	Directors'	Report	for	more	detail	on	the	Group’s	risk	management	systems.

There are a number of potential risk factors which could have a material adverse financial effect on the business as well as on the value 

and liquidity of the Company’s securities some of which have been identified below although the list may not be exhaustive. There may 

also be risks that we do not currently consider to be serious or which are currently unknown to us. Where reasonably possible the 

Company	or	the	Group	as	applicable	has	taken	steps	to	mitigate	the	risks	or	potential	risks	of	which	the	Company	or	the	Group	are	

aware but they cannot be entirely safeguarded against all of them. 

The	Group’s	products	are	dependent	on	the	rapid	transmission	of	data	either	over	the	internet	or	using	dedicated	communications	lines	

in order to provide financial information to its customer base and to enable customers to effect trades in financial instruments. A major 

power outage, network failure or network interruption whether caused by failure of the network provider, power provider or power 

infrastructure,	interference	with	or	destruction	of	one	of	the	Group’s	data	centres	or	errors	in	or	lack	of	sufficient	protection	of	its	

software,	IT	viruses,	terrorist	attack	or	sabotage	could	result	in	the	failure	of	its	hosted	service,	the	transmission	of	old	or	incorrect	data	

and trades being missed, repeated or incorrectly executed particularly in the event where algorithmic or other automated trading is used. 

Such	issues	could	have	an	adverse	impact	on	the	Group’s	customers	and	on	the	Group	financially	as	well	as	on	its	reputation	in	its	

markets.	The	Group	takes	these	issues	very	seriously	and	tries	to	take	appropriate	measures	including	investing	heavily	in	secure	highly	

resilient data centre space, in ensuring it has sufficient power supplies and in protecting its systems against sabotage 
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Under	the	Group’s	software	testing	protocols,	it	takes	steps	to	prevent	test	trades	from	being	executed	live	and	to	reduce	the	impact	 

of	such	an	eventuality	by	using	a	separate	test	site	and	imposing	conditions	on	the	testing	such	as	limiting	the	size	of	test	trades.	It	is	

however	possible	that	such	an	error	could	take	place	and	prove	very	costly	to	the	Group.	The	nature	of	financial	market	data	is	such 

that	it	needs	to	be	constantly	updated	which	may	mean	that	the	Group’s	network	capacity	could	at	some	point	become	saturated	

adversely	affecting	its	product	and	network	performance.	While	the	Group	has	implemented	measures	to	mitigate	this	risk	by	 

contracting for sufficient network capacity using market leading providers of network services, there can be no guarantees that the 

Group	and	its	communications	network	providers	will	be	able	to	accommodate	rapid	growth	in	traffic	volumes	or	avoid	network 

failures or interruptions.

The	Group’s	products	include	tools	that	support	investment	decisions,	from	asset	allocations	through	what-if	scenarios	to	implementation.	

The tools are high performance but have to operate in a fast moving environment which creates some timing risk.

Although	the	Group	endeavours	to	negotiate	its	contracts	with	its	data	providers	to	the	extent	possible	in	order	to	limit	its	exposure,	the	

Group	has	signed	agreements	with	overseas	exchanges	for	the	provision	of	financial	data.	Being	providers	which	have	a	monopoly,	some	

of	the	exchanges	refuse	to	provide	their	data	on	terms	other	than	their	standard	terms	which	can	contain	provisions	which	the	Group	

would not accept under normal circumstances including but not limited to, unlimited liability, liability for consequential loss and the 

application of local law.

The	Group’s	staff	are	vital	to	the	success	of	the	business.	If	the	Group	were	unable	to	attract	adequate	skilled	staff	to	meet	its	

requirements or were to lose key managerial, sales, professional or technical staff this could seriously affect its business. Succession 

planning is taken seriously by the Board and it is believed that long-term incentives under the share option schemes as well as the Share 

Bonus	Plan	and	Exceptional	Growth	Rate	Incentive	Plan	aid	staff	retention.	The	Group	endeavours	to	ensure	that	staff	are	motivated	by	

the	nature	of	the	business	of	the	Group	and	the	work	that	they	carry	out	in	their	roles	as	employees.	They	are	regularly	appraised	and	

encouraged to develop their skills and where appropriate are promoted in line with their potential.

Although	careful	steps	are	taken	to	minimise	the	risks	posed	by	disaffected	employees,	such	as	protecting	the	Group’s	systems	and	trying	

to resolve any potentially volatile human resource issues, disaffected employees with access to critical information could be inclined to 

harm	the	Group.	It	is	possible	that	they	could	do	significant	damage	to	the	business	and	the	reputation	of	the	Group	by	impairing	its	

systems.	They	could	also	endeavour	to	misappropriate	the	Group’s	intellectual	property	by	attempting	to	reveal	its	source	codes	or	trade	

secrets	or	allocating	passwords	or	access	to	its	systems	to	third	parties	for	financial	gain	or	to	cause	financial	loss	to	the	Group.	

As	a	software	group,	infringement	of	the	Group’s	intellectual	property	rights	by	third	parties	or	its	failure	to	defend	infringement	claims	

from	third	parties	could	cause	damage	to	the	business	although	the	Group	has	taken	reasonable	steps	to	ensure	that	its	intellectual	

property rights are appropriately protected by law and that it does not infringe the intellectual property rights of others.

The	Group	invests	its	cash	deposits	with	highly	rated	financial	institutions	and	spreads	its	risk.	Credit	limits	are	set	for	each	financial	

institution	that	the	Group	deposits	funds	with	by	reference	to	published	credit	ratings.	However	in	the	event	that	one	of	the	 

banks	holding	the	Group's	deposits	were	to	collapse,	there	is	a	risk	of	the	Group	being	unable	to	access	its	cash	deposits	or	losing	 

them altogether.

The	Group	operates	internationally	and	is	exposed	to	foreign	currency	risk	on	transactions	denominated	in	a	currency	other	than	the	

functional currency and on the translation of the balance sheet and income statement of foreign operations into Sterling. The currencies 

giving	rise	to	this	risk	are	primarily	US	Dollars,	Euros	and	Japanese	Yen.	The	Group	has	both	cash	inflows	and	outflows	in	these	currencies	

that	create	a	natural	hedge.	In	managing	currency	risks,	the	Group	aims	to	reduce	the	impact	of	short-term	fluctuations	on	the	Group’s	

cash	inflows	and	outflows	in	a	foreign	currency.	The	Group	has	not	entered	into	hedging	contracts	for	either	cash	or	net	investment	

positions denominated in foreign currencies. Over the longer term, however, permanent changes in foreign exchange would have an 

impact on consolidated earnings.
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The	Group’s	suite	of	products	is	limited	in	range	in	so	far	as	all	its	products	are	financial	software	related.	It	could	fail	to	retain	existing	

customers or attract a new client base which would reduce profits. Factors beyond its control such as instability of the financial system, a 

material downturn in financial markets, recession, reduced stock market valuations, market disruptions or suspensions, or factors such as 

the	insolvency,	consolidation	or	nationalisation	of	parts	of	its	customer	base	could	adversely	affect	the	sales	of	the	Group’s	products	due	

to the consequential reduction in the budgets of financial institutions for expenditure on technology products and their reduced ability to 

pay for or requirement for such products. 

In	the	event	of	turmoil	in	financial	markets	there	would	be	a	reduction	in	the	types	of	financial	instrument	traded	and	a	reduction	in	

trading	volumes	of	financial	instruments	globally.	This	could	negatively	affect	Group	profits	because	it	could	reduce	sums	billed	under	the	

Group’s	contracts	with	its	customers.	The	Group	invests	heavily	in	research	and	development	of	new	products	yet	it	is	possible	that	at	a	

future	date	the	Group	may	not	have	the	resources	to	respond	rapidly	enough	to	changes	in	customer	requirements	in	its	markets.	The	

strategy it adopts in developing new products may not be on target and resource may be channelled into products that are ineffective or 

surplus to market requirements.

The	cost	of	compliance	by	the	Group	with	changes	in	laws	or	regulations	by	governments	and	other	regulatory	authorities	in	the	

countries in which it does business such as for example anti-corruption, environmental or data protection legislation, could have an 

adverse	financial	effect	on	the	business	as	could	prosecution	of	the	Group	for	any	breaches	of	such	laws	due	to	the	potential	resulting	

defence	costs	and	penalties	involved.	The	Group	endeavours	to	comply	with	any	such	changes	with	the	help	of	its	financial	and	legal	

advisers where necessary.

In	the	future	the	Group	may	decide	to	acquire	new	businesses	or	companies	and/or	dispose	of	companies	or	businesses.	Any	given	

acquisition	or	disposal	will	entail	costs	but	has	the	potential	to	increase	the	profitability	of	the	Group.	Although	in	depth	due	diligence	

would	be	carried	out	by	the	Group	and	its	advisers	prior	to	undertaking	such	a	transaction,	an	acquisition	could	have	a	negative	effect	on	

the	profits	of	the	Group	in	the	event	that	a	target	acquired	could	not	be	successfully	integrated	into	the	Group,	were	unable	to	adapt	to	

the	Group’s	culture,	if	disaffected	staff	from	the	acquired	company	were	to	leave	the	Group	or	if	the	acquisition	did	not	prove	as	valuable	

to	the	Group	as	anticipated.	

4. Results and dividends
The financial results and position are shown in the financial statements. A fuller explanation of the results and position is provided in the 

Overview,	the	Finance	Review	and	the	Market	Review	sections	of	this	Directors'	Report.	

An interim dividend of 10p per ordinary share was paid on 28th September 2009. A second interim dividend in respect of the year ended 

31st December 2009 has been declared by the directors. This is in place of a final dividend for 2009. The second interim dividend will be 

60.0p	per	share	and	comprises	20.0p	per	share	as	a	replacement	for	a	final	dividend	for	2009	and	40.0p	per	share	as	a	special	dividend.	

The second interim dividend will be paid on 29th March 2010 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 5th March 2010, 

with an ex-dividend date of 3rd March 2010. 

5. The Fidessa group plc Employee Benefit Trust
The Fidessa group plc Employee Benefit Trust 1997 is a discretionary trust established for the benefit of Fidessa	staff.	It	has	an	

independent,	professional	trustee,	RBC	cees	Trustee	Limited	and	the	trust	has	been	financed	by	advances	from	the	Company.	The	shares	

held by the trust rank pari passu with all the other shares in issue and have no special rights but rights to dividends have been waived  

by	the	trust	and	it	waives	its	right	to	vote	the	shares.	The	costs	of	administering	the	Employee	Benefit	Trust	are	charged	to	the	Income	

Statement	as	incurred.	The	trust	acquired	its	shares	in	the	Company	for	use	in	connection	with	the	Company’s	Performance	Related	Share	

Plan	at	the	time	of	the	placing	for	the	flotation	in	June	1997.	The	Company	Share	Option	Plan	2006	(further	details	of	which	are	set	out	

in	the	Directors’	Remuneration	Report)	was	approved	by	shareholders	at	the	Extraordinary	General	Meeting	held	in	February	2006	and	

the	Company	can	request	the	trust	to	transfer	its	shares	to	satisfy	grants	made	on	the	recommendation	of	the	Remuneration	Committee	

under this scheme too. 
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6. The Fidessa group plc Share Bonus Trust
The Fidessa group plc Share Bonus Trust is a discretionary trust established for the benefit of participants in the Fidessa group plc  

Share	Bonus	Plan.	It	has	an	independent,	professional	trustee,	Kleinwort	Benson	(Jersey)	Trustees	Limited,	and	is	currently	financed	by	

advances from the Company. All rights to dividends have been waived by the trust and it waives its right to vote the shares. The costs of 

administering	the	trust	are	charged	to	the	Income	Statement	as	incurred.	The	trust	purchases	shares	to	match	and	to	provide	a	National	

Insurance	Contribution	hedge	against	purchases	of	ordinary	shares	by	participants	in	the	Fidessa group plc Share Bonus Plan at the same 

time	as	the	participants	acquire	their	participating	shares.	Please	see	the	Directors'	Remuneration	Report	for	further	details.	

7. Research and development
The	Group	has	continued	its	commitment	to	research	and	development	and	places	a	high	priority	on	maintaining	and	improving	the	

functionality, quality and competitive position of its business software products. During the year the total expenditure on research and 

product	development	was	£23,497,000	(2008:	£20,734,000).	This	is	measured	on	a	direct	cost	only	basis	with	no	overheads	allocated.

8. Employment and health and safety policies
Fidessa is a service provider and therefore our employees are key stakeholders in our business and we aim to maintain Fidessa as an 

attractive place to work, where employees can develop successful careers for themselves. This year, for the first time, we carried out an 

employee	engagement	survey	and	invited	all	UK	staff	to	participate.	The	response	rate	was	61%	and,	given	that	this	was	the	first	time	

Fidessa has carried out such an initiative, the response rate was higher than average. We are also very pleased that the survey revealed 

that the proportion of our staff that is highly engaged is higher than the national average levels. This is reflected in staff attrition rates 

which are consistently well below the national average.

Good	and	effective	employee	communications	and	openness	with	staff	are	vital	and	the	Group	promotes	the	understanding	and	

involvement	of	all	its	employees	in	the	Group’s	business	aims	and	performance.	The	policy	of	providing	employees	with	information	

about	new	products,	operations,	and	the	performance	and	development	of	the	Group	has	continued	through	the	Group’s	intranet	site	

and	product	seminars	and	through	regular	staff	meetings	at	which	progress	updates	on	the	Group	are	given	by	the	directors	and	senior	

management. 

This year as a new global initiative we have introduced "Ask Chris" which is a way of facilitating communication between employees 

across	the	globe	directly	with	Chris	Aspinwall	so	that	they	can	ask	anonymously	any	questions	that	they	have	about	the	Group.	We	plan	

to conduct a series of similar interviews with other directors and country managers during 2010. 

We are committed to Fidessa	continuing	to	be	a	diverse	and	inclusive	place	to	work	and	the	Group’s	employment	policies,	including	the	

commitment to equal opportunity, are designed to attract, retain and motivate the very best staff regardless of colour, nationality, sex, 

marital status, sexual orientation, age, religion, disability or any other characteristic protected by law. Applications for employment by 

disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant concerned. Wherever possible the 

employment of employees who become disabled will be continued and appropriate training and career development will be offered.

The	health	and	safety	of	the	Group’s	employees,	customers	and	visitors	is	of	primary	importance.	Therefore,	the	Group	is	committed	to	

maintaining a safe and healthy working environment by managing its activities so as to avoid unnecessary or unacceptable risks. Health 

and safety audits and risk assessments, including fire risk assessments, are carried out regularly and workstation assessments are carried 

out periodically.

Any employees with questions or concerns about any type of discrimination, behaviour or practice at Fidessa are encouraged to bring 

these issues to the attention of their manager. These concerns will be investigated promptly and appropriate action taken and feedback 

given to the employee concerned. Any attempt to deter employees from raising proper concerns will be treated as a serious disciplinary 

offence.	The	Group	has	implemented	an	anonymous	reporting	box	on	its	intranet	where	employees	can	raise	any	such	concerns	which	

will be copied to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and dealt with promptly.
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9. Environmental policy.
Fidessa	group	plc	is	a	constituent	company	in	the	FTSE4Good	Index	Series.	The	purpose	of	the	FTSE4Good	Index	Series	is	to	identify	

companies	that	meet	globally	recognised	corporate	responsibility	standards.	The	Group	is	committed	to	its	environmental	responsibilities	

and	has	endeavoured	to	manage	the	effect	that	the	Group	has	on	the	environment	and	to	support	sustainability.	We	know	that	it	is	

important	to	our	staff,	our	customers	and	our	suppliers	that	we	act	responsibly.	The	Group	has	an	environmental	policy	and	it	is	regularly	

reviewed	and	communicated	through	the	Group’s	website	and	intranet.	Staff	are	encouraged	to	provide	input	on	ways	in	which	we	 

can improve by providing feedback via the intranet or via their office manager.

By	the	nature	of	the	Group's	business	as	a	software	product	and	services	office-based	environment,	it	has	no	manufacturing	facilities	and	

has no freight transportation needs which could pose major environmental issues. The greatest environmental impacts associated with 

daily operations at Fidessa are considered to be the usage of energy to facilitate the computing requirements of our data centres and our 

staff, as well as international travel. There are also our daily operations which involve the use of electrical and electronic equipment, the 

use of paper and the disposal of waste. 

The	Group	endeavours	to	have	systems	that	reduce	its	environmental	impact	in	line	with	its	business	needs.	Some	of	the	measures	it	has	

introduced	to	reduce	its	environmental	impact	are:

where practical in our worldwide offices, receptacles are made available for recycling various materials, for example paper, tins, printer •	

cartridges	etc.	In	the	UK	we	also	donate	surplus	older	models	of	computer	equipment	to	Computer	Aid	International	and	encourage	

staff to bring redundant mobile phones to work to recycle for charity;

gradually replacing personal computers where practical for terminals that only require 12 volts in comparison to personal computers •	

which run off 220-240 volts; 

in the UK offices, to conserve energy, personal computers shut down automatically overnight and at weekends, unless there are •	

specific reasons for an exception;

encouraging responsible use of energy and water and encouraging staff to report promptly any unnecessary wastage and to be vigilant •	

about leaking taps and about lights and air conditioning being left on in meeting rooms. Air conditioning in UK offices automatically 

switches off at the end of the day and this is also the case in the majority of the rest of our buildings;

less reliance on the use of paper due to default settings on office printers to encourage black and white and duplex printing where •	

practical as well as greater use of email rather than paper based correspondence and the use of email for customer Christmas greetings 

in the UK with money being donated to charity rather than sending paper cards;

bicycle storage facilities, showers and changing facilities to encourage cycling to work;•	

use of video conferencing as an alternative to overseas travel where appropriate.•	

The Audit Committee is presented each year with an environmental report on the Company's activities produced by the Operations 

Director.	The	2009	report	showed	that	the	Group's	improvement	targets	for	the	year	had	been	met.	Each	year	an	audit	covering	the	

Company's environmental and social and ethics policy is carried out. No risks were identified but several improvement suggestions as a 

result of the audit were raised, brought to the attention of management and appropriate action was taken.

10. Corporate social responsibility 
Employees	are	encouraged	to	follow	good	principles	of	social	behaviour	which	are	reflected	in	the	Group’s	social	and	ethics	policy.	This	

policy	is	regularly	updated	and	communicated	to	staff	via	the	intranet.	The	Board	believes	the	Group	has	a	relatively	low	social	impact	but	

nevertheless sees the value that can be added through corporate social responsibility. Participation in activities such as for example sports 

fixtures	with	local	communities	where	it	carries	out	its	business	helps	to	integrate	the	Group	with	local	communities.	Employees	are	

encouraged to nominate charities they would like to raise funds for and to participate actively in raising money for these charities through 

internal	fundraising	events,	several	of	which	are	typically	held	each	year.	In	addition,	the	Group	sponsors	charity	events	such	as	for	

example in the UK, the JP Morgan Chase Corporate Challenge and it also gives sponsorship to individual staff who undertake sponsored  

activities for charity. 
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Our customers are important and valued stakeholders because the business has been built on their support for our products. We 

endeavour to provide excellent levels of service and to work closely with our customers to assist them in developing their businesses. 

Although they comprise almost exclusively financial institutions on both the sell-side and the buy-side, they vary greatly in their business 

models, structures and size and have therefore experienced varying degrees of challenges caused by recent market conditions. We have 

worked closely with customers to endeavour to ensure we meet their immediate business needs and support them where practical, by 

being adaptable in finding solutions that fit their businesses, as their needs change from time to time. 

11. Donations
The	total	amount	of	charitable	donations	made	by	the	Group	during	2009	was	£27,000	(2008:	£37,000).	Donations	were	made	to	

various	charities	including	a	donation	of	£15,000	to	The	Christina	Noble	Children's	Foundation.	There	were	no	political	donations.

12. Payments to creditors
It	is	the	Company’s	and	the	Group’s	policy	to	agree	terms	and	conditions	for	their	business	transactions	with	their	suppliers.	The	Company	

and	the	Group	value	their	suppliers	and	recognise	the	benefits	to	be	derived	from	maintaining	good	relationships	with	them.	We	

therefore seek to abide by the payment terms agreed with suppliers whenever we are satisfied that the supplier has provided the goods 

and services in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions. As at 31st December 2009 the number of days of annual purchases 

represented	by	the	year-end	creditors	for	the	Company	amounted	to	24	days	(2008:	22	days)	and	for	the	Group	amounted	to	25	days	

(2008:	23	days).

13. Off-balance sheet arrangements
The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements of any significance.

14. Disclosure of information to auditors
The	directors	who	held	office	at	the	date	of	approval	of	this	Directors'	Report	confirm	that,	so	far	as	they	are	each	aware,	there	is	no	

relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have 

taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of 

that information. 

15. Auditors
In	accordance	with	Section	489	of	the	Companies	Act	2006	a	resolution	for	the	re-appointment	of	KPMG	Audit	Plc	as	auditors	of	the	

Company	is	to	be	proposed	at	the	forthcoming	Annual	General	Meeting.

By order of the Board

Susanna Freeman 

Secretary

12th February 2010
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Directors’ remuneration report

Introduction
This	report	by	the	Remuneration	Committee	has	been	approved	by	the	Board	for	submission	to	shareholders	in	accordance	with	the	

revised	Combined	Code	on	Corporate	Governance	issued	by	the	Financial	Reporting	Council	in	June	2008	(“the	Combined	Code”),	the	

requirements	of	the	Listing	Rules	of	the	UK	Listing	Authority	and	the	reporting	requirements	of	The	Large	and	Medium	sized	Companies	

and	Groups	(Accounts	and	Reports)	Regulations	2008	(“the	Regulations”).	Consistent	with	previous	years,	a	resolution	to	approve	the	

report	will	be	proposed	at	the	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Company	at	which	the	financial	statements	will	be	presented	for	approval.

The	Regulations	require	the	auditors	to	report	to	the	Company’s	members	on	the	“auditable	part”	of	the	Directors’	Remuneration	Report	

and to state whether in their opinion that part of the report has been properly prepared in accordance with s421 of the Companies Act 

2006	(together	with	the	Regulations).	The	report	has	therefore	been	divided	into	separate	sections	for	audited	and	unaudited	information.

Unaudited information

Remuneration Committee

The	Remuneration	Committee	comprises	Ron	Mackintosh,	Philip	Hardaker	and	Elizabeth	Lake,	all	non-executive	directors,	the	chairman	

of	the	Committee	being	Ron	Mackintosh.	None	of	the	members	of	the	Committee	has	any	personal	financial	interest	(other	than	possibly	

as shareholders), conflicts of interest arising from cross-directorships, or day-to-day involvement in running the business. The Committee 

is responsible for determining the remuneration, other benefits and terms of employment, including performance-related bonus schemes 

and oversight of share incentive schemes, for the executive directors and senior management. During the year, the Committee 

commissioned	an	independent	remuneration	consultancy,	Hewitt	New	Bridge	Street	("HNBS"),	to	review	the	Group's	remuneration	

philosophy,	policies	and	structures.	HNBS	has	not	provided	any	other	services	to	the	Group	and	the	terms	of	its	engagement	are	available	

on request.

The	Committee	is	mindful	of	the	recommendations	made	in	the	Walker	Review,	published	in	November	2009,	and	will	take	these	into	

consideration in its deliberations in 2010 and beyond. 

The	Committee's	terms	of	reference	are	available	at	www.fidessa.com.	The	performance	of	the	Remuneration	Committee	was	evaluated	

during the year and the conclusion was that the Committee was functioning effectively. 

Remuneration philosophy

The	Group’s	remuneration	philosophy	is	that	a	substantial	proportion	of	the	remuneration	of	the	executive	directors	and	senior	

management	should	be	performance	related,	so	that	management	is	clearly	focused	on	the	financial	performance	of	the	Group.	

Remuneration	comprises	a	relatively	lower	base	salary	and	a	higher	bonus	than	comparative	companies.	In	addition,	the	philosophy	

requires long-term as well as short-term measurement for delivery, so as to avoid excessive short-term risk taking and to encourage 

consistent performance over multiple years. As performance hurdles and measurement periods increase, the probability of an incentive 

vesting decreases and the Committee recognises that for these situations the potential rewards should be higher. 

The	Remuneration	Committee	determines	the	remuneration	of	the	executive	directors	and	the	Chairman.	When	making	its	

recommendations to the Board, the Committee will consult with the Chairman and Chief Executive, although neither is involved in 

deciding	his	own	remuneration.	The	Remuneration	Committee	also	recommends	and	monitors	the	quantum	and	structure	of	

remuneration for other members of senior management. The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee. 

The Committee reviews the performance of the individual concerned and takes account of comparative market data from other 

companies	in	the	IT	sector.	The	Remuneration	Committee	believes	that	the	executive	directors	and	senior	managers	should	be	rewarded	

fairly and competitively according to their performance and at a similar level to directors and senior managers in comparable companies 

at a level that will attract, motivate and retain individuals of an appropriate calibre to deliver value to shareholders.

This	approach	has	been	demonstrated	to	be	successful	when	viewed	in	relation	to	the	Group's	overall	performance.	The	package	of	the	

directors	and	senior	managers	is	reviewed	on	a	regular	basis	and	will	generally	contain	the	following	elements:	a	base	salary,	performance	

related bonus payments, other benefits and share-based incentives. The aim is that these elements combine to provide a balance over the 

short, medium and longer term for rewarding successful performance. 
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Remuneration structure

Short term Salary This provides certain receipt but at a relatively low level.

Bonus (1 year vesting) Bonus constitutes the higher value element of the 

short-term reward and is closely focused on successful 

performance.

Medium term Share Bonus Plan (3 year vesting) This provides limited reward at target levels similar to 

those in share schemes of many companies.

Long term Exceptional Growth Rate Incentive Plan (5 year vesting, 

developed in extensive consultation with shareholders). 

Exceptional targets requiring continuous performance 

over the long term and therefore providing higher 

reward if the targets are met. 

Basic salary

Each executive director’s basic salary is set at a below mid-market yet reasonable level and reviewed annually based on performance, 

achievement of objectives, comparative salaries and periodic reviews from the Company’s remuneration advisers. 

During	2009	the	Remuneration	Committee	took	into	account	the	uncertain	market	conditions	and,	in	seeking	to	ensure	that	

remuneration policies remained appropriate, directors' salaries for 2009 were frozen.

Bonus

The focus of remuneration for executive directors is rewarding for successful performance. The first element of this is the annual bonus. 

Chris	Aspinwall	is	entitled	to	a	cash	bonus	based	on	the	Group’s	operating	profit	excluding	any	items	that	the	Remuneration	Committee	

considers to be exceptional or inappropriate. The terms of the bonus are reviewed if there is a material acquisition in any period and it is 

subject to an upper limit of four times base salary. This year it was calculated, as in previous years, using a flat percentage of the adjusted 

operating	profit	of	the	Group	for	the	year.	

Andy Malpass is entitled to a cash bonus but in order to maintain his independence as finance director, it is not linked directly to the 

Group's	operating	profit	but	is	instead	measured	against	his	performance	against	a	series	of	financial	and	management	objectives	and	is	

also	subject	to	the	discretion	of	the	Remuneration	Committee.	His	bonus	is	capped	at	not	more	than	150%	of	base	salary.	This	year	

performance was based on the development of the finance team, systems improvements and financial and reporting targets.

Share based incentives

Share based incentives are believed to be an important form of overall compensation when judiciously combined with other forms 

of remuneration. Share based incentives are also key in aligning directors' remuneration with the interests of shareholders. The share 

incentive plans that the directors participate in, reward them for consistent performance in the medium and long term as well as 

providing limited award for performance similar to that for the sector and more substantial reward for exceptional performance. 

The	details	of	these	schemes	are	provided	further	down	in	this	Directors'	Remuneration	Report.

Other benefits

Benefits	are	very	limited	as	the	Remuneration	Committee	strongly	believes	in	focusing	directors'	remuneration	on	types	of	remuneration	

that can be aligned with the interests of shareholders. Benefits provided include the provision of medical insurance and life assurance. 

No	director	currently	participates	in	the	Group	defined	contribution	pension	scheme.

Service contracts

The contracts of service for Chris Aspinwall and Andy Malpass are for an indefinite term providing for 12 months’ notice by either party. 

These	contracts	were	entered	into	on	2nd	June	1997	and	amended	on	3rd	October	2003.	In	the	event	of	termination	the	director	is	

eligible to salary, benefits and bonus accrued during the notice period and payable in equal monthly instalments subject to the director 

using reasonable endeavours to obtain suitable alternative employment. The reason for the inclusion of bonus payments in the severance 

payment,	is	that	the	Remuneration	Committee	believes	that	it	would	be	inequitable	to	pay	only	salary	and	benefits	to	a	director	in	the	

event of termination as a good leaver as these constitute a reasonably small percentage of total annual remuneration of the directors. 
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This is due to the lower level base salary payable to the directors in comparison with other companies of a similar size. However the level 

of	bonus	that	would	be	payable	in	such	situations	is	at	the	discretion	of	the	Remuneration	Committee	and	would	be	based	on	the	

historic performance of the directors during the portion of the bonus calculation period in which they had held office.

The contract of service for John Hamer was entered into on 2nd June 1997 and is for an indefinite term providing for six months’ notice 

by either party. Philip Hardaker in February 2008 signed a new letter of appointment that provides for a further period of three years, 

subject	to	termination	by	either	party	on	one	month’s	notice.	Ron	Mackintosh	signed	a	new	letter	of	appointment	during	the	2007	

financial	year	for	a	further	term	of	three	years,	also	subject	to	termination	by	either	party	on	one	month’s	notice.	It	is	envisaged	that	Ron	

Mackintosh will be appointed for a further term of three years during 2010. Elizabeth Lake signed a letter of appointment in October 

2008 providing for a term of three years, subject to termination by either party on one month’s notice. 

There are no formal shareholding requirements in place but the executive directors maintain and have historically maintained significant 

holdings in the Company. 

Non-executive fees

The Board determines the non-executive directors’ fees. The non-executive directors are not involved in decisions about their own 

remuneration. The Chairman and non-executive directors are not eligible for performance-related remuneration or participation in 

share-based incentives. 

Non–executive	directors	receive	£36,000	per	annum	for	membership	of	the	Board	and	then	a	further	£2,000	for	membership	of	each	of	

the	Audit	Committee	and	the	Remuneration	Committee.	The	Chairman	of	the	Audit	Committee	and	the	Chairman	of	the	Remuneration	

Committee	receive	a	further	£5,000	each	for	the	additional	responsibility	entailed	in	these	roles.	

Interests in contracts

During the year no director had any interest in any contract of significance with the Company or its subsidiary undertakings other than 

the directors’ deeds of indemnity with the Company.

Total shareholder return performance graph

The	Large	and	Medium-sized	Companies	and	Groups	(Accounts	and	Reports)	Regulations	2008	require	the	presentation	of	a	

performance graph of total shareholder return compared to a broad equity market index for a period of five years. The total shareholder 

return is the share price plus dividends re-invested on the ex-dividend date over the period of the graph. The Board believes that the 

TechMARK	All-Share	Index,	of	which	Fidessa group plc is a constituent, provides the best benchmark for comparison. The Company 

share	price	and	the	TechMARK	All-Share	Index	are	both	set	to	100	at	the	start	of	the	five	year	period.
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Audited information

Directors’ remuneration

Details	of	the	remuneration	of	the	directors	are	set	out	below:	

Year ended 31st December 2009

Base fees & 
salaries 
£’000

Benefits 
£’000

Bonus 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Chairman
John Hamer 135 1 – 136

Executive
Chris Aspinwall 200 1 640 841

Andy Malpass 200 3 210 413

Non-executive
Ron	Mackintosh	 45 – – 45

Philip Hardaker 45 – – 45

Elizabeth Lake 	36 – – 	36

Total 661 5 850 1,516

Year ended 31st December 2008

Base fees & 
salaries 
£'000

Benefits 
£'000

Bonus 
£'000

Total 
£'000

Chairman
John Hamer 135 1 – 136

Executive
Chris Aspinwall 200 1 653 854

Andy Malpass 200 3 210 413

Non-executive
Ron	Mackintosh	 45 – – 45

Philip Hardaker 45 – – 45

Elizabeth Lake  9* – –  9

Total 634 5 863 1,502

* Elizabeth Lake was appointed to the Board in October 2008

Directors’ interests

The	interests	of	the	directors	and	their	families	in	the	ordinary	shares	of	the	Company,	all	of	which	were	beneficial,	were	as	follows:

2009 
Number

2008 
Number

John Hamer 353,522 458,132

Chris Aspinwall 736,649 883,897

Andy Malpass 102,560 136,249

Ron	Mackintosh 10,000 10,000

Philip Hardaker 2,000 2,000

Elizabeth Lake Nil Nil

Between 31st December 2009 and the date of this report the interests of John Hamer, Chris Aspinwall and Andy Malpass have each 

increased by 10 shares as a result of a regular monthly purchase by the Fidessa	group	plc	Share	Incentive	Plan.
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Share incentives

The	Company	has	share	option	schemes	whereby	employees	of	the	Group	are	granted	options	to	subscribe	for	ordinary	shares	in	the	

Company subject to the vesting of their awards in accordance with the terms of the schemes. The executive directors participated in the 

share option schemes up to 2000 but more recently have been restricted from the grant of share options by their participation in the 

Share	Bonus	Plan	("SBP")	and	the	Exceptional	Growth	Rate	Incentive	Plan	("EGRIP").	The	interests	of	the	directors	in	share	options	are	 

as	follows:
Number at  
1st January  

2009
Exercised  

during year

Number at  
31st December 

2009 Option price

Date  
exercisable  

from Expiry date

Andy Malpass 2,334 – 2,334 £12.85
17.08.2003- 
17.08.2004  17.08.2010

The mid-market price of the shares in the Company at 31st December 2009 was 1,175p (493p at 31st December 2008) and the range in 

the year was 520p to 1,340p.

Total permitted dilution under the Company Share Option Plan, the ("CSOP"), further detail of which is set out further down in this 

report,	is	8%	during	the	life	of	the	plan	and	at	31st	December	2009,	3.1%	of	this	had	been	used.	For	the	EGRIP	total	dilution	under	the	

life	of	the	plan	is	6%	and	the	current	potential	dilution	under	existing	awards	is	4.9%.	

The	levels	of	dilution	under	the	CSOP	and	the	EGRIP	were	put	together	in	extensive	consultation	with	shareholders	before	being	

approved	by	a	large	majority	of	the	shareholders	(EGRIP	88%	of	votes	cast	and	CSOP	89%	of	votes	cast)	at	the	Extraordinary	General	

Meeting	held	in	February	2006.	

The	interests	of	the	directors	in	the	EGRIP	and	SBP	are	as	follows:

At 1st  
January 

 2009
Awards  
in year

Called  
in year

At 31st 
December 

2009
Share price at 

award date
Earliest  

vesting date Expiry date

Chris Aspinwall

EGRIP

2006 59,000 – – 59,000 896p March 2011 2011

2007 30,500 – – 30,500 1018p Sept 2012 2013

2008 25,000 – – 25,000 920p Sept 2013 2014

2009 – 18,000 – 18,000 1,154p Sept 2014 2015

SBP

2005 – – – – – – N/A

2007 4,033 – – 4,033 910p Nov 2010 2011

2008 7,050 – – 7,050 493p Nov 2011 2012

2009 – 	2,602 – 2,602 1,144p Dec 2012 2013

Andy Malpass

EGRIP

2006 59,000 – – 59,000 896p March 2011 2011

2007 30,500 – – 30,500 1,018p Sept 2012 2013

2008 25,000 – – 25,000 920p Sept 2013 2014

2009 – 18,000 – 18,000 1,154p Sept 2014 2015

SBP

2005 6,013 – 6,013* – 660p N/A N/A

2007 3,672 – – 3,672 1,000p Oct 2010 2011

2008 6,397 – – 6,397 543p Oct 2011 2012

2009 – 2,620 – 2,620 1,136p Dec 2012 2013

*Share price at date of call was 717.5p per share.
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No	awards	lapsed	in	the	year	and	no	awards	vested	in	the	year.	The	fair	value	of	an	award	under	the	Exceptional	Growth	Rate	Incentive	

Plan can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

Share options
Share	options	are	granted	on	the	recommendation	of	the	Remuneration	Committee	on	a	discretionary	basis.	The	scheme	is	used	to	

provide long-term incentives to the recipients to assist in creating and sustaining growth in share value. The Company Performance 

Related	Share	Option	Plan	has	expired	and	the	CSOP	(as	defined	below)	is	the	current	scheme.

Company Performance Related Share Option Plan

This plan was introduced in 1997 on the float of the Company and the last grant was made in September 2005. The vesting of share 

options granted under this plan was conditional on continued employment of three and four years after the grant of the option. These share 

options were granted periodically, typically once each year to eligible employees until 2005. The Company had shareholder approval under 

this plan for share options of up to 10% of the issued ordinary share capital subsequent to the listing on the London Stock Exchange, and 

5.8%	was	used.	At	31st	December	2009	the	outstanding	share	options	under	this	scheme	represented	2.6%	of	the	issued	share	capital.

Company Share Option Plan 2006 (“the CSOP”)

Shareholders	approved	the	implementation	of	the	CSOP	at	the	Extraordinary	General	Meeting	in	February	2006	with	over	89%	of	the	

votes	cast	voting	in	favour	of	the	plan.	This	plan	superseded	the	Company	Performance	Related	Share	Option	Plan.	

All employees and full time working directors of the Company or any subsidiary (determined by the Board to be a participating 

company under the CSOP) are eligible to receive options under the CSOP; however an employee or full-time working director who 

has	received	an	award	under	the	Exceptional	Growth	Rate	Incentive	Plan	or	Share	Bonus	Plan	in	any	financial	year	will	be	ineligible	

to receive a CSOP option in that financial year. Share options granted under this plan are subject to performance conditions set by 

the	Board	taking	into	account	the	recommendation	of	the	Remuneration	Committee.	Under	the	rules	of	the	CSOP	the	

performance conditions must be objective and must relate to the overall financial performance of the Company and its subsidiaries 

over a period of at least four years commencing on the date of grant or the first day of the accounting period current at the date 

of	grant.	In	relation	to	grants	made	under	the	CSOP,	the	performance	conditions	relate	to	diluted	earnings	per	share	("EPS")	

growth and will be achieved in relation to an option if the Actual Cumulative EPS during the Measurement Period is greater than 

the Target Cumulative EPS during the Measurement Period. The Actual Cumulative EPS during the Measurement Period is the sum 

of the EPS for each financial year of the Measurement Period. The Target Cumulative EPS during the Measurement Period is the 

sum of the EPS figures obtained by increasing the Base Year EPS at the rate of 5 per cent per annum for each financial year of the 

Measurement Period. EPS under the scheme means the diluted earnings per share of the Company for any financial year before 

exceptional items (being such items which the grantor determines to be exceptional in relation to any financial year) and shall be 

calculated	by	reference	to	the	Group	Annual	Report	and	Financial	Statements	for	the	financial	year	ended	immediately	prior	to	the	

Date	of	Grant	(the	Base	Year	EPS)	and	those	calculated	from	the	four	subsequent	preliminary	results	announcements.	The	

Measurement Period is the period commencing at the beginning of the financial year in which an award is made and ending on 

the last day of the fourth consecutive financial year including the financial year in which that award was made. The performance 

conditions	can	be	waived	or	amended	if	the	Board	determines	(after	consultation	with	the	Remuneration	Committee)	that	a	

change of circumstances means that the performance conditions cannot be fairly and reasonably met. 

The number of shares that may be the subject of options granted under the CSOP is limited such that no option to subscribe shares can 

be granted under the CSOP if the number of shares subject to the option when added to the number of shares issued on the exercise of 

or remaining capable of being issued on the exercise of options granted under the CSOP during the period of ten years ending on the 

proposed date of grant would exceed 8% of the issued share capital of the Company immediately prior to the proposed date of grant. 

For the purpose of the 8% limit no account will be taken of rights to acquire shares which have been released, lapsed or otherwise 

become incapable of being exercised or of options or awards granted under any other Fidessa	employee	share	scheme.	In	addition,	

account will be taken of any shares which a trustee has a right to subscribe to satisfy options and of any treasury shares used, or to be 

used, to satisfy options or awards. 

At 31st December 2009 the used and outstanding share options under the CSOP represented 3.1% of the issued share capital. The 

Remuneration	Committee	believes	that	the	use	of	share	options	has	been	a	material	contributor	to	the	growth	and	success	of	Fidessa. 
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Share bonus plan 
At	the	2003	Annual	General	Meeting	shareholders	approved	the	creation	of	the	Fidessa	group	plc	Share	Bonus	Plan.	In	summary,	the	

plan	allows	the	Company	to	make	awards	to	executive	directors	and	senior	managers	(“a	participant”).	An	award	provides	that,	should	a	

participant purchase ordinary shares in the Company up to the value of their award, then they have the opportunity to receive a share 

bonus. A share bonus constitutes the right, subject to certain vesting conditions, to call for free matching shares. The maximum number 

of free matching shares comprised in a share bonus is equal to the number of shares purchased by the participant. The maximum value 

of shares which any one participant is permitted to acquire is limited to the value of the award. The plan rules limit the maximum value of 

individual	awards	to	£100,000.	

All awards made under the Share Bonus Plan are settled using market purchased shares.

 

For all awards from the Share Bonus Plan a participant's right to a share bonus will vest subject to and to the extent that a combination of 

four	performance	conditions	are	satisfied	as	follows:

the Company achieving compound annual growth in earnings per share in excess of defined hurdles over a period of three financial •	

years,	commencing	with	the	financial	year	in	respect	of	which	an	award	is	made.	In	relation	to	awards	made	in	any	financial	year,	the	

specified	hurdle	rates	are:	

	 (i)	 		if	compound	annual	growth	in	EPS	is	equal	to	or	greater	than	UK	retail	price	index	("RPI")	plus	3%	but	less	than	RPI	plus	4%	then	

6.25%	of	the	Share	Bonus	shall	vest;

	 (ii)	 		if	compound	annual	growth	in	EPS	is	equal	to	or	greater	than	UK	RPI	plus	4%	but	less	than	RPI	plus	5%	then	12.5%	of	the	Share	

Bonus shall vest;

	 (iii)	 	if	compound	annual	growth	in	EPS	equal	to	or	greater	than	UK	RPI	plus	5%	but	less	than	RPI	plus	6%	then	18.75%	of	the	Share	

Bonus shall vest;

	 (iv)	 	if	compound	annual	growth	in	EPS	equal	to	or	greater	than	UK	RPI	plus	6%	then	25%	of	the	Share	Bonus	shall	vest;

the Company achieving an objective business development target. The nature of this target will not, necessarily, be a measure of the •	

financial	performance	of	the	Company	and	will	be	determined	by	the	Remuneration	Committee	from	time	to	time.	The	specific	target	

has varied for different awards; some have been focused on the share price of a particular market and other awards have been a 

growth	measurement	for	an	element	of	revenue.	If	this	condition	is	fully	satisfied,	then	25%	of	the	Share	Bonus	will	vest;	

the	Company	achieving	compound	annual	growth	in	total	shareholder	return	("TSR"),	the	share	price	plus	the	cumulative	dividends	•	

paid over the period, in excess of defined hurdles over a period of three financial years commencing with the financial year in respect 

of	which	an	award	has	been	made.	In	relation	to	awards	made	the	specified	hurdle	rates	have	been:

	 (i)	 if	compound	annual	growth	in	TSR	is	more	than	3%	but	less	than	or	equal	to	5%	then	6.25%	of	the	Share	Bonus	shall	vest;

	 (ii)		 if	compound	annual	growth	in	TSR	is	more	than	5%	but	less	than	or	equal	to	7%	then	12.5%	of	the	Share	Bonus	shall	vest;

	 (iii)		if	compound	annual	growth	in	TSR	is	more	than	7%	but	less	than	or	equal	to	9%	then	18.75%	of	the	Share	Bonus	shall	vest;

	 (iv)			if	compound	annual	growth	in	TSR	is	more	than	9%	then	25%	of	the	Share	Bonus	shall	vest;	and

continued	employment	within	the	Group	until	the	third	anniversary	of	the	date	on	which	the	participant	purchased	the	shares	relating	•	

to	a	particular	award.	If	this	condition	is	satisfied,	then	25%	of	the	Share	Bonus	shall	vest.

The final service performance condition is an overriding performance condition. Therefore, it must be satisfied in order for any of the 

other	performance	conditions	to	be	satisfied.	The	Remuneration	Committee	will	set	performance	conditions	in	accordance	with	the	

structure set out above at the time awards are made to participants. Performance conditions relating to awards made in relation to each 

subsequent financial year cannot be less challenging than those relating to the immediately preceding financial year.

In	exceptional	circumstances,	where	events	occur	which	cause	the	Remuneration	Committee	to	reasonably	believe	that	some	or	all	of	the	

performance conditions relating to an award are no longer fair (taking into account the original purpose of the performance condition(s)), 

then	the	Remuneration	Committee	may	procure	that	a	recommendation	be	made	to	the	trustee	of	the	plan	for	the	performance	

condition	to	be	amended	or	waived	in	such	manner	as	the	Remuneration	Committee	believes	to	be	fair	and	reasonable	provided	that	the	

amended performance condition is not easier or more difficult to achieve than the original performance condition was considered to be 

when it was first set. 
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Where	a	change	of	control	event	occurs	prior	to	the	vesting	of	a	share	bonus,	the	Remuneration	Committee	will	take	into	account	the	

amount of progress made by the Company towards achieving the performance conditions as at the time of the change of control, the 

extent and likelihood of the performance conditions being satisfied by the date on which the share bonus would have vested in the 

absence	of	the	change	of	control	event	occurring	and	any	other	relevant	factors	which	the	Remuneration	Committee	considers,	in	its	

absolute discretion, to be relevant (such as time elapsed since an award was made).

The	operation	of	the	Share	Bonus	Plan	has	been	reviewed	during	the	year	by	the	Remuneration	Committee	and	the	level	of	grants	and	

the	performance	conditions	attached	to	the	plan	are	considered	by	the	Remuneration	Committee	to	be	appropriate	to	the	Company’s	

current situation and in line with the overall remuneration policy. 

It	is	anticipated	that	the	2007	award	will	vest	fully	but	it	is	too	early	to	determine	whether	subsequent	awards	will	vest.	Each	award	to	

date that has vested, has done so fully. 

Exceptional Growth Rate Incentive Plan
In	2005	the	Remuneration	Committee	and	its	external	advisers	reviewed	the	Company’s	share	incentive	schemes	as	a	whole	and	as	a	

result	they	formulated	the	Exceptional	Growth	Rate	Incentive	Plan	(“the	EGRIP”)	which	was	voted	on	by	the	shareholders	at	the	

Extraordinary	General	Meeting	of	the	Company	in	February	2006	with	over	88%	of	the	votes	cast	approving	the	adoption	of	the	plan.	 

All	executive	directors	of	the	Company	are	eligible	to	receive	awards	under	the	EGRIP	as	are	any	employees	of	the	Group	selected	by	the	

Remuneration	Committee.	However,	an	executive	director	or	selected	employee	who	has	received	an	award	under	the	CSOP	in	any	

financial	year	will	be	ineligible	to	receive	an	EGRIP	award	in	that	financial	year.	An	EGRIP	award	(“Award”	or	“Awards”)	represents	a	right	

to	acquire	(i.e.	“call”	for)	shares	in	the	Company	at	the	call	price	subject	to	the	terms	and	conditions	of	the	EGRIP.	Under	the	rules	of	the	

EGRIP,	Awards	may	only	be	made	in	relation	to	the	financial	years	ending	31st	December	2006,	2007,	2008,	2009	and	2010.

Share price target

The first performance condition requires the average Company share price plus dividends reinvested over the five year period 

commencing on the date on which an Award is made (calculated using the daily closing price on each trading day over the five years) to 

be greater than the average derived if the share price were to increase on a uniform basis of 20% per annum compound growth over the 

same five year period. The starting share price is the average share price plus dividends reinvested for the 12 months prior to the date on 

which the Award is made. 

EPS target

The second performance condition requires the Company’s cumulative diluted earnings per share before any items which are deemed to 

be exceptional (EPS) over the five financial years commencing with the financial year in which an Award is made to be greater than the 

equivalent total achieved over a five year period by applying a growth rate of 10% per annum to the EPS achieved in the year prior to  

the Award.

TSR Sector-Relative Underpinning

The	third	performance	condition	requires	the	Company’s	annualised	total	shareholder	return	(TSR)	over	the	five	year	period	commencing	

on	an	Award	date	to	be	greater	than	the	annualised	equivalent	achieved	by	the	FTSE	techMARK	All-Share	Index	TSR,	during	the	same	five	

year period, plus 5%.

Each Award is personal to the participant and may not be transferred, assigned or charged and shall become immediately void on the 

bankruptcy of the participant.

Call price

The	call	price	per	share	subject	to	an	Award	is	the	nominal	value	of	a	share	(or	such	higher	price	as	set	by	the	grantor).	In	the	Awards	

made during the current financial year the call price of a share is the nominal value of a share, i.e. 10 pence and it is anticipated that the 

call price will be the same under future Awards.
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Plan limits

The maximum number of shares subject to Awards made to any one participant in a financial year will be limited to 15% of the 

maximum share allocation for that year.

The maximum share allocation (being the maximum number of shares in relation to which Awards may be made) for each financial  

year	will	be:

Year ended Maximum Allocation Awards made

31st	December	2006 1.6%	of	the	total	issued	share	capital	of	the	Company	 523,512

31st December 2007 1.4% of the total issued share capital of the Company 483,940

31st December 2008 1.2% of the total issued share capital of the Company 415,400

31st December 2009 1% of the total issued share capital of the Company 357,250

31st December 2010 0.8% of the total issued share capital of the Company N/A

Cessation of employment

If	a	participant	ceases	to	be	an	employee	of	the	Group	prior	to	the	end	of	the	period	over	which	the	performance	conditions	are	measured	in	

relation to any of his subsisting Awards, those Awards will lapse upon such cessation. However, where a participant ceases to be an employee 

after the end of the period over which the performance conditions are measured in relation to any of his subsisting Awards, those Awards will not 

lapse	and	will	continue	to	subsist	under	the	terms	and	conditions	of	the	EGRIP.

Change of control

If	a	change	of	control	of	the	Company	occurs	(including	a	takeover,	scheme	of	arrangement	or	voluntary	winding-up	of	the	Company)	subsisting	

unvested Awards will become vested subject to the satisfaction of modified performance conditions which take into account the period of time 

which has elapsed since the relevant date of Award and the Company's performance up to the time of the change of control. The extent to which 

Awards vest will be pro-rated to reflect the time that has elapsed from the date of the Award to the date on which a change of control event occurs.

All vested Awards will become exercisable within specified periods of time following the relevant change of control event.

Due	to	the	fact	that	no	further	awards	may	be	made	under	the	EGRIP	after	11	February	2011,	the	Committee	plans	to	conduct	a	review	of	long-

term incentive provisions during 2010 and expects to consult with shareholders during the year on this. 

ESG
The	Remuneration	Committee	considers	corporate	performance	on	environmental,	social	and	governance	issues	("ESG	issues")	when	setting	

remuneration	of	executive	directors.	It	has	endeavoured	to	ensure	that	the	incentive	structure	for	senior	management	is	appropriate	in	that	it	does	

not	raise	ESG	issues	or	risks	by	motivating	excessive	risk	taking	or	other	irresponsible	behaviour	and	does	not	provide	for	reward	in	the	event	of	

failure both at Board level and senior management level. 

Approval
This	report	was	approved	by	the	Board	on	12th	February	2010	and	signed	on	its	behalf	by:

Ron Mackintosh 

Chairman	of	the	Remuneration	Committee
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Corporate governance

Compliance with Combined Code 
Fidessa	is	committed	to	high	standards	of	corporate	governance	and	is	subject	to	the	revised	Combined	Code	on	Corporate	Governance	

issued	by	the	Financial	Reporting	Council	in	June	2008	(the	"Combined	Code"),	a	copy	of	which	is	available	on	the	Financial	Reporting	

Council	website	www.frc.org.uk.	In	respect	of	the	year	ended	31st	December	2009	the	Company	has	complied	with	the	requirements	 

of	Section	1	of	The	Combined	Code	except	for	part	of	the	year	in	the	composition	of	the	Audit	Committee	and	the	Remuneration	

Committee each of which had only two independent non-executive directors until November 2009. During the year the Board reviewed  

the constitution of these Committees and decided that it was appropriate to gain the experience and views of a third independent 

non-executive director on these Committees and accordingly we are pleased to report, Elizabeth Lake was invited to and agreed to  

become a member of both of these Committees.

Share capital
Details of the called-up and fully paid share capital of the Company are set out in the notes to the financial statements. The rights and 

obligations attaching to the Company’s shares and the powers of the directors are set out in the Articles of Association, copies of which  

can be obtained from Companies House. There are no restrictions on the voting rights attached to the Company’s shares and no person 

holds securities in the Company carrying special rights with regard to control of the Company. The Company’s Articles of Association may 

be amended by a special resolution of the Company’s shareholders. 

The appointment and replacement of directors is governed by the Articles of Association of the Company and the Nominations  

Committee	Terms	of	Reference.	

Principal shareholders
The following have notified the Company as being interested in 3% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at  

12th February 2010. The last holding notified to the Company is below. 

Ordinary 10p 
shares

Percentage of 
issued share 

capital 

Aegon	UK	plc	Group	of	Companies 3,266,590 9.1%

Standard	Life	Investments	Limited 2,656,738 7.4%

Blackrock,	Inc. 2,239,395 6.3%

Lindsell Train Limited 1,932,844 5.4%

FIL	Limited 1,755,160 4.9%

Schroders plc 1,709,867 4.8%

CJ Sharples 1,450,352 4.0%

Lloyds	TSB	Group	Plc 1,431,635 4.0%

Legal	&	General	Group	Plc 1,425,065 4.0%

DA Taylor 1,153,049 3.2%

Significant agreements – change of control
The	only	significant	agreements	with	change	of	control	provisions	are	the	Company’s	share	option	schemes	and	the	Exceptional	Growth	

Rate	Incentive	Plan	and	Share	Bonus	Plan.	Under	the	share	option	schemes	and	the	Share	Bonus	Plan,	on	a	change	of	control	of	the	

Company, options and awards would vest in full subject to the satisfaction of any performance conditions at the time. Part of the 

Exceptional	Growth	Rate	Incentive	Plan	awards	would	also	vest	subject	to	the	satisfaction	of	any	performance	conditions	at	the	time	but	

these would be pro-rated. The Company does not have agreements with any director that would provide compensation for loss of office 

resulting from a takeover.

Directors’ report – corporate governance
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Authority to purchase own shares 
At	the	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Company	held	on	28th	April	2009	shareholders	approved	a	general	authority	for	the	Company	to	

re-purchase	up	to	3,516,943	ordinary	shares	in	the	market.	This	represented	approximately	10	per	cent.	of	the	Company’s	issued	ordinary	

share capital at the time. No purchase of shares has been made pursuant to this authority, and there is no present intention to use such 

authority, but the directors consider it desirable that the possibility of making such purchases under appropriate circumstances remains 

available.	A	similar	authority	will	be	requested	at	the	forthcoming	Annual	General	Meeting,	again	limited	to	a	maximum	of	10%	of	the	

Company’s issued share capital. The Board intends only to exercise this authority if it believes that it will lead to an increase in earnings per 

share for the remaining shareholders.

The Board
The Company is controlled through the Board, which at 31st December 2009 comprised the Chairman, two executive directors and three 

non-executive	directors	whose	Board	and	Committee	responsibilities	are	set	out	in	the	table	below:

Board Audit Remuneration Nominations

John Hamer Chairman Chairman – – Chairman

Chris Aspinwall Chief Executive Member – – –

Andy Malpass Finance Director Member – – –

Ron	Mackintosh Senior	Independent	Non-Executive	Director Member Member Chairman Member

Philip Hardaker Independent	Non-Executive	Director Member Chairman Member Member

Elizabeth Lake Independent	Non-Executive	Director Member Member Member –

After	formal	review	the	Board	has	concluded	that	Ron	Mackintosh,	Elizabeth	Lake	and	Philip	Hardaker	are	independent.	In	coming	to	this	

opinion	the	Board	considered	the	character	and	judgement	of	the	individuals	concerned	and	the	fact	that	they: 

Have	never	been	an	employee	of	the	Group;•	

Have	never	had	a	material	business	relationship	with	the	Group;•	

Do	not	receive	any	remuneration	from	the	Group	other	than	their	non-executive	director	fees;•	

Do	not	have	close	family	ties	with	other	directors	or	senior	management	of	the	Group	or	with	advisers	to	the	Group;•	

Have	no	significant	links	with	other	directors	of	the	Group	through	involvement	with	other	companies	now	or	in	the	past;•	

Do not represent a material shareholder of the Company; and•	

Have not served on the Board of the Company for more than nine years.•	

The Board meets formally on a regular basis to monitor risk and trading performance and to review forecasts strategy and policy, to  

consider key projects and major investments and to oversee appropriate shareholder reporting. During 2009 the Board met on ten 

scheduled	occasions	for	this	purpose.	In	addition,	impromptu	Board	Meetings	occur	to	consider	specific	issues	as	and	when	necessary.	

Several meetings were held by the Chairman with the non-executive directors without the executive directors present. The attendance  

of	individual	directors	at	Board	meetings	and	Committee	meetings	is	presented	in	the	table	below:

Board meetings 
attended

Audit Committee 
meetings attended

Remuneration	
Committee  
meetings attended

Nominations 
Committee  
meetings attended

John Hamer 10/10 – – 1/1

Chris Aspinwall 10/10 – – –

Andy Malpass 10/10 – – –

Ron	Mackintosh 10/10 4/4 5/5 1/1

Philip Hardaker 10/10 4/4 5/5 1/1

Elizabeth Lake 10/10 1/1* –* –

*Elizabeth Lake was appointed to these Committees in November 2009.

The	Board	is	responsible	for	the	Group’s	system	of	corporate	governance	and	delegates	operational	control	to	the	executive	directors.	 

At each board meeting it considers strategic issues, finance, business development, governance and risks facing the business. There is a 

formal	schedule	of	matters	reserved	for	the	decision	of	the	Board	that	covers	key	areas	of	the	Group’s	affairs.	The	schedule	includes	
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approval	of	the	Annual	Report	and	any	other	financial	statements,	the	adoption	of	the	Group’s	budgets	or	business	plans,	decisions	on	

acquisitions and disposals, material financial commitments and the release of inside information. Certain matters require Board approval 

and other matters may be approved by senior management but notification to the Board is required. The schedule of matters reserved for 

the Board is reviewed annually. A procedure exists to allow the directors to seek independent legal advice in respect of their duties at the 

Company’s expense where the circumstances are appropriate. No such advice was sought by any director during the year. All directors 

have access to the Company Secretary for her advice and services. All directors are obliged to submit themselves for re-election at least 

every three years.

Performance evaluation
There was a formal evaluation of the performance of the Board during 2009. This consisted of an internally run review conducted by the 

Chairman with the Company Secretary. The performance evaluation questionnaire was based on the Combined Code process and it 

covered the areas of board structure, effectiveness, committees, information and communication. Questionnaires were completed by the 

directors and submitted for discussion. The feedback generated from the questionnaires was discussed by the Board together with 

potential improvements that could be made. The conclusion was reached that the Board is operating effectively. A review of the 

Chairman by the non-executive directors without the executives present was also carried out.

There is a formal written policy on the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive such that their roles are 

complementary to each other. The Chairman is principally responsible for leading the board, promoting constructive debate amongst the 

board and facilitating communication with shareholders as well as overseeing strategy. Chris Aspinwall as the Chief Executive is 

responsible	for	all	aspects	of	the	operation	of	the	Group's	business	and	he	leads	and	develops	the	strategy	plans	for	the	business	and	

identifies risk factors. 

Training and professional development
All directors on joining the Company undergo an induction process and receive ongoing updates to improve their skills and knowledge 

according to their personal and external needs. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the board and updating it on 

governance matters. 

Conflicts of interest
Under	the	Companies	Act	2006	a	statutory	duty	on	directors	to	avoid	conflicts	of	interest	came	into	effect	from	1st	October	2008.	The	

Company's Articles of Association were amended during the year to allow the directors to consider and if they deem fit to authorise 

conflicts of interest. The Articles of Association set out the process for authorisation of such conflicts and any such conflicts will be 

recorded in the board minutes and maintained on a register which will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Nominations Committee 

and by the Board. No conflicts arose during 2009. 

Committees of the Board
In	addition	to	the	Remuneration	Committee,	the	details	of	which	are	in	the	Directors’	Remuneration	Report,	the	audit	and	nominations	

committees	deal	with	specific	aspects	of	the	Group’s	affairs	and	their	terms	of	reference	can	be	found	on	the	Company’s	website:	 

www.fidessa.com

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Philip Hardaker who, in line with the Combined Code, has recent and relevant financial experience as 

a	former	partner	of	KPMG	and	through	his	other	current	appointments.	In	addition	to	Philip,	the	Committee	comprises	Ron	Mackintosh	

and, since November 2009, Elizabeth Lake; the Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee. 

The Committee has met four times with the independent external auditors during the year. The Chairman and executive directors were 

invited to attend for part of these meetings. The Committee reviews the interim and annual reports, reports from the external auditors 

and scope and representation letters in respect of the audit and reviews undertaken by the auditors as well as the auditors’ remuneration 

and the overall effectiveness of the audit process. 
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There	are	no	contractual	obligations	that	oblige	the	Company	to	appoint	KPMG	to	conduct	the	annual	audit.	KPMG	has	been	the	

Company's auditors since the Company floated in 1997. There is no agreed timescale requiring formal tendering of the audit 

appointment, however the Committee reviews on an annual basis the performance, expertise and independence of the external auditors 

and	maintains	appropriate	contact	with	potential	alternative	suppliers	for	audit	and	accountancy	advisory	services.	In	addition,	the	Board	

receives written confirmation from the auditors of any relationships they have which may cause a conflict of interest, together with a 

declaration from them that they consider themselves to be independent. The Board has approved the auditors undertaking certain other 

limited activities but any assignment outside these activities requires separate Board approval. Following its review, the Board is satisfied 

that	independence	has	been	maintained	and	it	is	satisfied	that	it	is	appropriate	to	continue	with	the	reappointment	of	KPMG	as	the	

Company's auditors. For details of the auditors’ fees please refer to the notes to the financial statements.

The Committee reviews the terms of reference, programme, scope of work and reports of the internal audit function. The Committee 

focuses the activity of function on those areas where it considers there to be the greatest risks. The Company engages an external 

consultant,	who	reports	directly	to	the	Audit	Committee	to	conduct	the	internal	audits	of	the	Group's	operations.	The	Audit	Committee	

has considered the independence of the internal audit function and is satisfied that independence has been maintained.

The	Audit	Committee	also	reviews	annually	the	environmental	report,	the	overall	results	of	ISO	9001:2000	(TickIT)	compliance	and	the	

results	of	independent	SAS	70	audits.	The	Committee’s	terms	of	reference	are	available	on	the	Group's	website	at	www.fidessa.com	and	

set out the Committee’s responsibilities.

Nominations Committee

The	Nominations	Committee,	which	is	chaired	by	John	Hamer,	comprises	John	Hamer,	Philip	Hardaker	and	Ron	Mackintosh	and	is	

therefore	compliant	with	the	requirements	of	the	Combined	Code.	Its	role	is	to	review	the	structure	of	the	Board	and	to	agree	succession	

planning as set out in the Nominations Committee terms of reference. The procedure for new appointments incorporates the use of 

independent	recruitment	consultants	where	appropriate.	The	Committee’s	terms	of	reference	are	available	on	the	Group's	website	at	

www.fidessa.com and set out the Committee’s responsibilities. 

Dialogue with shareholders
The Company values the views of its shareholders and recognises their interests in the Company’s strategy and performance. The Chief 

Executive and Finance Director hold briefing meetings with analysts and institutional shareholders, primarily following the announcement 

of	interim	and	preliminary	results	but	also	at	other	times	during	the	year	as	may	be	suitable.	In	addition,	this	year	an	investor	day	was	held	

where	analysts	and	major	investors	were	invited	to	the	Group's	London	office	to	view	presentations	on	the	Group,	its	products	and	

services and its progress and to enable them to have the chance to meet members of the management team and to ask any questions 

about	the	Group.	The	Chief	Executive	and	Finance	Director	provide	feedback	to	the	Board	from	meetings	with	shareholders.	The	Board	

also	obtains	formal	feedback	on	the	Group	and	management	from	analysts	and	institutional	shareholders	through	the	Company’s	PR	

adviser	and	financial	adviser.	Communication	with	private	investors	is	through	the	Annual	Report,	the	Interim	Report	and	the	Annual	

General	Meeting.	Financial	and	other	information	is	made	available	on	the	Company’s	website,	www.fidessa.com,	which	is	regularly	

updated.	The	Chairman	and	Senior	Independent	Non-Executive	Director	also	meet	with	major	shareholders	as	and	when	there	is	a	

requirement to do so.

Going concern
The	Group’s	business	activities	and	position	in	its	market	are	described	in	the	Overview	and	Market	Review.	The	financial	position	of	the	

Group,	its	cash	flows,	liquidity	position	and	borrowing	facilities	are	described	in	the	notes	to	the	Finance	Review.	In	addition,	the	notes	to	

the	financial	statements	include	the	Group’s	objectives,	policies	and	processes	for	managing	its	capital;	its	financial	risk	management	

objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk. Having reviewed the 

future	plans	and	projections	for	the	business	and	its	current	financial	position,	the	directors	believe	that	the	Group	is	well	placed	to	

manage	its	business	risks	successfully	despite	the	current	economic	uncertainties.	The	Group	has	considerable	financial	resources,	no	

borrowings, a high level of recurring revenue and a very broad spread of customers. As a consequence of these factors and having 

reviewed	the	forecasts	for	the	coming	year,	the	directors	have	a	reasonable	expectation	that	the	Group	has	adequate	resources	to	

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, a period of not less than 12 months from the date of this report. For this 

reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.
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Internal control
The	Board	is	ultimately	responsible	for	the	Group’s	system	of	internal	control	and	for	reviewing	its	effectiveness.	However,	such	a	system	

is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not 

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The	Combined	Code	requires	that	directors	review	the	effectiveness	of	the	Group’s	system	of	internal	controls,	including	those	of	an	

operational and compliance nature, as well as internal financial controls. The Board is of the view that there is an ongoing process for 

identifying,	evaluating	and	managing	the	Group’s	significant	risks	and	that	this	has	been	in	place	for	the	period	under	review	and	up	to	

the	date	of	approval	of	the	Annual	Report.	The	Group	has	established	control	processes	and	procedures	to	ensure	compliance	with	the	

best	practice	governance	provisions	as	advocated	by	the	Turnbull	Guidance.	The	Board’s	agenda	includes	a	regular	item	for	consideration	

of risk and control, and any actions that may be considered necessary, and it receives reports thereon from the executive directors. 

Management is responsible for the identification and evaluation of significant risks applicable to their areas of business together with the 

design and operation of suitable internal controls. These risks are assessed on a continual basis and may be associated with a variety of 

internal or external sources including competition, control breakdowns, disruption in information systems, natural catastrophe and 

regulatory requirements. A process of control assessment and reporting is established and defined in Fidessa plc's Quality Management 

System.	This	system	is	independently	audited	on	a	regular	basis	and	was	successfully	audited	to	ISO	9001:2000	(TickIT)	twice	this	year.	

The UK and US operations also successfully completed the SAS70 audits during the year. The directors believe this audit is particularly 

important to our US clients in enabling them to satisfy their Sarbanes Oxley requirements when using a Fidessa solution. The treasury 

function operates within guidelines established by the Board. 

A comprehensive budgetary process is completed once a year and is reviewed and approved by the Board. An updated forecast is 

regularly prepared throughout the year. The operating results are reported monthly to the Board and compared to the budget and latest 

forecast as appropriate. The Company presents financial statements to its shareholders twice a year.

For	details	of	the	Group’s	financial	risk	and	policies	together	with	its	policy	with	regard	to	the	use	of	financial	instruments,	please	refer	to	

the	Finance	Review	section	of	the	Directors'	Report	and	in	the	notes	to	the	financial	statements.	

Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the financial statements 
The	directors	are	responsible	for	preparing	the	Annual	Report	and	the	Group	and	Company	financial	statements	in	accordance	with	

applicable law and regulations.

Company	law	requires	the	directors	to	prepare	Group	and	Company	financial	statements	for	each	financial	year.	Under	that	law	they	are	

required	to	prepare	the	Group	financial	statements	in	accordance	with	IFRSs	as	adopted	by	the	EU	and	applicable	law	and	have	elected	to	

prepare the Company financial statements on the same basis.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of 

the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Group	and	Company	and	of	their	profit	or	loss	for	that	period.	In	preparing	each	of	the	Group	and	Company	

financial	statements,	the	directors	are	required	to: 

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;•	

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;•	

state	whether	they	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	IFRSs	as	adopted	by	the	EU;	and•	

prepare	the	financial	statements	on	the	going	concern	basis	unless	it	is	inappropriate	to	presume	that	the	Group	and	the	Company	will	•	

continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions 

and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that its financial 

statements	comply	with	the	Companies	Act	2006.	They	have	general	responsibility	for	taking	such	steps	as	are	reasonably	open	to	them	

to	safeguard	the	assets	of	the	Group	and	to	prevent	and	detect	fraud	and	other	irregularities.
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Under	applicable	law	and	regulations,	the	directors	are	also	responsible	for	preparing	a	Directors'	Report,	Directors'	Remuneration	Report	

and	Corporate	Governance	Statement	that	complies	with	that	law	and	those	regulations.

The	directors	are	responsible	for	the	maintenance	and	integrity	of	the	corporate	and	financial	information	included	on	the	Group's	

website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 

jurisdictions.

We	confirm	that	to	the	best	of	our	knowledge: 

the	financial	statements,	prepared	in	accordance	with	IFRSs	as	adopted	by	the	EU	and	applicable	law,	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	•	

assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a 

whole; and

the directors' report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and •	

its subsidiaries included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that 

they face.

On behalf of the Board

Susanna Freeman

Secretary

12th February 2010

Directors’ report – corporate governance continued
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We have audited the financial statements of Fidessa group plc for the year ended 31st December 2009. The financial reporting framework 

that	has	been	applied	in	their	preparation	is	applicable	law	and	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	(IFRSs)	as	adopted	by	the	EU	

and,	as	regards	the	parent	company	financial	statements,	as	applied	in	accordance	with	the	provisions	of	the	Companies	Act	2006.

This	report	is	made	solely	to	the	Company's	members,	as	a	body,	in	accordance	with	Chapter	3	of	Part	16	of	the	Companies	Act	2006.	

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in 

an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone 

other than the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
As	explained	more	fully	in	the	Directors'	Responsibilities	Statement	the	directors	are	responsible	for	the	preparation	of	the	financial	

statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance 

with	applicable	law	and	International	Standards	on	Auditing	(UK	and	Ireland).	Those	standards	require	us	to	comply	with	the	Auditing	

Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB's website at www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/UKP. 

Opinion on financial statements
In	our	opinion: 

the	financial	statements	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	of	the	Group's	and	of	the	parent	company's	affairs	as	at	31st	December	•	

2009	and	of	the	Group's	profit	for	the	year	then	ended;

the	Group	financial	statements	have	been	properly	prepared	in	accordance	with	IFRSs	as	adopted	by	the	EU;	•	

the	parent	company	financial	statements	have	been	properly	prepared	in	accordance	with	IFRSs	as	adopted	by	the	EU	and	as	applied	in	•	

accordance	with	the	provisions	of	the	Companies	Act	2006;	and

the	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	the	requirements	of	the	Companies	Act	2006	and,	as	regards	the	•	

Group	financial	statements,	Article	4	of	the	IAS	Regulation.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In	our	opinion: 

the	part	of	the	Directors'	Remuneration	Report	to	be	audited	has	been	properly	prepared	in	accordance	with	the	Companies	Act	2006;	•	

and

the	information	given	in	the	Directors'	Report	for	the	financial	year	for	which	the	financial	statements	are	prepared	is	consistent	with	•	

the financial statements.
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36 Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fidessa group plc continued

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We	have	nothing	to	report	in	respect	of	the	following:

Under	the	Companies	Act	2006	we	are	required	to	report	to	you	if,	in	our	opinion: 

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received •	

from branches not visited by us; or

the	parent	company	financial	statements	and	the	part	of	the	Directors'	Remuneration	Report	to	be	audited	are	not	in	agreement	with	•	

the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or•	

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.•	

Under	the	Listing	Rules	we	are	required	to	review: 

the directors' statement, in relation to going concern; and•	

the	part	of	the	Corporate	Governance	Statement	relating	to	the	company's	compliance	with	the	nine	provisions	of	the	June	2008	•	

Combined Code specified for our review.

Paul Gresham

for	and	on	behalf	of	KPMG	Audit	Plc,	Statutory	Auditor

Chartered Accountants

1	Forest	Gate

Brighton	Road

Crawley

RH11	9PT

12th February 2010 
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Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st December 2009
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st December 2009

Note
2009

£’000
2008
£’000

Revenue 4 238,506 189,102

Operating expenses before amortisation of acquisition intangibles, patent dispute 
settlement and Lehman receivable write off 5 (202,885) (162,735)

Other operating income 388 392

Operating profit before amortisation of acquisition intangibles, patent dispute 
settlement and Lehman receivable write off 36,009 26,759

Patent dispute settlement 5 – (980)

Lehman receivable write off 5 – (626)

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (6,074) (2,631)

Operating profit 29,935 22,522

Finance income – bank and other 8 233 826

Finance income – gain from Touchpaper 8,15 976 13,075

Total finance income 1,209 13,901

Finance cost – notional interest on contingent consideration (131) (465)

Profit before income tax 31,013 35,958

Income	tax	expense 9 (10,001) (8,293)

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 21,012 27,665

Basic earnings per share 10 59.8p 80.1p

Diluted earnings per share 10 58.9p 79.1p

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st December 2009

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st December 2009

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

Profit for the year from the income statement 21,012 27,665

Currency translation adjustments (2,418) 5,399

Total comprehensive income for the year 18,594 33,064
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38 Consolidated balance sheet at 31st December 2009

Note
2009

£’000
2008
£’000

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 11 29,478 31,317

Intangible	assets 12,13,14 78,158 77,150

Deferred tax assets 16 5,046 3,184

Total non-current assets 112,682 111,651

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 17 71,418 60,636

Income	tax	receivable 1,443 230

Cash and cash equivalents 45,475 33,146

Total current assets 118,336 94,012

Total assets 231,018 205,663

Equity

Issued	capital 18 3,581 3,517

Share premium 18,219 17,020

Merger reserve 18 17,938 13,947

Cumulative translation adjustment 18 1,522 3,940

Retained	earnings 82,055 65,863

Total equity 123,315 104,287

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Other payables 19 9,132 553

Deferred tax liabilities 16 5,496 8,425

Total non-current liabilities 14,628 8,978

Current liabilities

Acquisition consideration 20 – 9,987

Trade and other payables 19 87,081 80,320

Current income tax liabilities 5,994 2,091

Total current liabilities 93,075 92,398

Total liabilities 107,703 101,376

Total equity and liabilities 231,018 205,663

Approved by the board of directors on 12th February 2010 and signed on its behalf by

A Malpass
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39Company balance sheet at 31st December 2009

Note
2009

£’000
2008
£’000

Assets

Non-current assets

Investments 15 65,607 65,569

Deferred tax assets 16 664 186

Total non-current assets 66,271 65,755

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 17 2,311 12,511

Income	tax	receivable 1,601 934

Cash and cash equivalents 18,362 13,047

Total current assets 22,274 26,492

Total assets 88,545 92,247

Equity

Issued	capital 18 3,581 3,517

Share premium 18,219 17,020

Merger reserve 18 17,938 13,947

Retained	earnings 38,472 44,664

Total equity 78,210 79,148

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Other payables 19 404 553

Total non-current liabilities 404 553

Current liabilities

Acquisition consideration 20 – 9,987

Trade and other payables 19 9,931 2,559

Total current liabilities 9,931 12,546

Total liabilities 10,335 13,099

Total equity and liabilities 88,545 92,247

Approved by the board of directors on 12th February 2010 and signed on its behalf by

A Malpass
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40 Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Note

Issued	
capital
£’000

Share 
premium
£’000

Merger 
reserve 
£’000

Translation 
reserve 
£’000

Retained	
earnings 
£’000

Total  
equity 
£’000

Balance at 1st January 2008 3,463 16,488 9,298 (1,459) 44,147 71,937

Profit for the period – – – – 27,665 27,665

Other comprehensive income for the period – – – 5,399 – 5,399

Total comprehensive income for the period – – – 5,399 27,665 33,064

Issue	of	shares	–	acquisition 20 43 – 4,649 – – 4,692

Issue	of	shares	–	exercise	of	options 18 11 532 – – – 543

Employee share incentive charges 5 – – – – 1,141 1,141

Current tax recognised direct to equity – – – – 485 485

Deferred tax recognised direct to equity – – – – (463) (463)

Purchase of own shares by employee share trust – – – – (473) (473)

Sale of own shares by employee share trust – – – – 112 112

Dividends paid 18 – – – – (6,751) (6,751)

Balance at 31st December 2008 3,517 17,020 13,947 3,940 65,863 104,287

Profit for the period – – – – 21,012 21,012

Other comprehensive income for the period – – – (2,418) – (2,418)

Total comprehensive income for the period – – – (2,418) 21,012 18,594

Issue	of	shares	–	acquisition 20 36 – 3,991 – – 4,027

Issue	of	shares	–	exercise	of	options 18 28 1,199 – – – 1,227

Employee share incentive charges 5 – – – – 1,285 1,285

Current tax recognised direct to equity – – – – 509 509

Deferred tax recognised direct to equity – – – – 2,885 2,885

Purchase of own shares by employee share trust – – – – (465) (465)

Sale of own shares by employee share trust – – – – 497 497

Dividends paid 18 – – – – (9,531) (9,531)

Balance at 31st December 2009 3,581 18,219 17,938 1,522 82,055 123,315
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41Company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Note

Issued	
capital
£’000

Share 
premium
£’000

Merger 
reserve 
£’000

Retained	
earnings 
£’000

Total  
equity 
£’000

Balance at 1st January 2008 3,463 16,488 9,298 20,865 50,114

Profit for the period – – – 27,554 27,554

Issue	of	shares	–	acquisition 20 43 – 4,649 – 4,692

Issue	of	shares	–	exercise	of	options 18 11 532 – – 543

Employee share incentive charges – company – – – 159 159

Employee share incentive charges – subsidiaries – – – 3,221 3,221

Deferred tax recognised direct to equity – – – (23) (23)

Purchase of own shares by employee share trust – – – (473) (473)

Sale of own shares by employee share trust – – – 112 112

Dividend paid 18 – – – (6,751) (6,751)

Balance at 31st December 2008 3,517 17,020 13,947 44,664 79,148

Profit for the period – – – 1,590 1,590

Issue	of	shares	–	acquisition 20 36 – 3,991 – 4,027

Issue	of	shares	–	exercise	of	options 18 28 1,199 – – 1,227

Employee share incentive charges – company – – – 175 175

Employee share incentive charges – subsidiaries – – – 1,110 1,110

Current tax recognised direct to equity – – – 1 1

Deferred tax recognised direct to equity – – – 431 431

Purchase of own shares by employee share trust – – – (465) (465)

Sale of own shares by employee share trust – – – 497 497

Dividend paid 18 – – – (9,531) (9,531)

Balance at 31st December 2009 3,581 18,219 17,938 38,472 78,210
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Note
2009

£’000
2008
£’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax 31,013 35,958

Adjustments	for:

Staff costs – share incentives 5 1,285 1,141

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5 12,744 9,274

Amortisation of product development 5 11,317 10,229

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 5 6,074 2,631

Amortisation of other intangible assets 5 1,490 1,060

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 5 20 –

Finance cost 131 465

Finance income 8 (1,209) (13,901)

Cash generated from operations before changes in working capital 62,865 46,857

Movement in trade and other receivables (13,937) (13,870)

Movement in trade and other payables 20,188 16,431

Cash generated from operations 69,116 49,418

Income	tax	paid (8,854) (6,731)

Net cash generated from operating activities 60,262 42,687

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of LatentZero 20 (6,597) (7,753)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 11 (12,440) (22,724)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 69 –

Purchase of other intangible assets 14 (1,807) (1,010)

Product development capitalised 14 (18,100) (14,916)

Interest	received	on	cash	and	cash	equivalents 230 809

Interest	received	on	Touchpaper	loan	notes – 488

Proceeds from capital repayment of Touchpaper loan notes – 1,900

Proceeds from sale of Touchpaper ordinary and preferred ordinary shares 346 11,035

Net cash used in investing activities (38,299) (32,171)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from shares issued 1,224 544

Purchase of own shares by employee share trust (465) (473)

Proceeds from sale of own shares by employee share trust 497 112

Dividends paid 18 (9,531) (6,751)

Net cash used in financing activities (8,275) (6,568)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,688 3,948

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January 33,146 24,820

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (1,359) 4,378

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 45,475 33,146
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43Company cash flow statement for the year ended 31st December 2009

Note
2009

£’000
2008
£’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax 1,562 27,528

Adjustments	for:

Staff costs – share incentives 175 159

Finance cost 131 465

Finance income (1,144) (13,766)

Cash generated from operations before changes in working capital 724 14,386

Movement in trade and other receivables 11,347 (8,171)

Movement in trade and other payables 8,320 (5,187)

Cash generated from operations 20,391 1,028

Income	tax	paid (680) (601)

Net cash generated from operating activities 19,711 427

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of LatentZero 20 (6,597) (7,753)

Investment	in	subsidiary	companies 15 (38) –

Interest	received	on	cash	and	cash	equivalents 168 681

Interest	received	on	Touchpaper	loan	notes – 488

Proceeds from capital repayment of Touchpaper loan notes – 1,900

Proceeds from sale of Touchpaper ordinary and preferred ordinary shares 346 11,035

Net cash (used)/generated from investing activities (6,121) 6,351

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from shares issued 1,224 544

Purchase of own shares by employee share trust (465) (473)

Proceeds from sale of own shares by employee share trust 497 112

Dividends paid 18 (9,531) (6,751)

Net cash used in financing activities (8,275) (6,568)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,315 210

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January 13,047 12,837

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 18,362 13,047
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44 Notes to the financial statements

Fidessa	group	plc	(“Fidessa”	or	the	“Company”),	is	a	company	incorporated	in	England	and	Wales.	The	financial	statements	are	

presented in pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 12th February 2010.

The	group	financial	statements	consolidate	those	of	the	Company	and	its	subsidiaries	(together	referred	to	as	the	“Group”).	The	parent	

company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about its group.

The	Group's	business	activities	and	position	in	its	market	are	described	in	the	Overview	and	Market	Review.	The	directors	believe	that	the	

Group	is	well	placed	to	manage	its	business	risks	successfully	despite	the	current	uncertainties	as	far	as	the	global	economy	is	concerned.	

The	Group	has	considerable	financial	resources,	no	borrowings,	a	high	level	of	recurring	revenue	and	a	very	broad	spread	of	customers.	

As a consequence of these factors and having reviewed the forecasts for the coming year, the directors have a reasonable expectation 

that	the	Group	has	adequate	resources	to	continue	in	operational	existence	for	the	foreseeable	future.	Thus,	they	continue	to	adopt	the	

going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.

Both	the	Company	financial	statements	and	the	Group	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	and	approved	by	the	directors	in	

accordance	with	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	(“IFRSs”)	as	adopted	by	the	European	Union.	In	publishing	the	Company	

financial	statements	here	together	with	the	Group	financial	statements,	the	Company	has	taken	advantage	of	the	exemption	in	s408	of	

the	Companies	Act	2006	not	to	present	its	individual	income	statement	and	related	notes	that	form	a	part	of	these	approved	financial	

statements.

1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis with the exception of financial instruments which are stated in 

accordance	with	IAS	39	Financial	Instruments:	Recognition	and	Measurement.	The	following	standards	have	been	adopted	for	the	first	

time	in	these	financial	statements:

IFRS8	Operating	Segments	–	the	standard	replaces	IAS	14	Segment	Reporting	and	aligns	operating	segments	reported	to	those	•	

segments	reported	internally	to	senior	management.	The	standard	had	no	impact	on	the	Group’s	result	or	financial	position,	only	

impacting on disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

Revised	IAS1	Presentation	of	Financial	Statements	–	the	revised	standard	separates	owner	and	non-owner	changes	in	equity.	In	•	

addition, the standard requires the statement of comprehensive income; it presents all items of recognised income and expense, either 

in	a	single	statement	or	two	linked	statements.	The	Group	has	elected	to	present	two	statements.

Amendment	to	IFRS2	Share-based	Payment;	Vesting	Conditions	and	Cancellations	–	the	amendment	clarifies	the	definition	of	vesting	•	

conditions.	The	amendment	had	no	impact	of	the	Group's	result	or	financial	position.

Amendment	to	IFRS7	Financial	Instruments:	Disclosures;	Improving	Disclosures	about	Financial	Instruments	–	the	amendment	requires	•	

additional	disclosures	regarding	fair	value	measurements.	The	amendment	had	no	impact	of	the	Group's	result	or	financial	position.

The	preparation	of	financial	statements	in	conformity	with	IFRSs	requires	management	to	make	judgements,	estimates	and	assumptions	

that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 

results for which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available from 

other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates, assumptions and judgements that are likely to contain the 

greatest degree of uncertainty are summarised in note 25.

The	accounting	policies	set	out	below	have,	unless	otherwise	stated,	been	applied	consistently	by	the	Group	and	Company	to	all	periods	

presented in these financial statements. 
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2 Recent accounting developments
The	IASB	and	IFRIC	have	issued	the	following	standards	and	interpretations	that	have	been	endorsed	by	the	European	Union	with	an	

effective	date	after	the	date	of	these	financial	statements:

Amendments	to	IFRS1	First	Time	Adoption	of	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	is	applicable	for	periods	commencing	on	or	•	

after	1st	July	2009.	It	is	not	expected	to	have	any	impact	on	the	company	or	consolidated	financial	statements.

Amendments	to	IFRS3	Business	Combinations	is	applicable	for	periods	commencing	on	or	after	1st	July	2009.	It	will	have	an	impact	on	•	

any	future	acquisitions	undertaken	by	the	Group.

Amendments	to	IFRS7	Financial	Instruments:	Disclosures	is	applicable	for	periods	commencing	on	or	after	1st	January	2011.	It	is	not	•	

expected to have any impact on the company or consolidated financial statements.

Amendments	to	IAS27	Consolidated	and	Separate	Financial	Statements	is	applicable	for	periods	commencing	on	or	after	1st	July	2009.	•	

The revised standard requires that acquisitions and disposals that do not result in a change of control are accounted for within equity. 

Amendments	to	IAS32	Financial	Instruments:	Presentation	is	applicable	for	periods	commencing	on	or	after	1st	February	2010.	The	•	

revision relates to the classification of rights issues and is not expected to have any impact on the company or consolidated financial 

statements. 

Amendments	to	IAS39	Financial	Instruments:	Recognition	and	Measurement	is	applicable	for	periods	commencing	on	or	after	1st	July	•	

2009. They are not expected to have any impact on the company or consolidated financial statements.

Amendments	to	IFRIC9	Reassessment	of	Embedded	Derivatives	is	applicable	for	periods	commencing	on	or	after	1st	July	2009.	It	is	not	•	

expected to have any impact on the company or consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC	17	Distributions	of	Non-cash	Assets	to	Owners	is	applicable	for	periods	commencing	on	or	after	1st	July	2009.	It	is	not	expected	•	

to have any impact on the company or consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC	18	Transfers	of	Assets	from	Customers	is	applicable	for	periods	commencing	on	or	after	1st	July	2009.	It	is	not	expected	to	have	•	

any impact on the company or consolidated financial statements.

3 Significant accounting policies

a Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Fidessa group plc and its subsidiaries. There are no associates or 

joint ventures to be included in the consolidated accounts.

Subsidiaries	are	all	entities	over	which	the	Group	has	the	power	to	govern	the	financial	and	operating	policies	so	as	to	obtain	the	benefits	

from its activities, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated 

from	the	date	on	which	control	is	transferred	to	the	Group	until	the	date	on	which	control	ceases.	Intra-group	balances,	and	any	

unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated 

financial	statements.	The	Group	uses	the	purchase	method	of	accounting	to	account	for	the	acquisition	of	subsidiaries.

b Foreign currency

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to pounds sterling at the foreign exchange rate ruling 

at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and 

liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 

transaction. 

(ii) Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to pounds sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. 

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated to pounds sterling at rates approximating the foreign exchange rates 

ruling at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation are recognised directly in the translation 

reserve.	Exchange	gains	and	losses	arising	on	the	translation	of	the	Group’s	net	investment	in	foreign	entities	are	recognised	in	the	

translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity the cumulative translation differences are recycled to the income statement and 

recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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c Revenue

Revenue	represents	the	amount	chargeable,	excluding	sales	related	taxes,	for	software	and	related	services	supplied.	Revenue	is	only	

recognised where there is persuasive evidence that a contract exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection 

of the resulting receivable is considered probable. Full allowance is made for all known or expected losses.

Revenue	from	rental,	application	hosting	and	support	services	is	recognised	equally	over	the	period	that	the	service	is	to	be	provided.	

Revenue	from	installation,	consultancy	and	training	services	chargeable	on	a	time	and	materials	basis	is	recognised	when	the	work	is	

performed.	Revenue	from	fixed	price	implementations	is	recognised	over	the	period	of	implementation	in	accordance	with	the	estimated	

percentage completed for each contract, based on the anticipated number of days of effort for the implementation.

Deferred revenue represents amounts invoiced to customers for goods and services not yet supplied. Accrued revenue represents 

amounts recognised as revenue to be invoiced in a future period. 

d Share-based payments

The	Group	operates	a	number	of	equity-settled	share	incentive	plans.	The	fair	value	of	the	incentives	granted	is	recognised	as	an	

employee expense over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value of the incentives granted is measured 

using a binomial model or a Monte Carlo simulation model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the incentives 

were granted. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share incentives that vest except where 

forfeiture is only due to the share price not achieving the threshold for vesting.

Where the Company grants options over its own shares to the employees of its subsidiaries it recognises, in its individual financial 

statements, an increase in the cost of investment in its subsidiaries equivalent to the equity-settled share-based payment charge 

recognised in its subsidiaries’ financial statements, with the corresponding credit being recognised directly in equity.

e Post employment benefits

Certain subsidiaries operate defined contribution pension schemes for their employees. Pension costs are charged to the income 

statement as they arise.

f Interest receivable 

Interest	receivable	on	interest-bearing	financial	assets	is	recognised	on	an	accruals	basis	using	the	effective	interest	rate	method.	The	

effective interest rate used reflects the anticipated cash flows to be received. 

g Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent 

that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance 

sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 

and	the	amounts	used	for	taxation	purposes.	The	following	temporary	differences	are	not	provided	for:	the	initial	recognition	of	goodwill,	

the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination, and 

differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount 

of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, 

using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset 

can be utilised.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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h Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation	is	provided	by	the	Group	to	write	off	the	cost	less	the	estimated	residual	value	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	by	equal	

instalments	over	their	estimated	useful	economic	lives	as	follows:

Equipment and furniture 3–5 years

Computers 2–3 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

Buildings 25 years

Leasehold improvements 5–10 years or remainder of lease if shorter

i Intangible assets

Research and development

Research	expenditure	is	recognised	as	an	expense	as	incurred.	Costs	incurred	on	product	development	(relating	to	the	design,	

programming and testing of new or enhanced products) are capitalised as intangible assets when it is probable that the development will 

provide economic benefits, considering its commercial and technological feasibility, resources are available for the development, and costs 

can be measured reliably. The expenditure capitalised is the direct labour cost and is managed and controlled centrally. Other 

development expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Product development costs previously recognised as an expense are 

not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. 

Capitalised product development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Product 

development costs that have been capitalised are amortised from the time of development on a straight-line basis over three years. 

Goodwill

Goodwill	represents	the	excess	of	the	cost	of	acquisition	over	the	fair	value	of	the	Group’s	interest	in	the	identifiable	assets,	liabilities	and	

contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination.

Acquisition intangibles

Intangible	assets	acquired	from	a	business	combination	are	capitalised	at	fair	value	as	at	the	date	of	acquisition	and	amortised	over	their	

estimated useful economic life. An intangible asset acquired as part of a business combination is recognised outside goodwill if the asset 

is separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights and its fair value can be measured reliably. The estimated useful lives of the 

intangible	assets	are	as	follows:

Customer relationships 10 years

Complete technology 3 years

Brands and other marketing related 3 years

Other intangible assets

Other	intangible	assets	that	are	purchased	by	the	Group	are	stated	at	cost	less	accumulated	amortisation	and	impairment	losses.	

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Expenditure on 

internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred. Software purchased for 

internal use is amortised over two years.
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j Impairment of assets

Goodwill	is	allocated	to	cash	generating	units	that	are	no	larger	than	an	operating	segment	for	the	purposes	of	impairment	testing.	The	

recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates is estimated and the carrying amount is tested annually for 

impairment or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. The carrying values of assets other than 

goodwill and deferred tax are reviewed for impairment only when events indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

In	an	impairment	test,	the	recoverable	amount	of	the	cash	generating	unit	or	asset	is	estimated	to	determine	the	extent	of	any	

impairment	loss.	The	recoverable	amount	is	the	higher	of	fair	value	less	costs	to	sell	and	the	value	in	use	for	the	Group.	An	impairment	

loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount.

In	determining	a	cash	generating	unit’s	or	asset’s	value	in	use,	estimated	future	cash	flows	are	discounted	to	their	present	value	using	a	

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the cash generating unit or 

asset that have not already been included in the estimate of future cash flows.

k Leased assets

Where	the	Group	enters	into	an	operating	lease	the	rentals	are	charged	as	an	expense	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	term	of	the	lease.	

Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the total lease expense.

l Investments and financial instruments

Investments	in	subsidiary	companies,	which	are	all	unquoted	equity	investments,	are	stated	at	cost	less	provision	for	any	impairment	 

in value.

A	financial	instrument	is	recognised	if	the	Company	or	Group	becomes	a	party	to	the	contractual	provisions	of	the	instrument.	Financial	

assets	are	derecognised	if	the	Group’s	contractual	rights	to	the	cash	flows	from	the	financial	assets	expire	or	if	the	Group	transfers	the	

financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Financial liabilities are 

derecognised	if	the	Group’s	obligations	specified	in	the	contract	expire	or	are	discharged	or	cancelled.	

Where	the	Company	enters	into	financial	guarantee	contracts	to	guarantee	the	indebtedness	of	other	companies	within	the	Group,	the	

Company	considers	these	to	be	insurance	arrangements	and	accounts	for	them	as	such.	In	this	respect,	the	Company	treats	the	

guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment 

under the guarantee.

m Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at amortised cost, their carrying value being reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable 

amounts.

n Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with 

original maturities of three months or less.

o Trade payables

Trade payables are stated at amortised cost.

p Employee Benefit Trust and Share Bonus Trust

The Employee Benefit Trust and Share Bonus Trust, which purchase and hold ordinary shares of the Company in connection with 

employee share schemes, are included in the Company’s financial statements and presented as a deduction from equity. Any 

consideration paid or received by the trusts for the purchase or sale of the Company’s own shares is shown as a movement in 

shareholders’ equity.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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q Provisions and contingent liabilities

A	provision	is	recognised	in	the	balance	sheet	when	the	Group	has	a	present	legal	or	constructive	obligation	as	a	result	of	a	past	event,	

and	it	is	probable	that	an	outflow	of	economic	benefits	will	be	required	to	settle	the	obligation.	If	the	effect	is	material	the	provision	is	

determined by discounting the expected future cash flows. No provision is recognised for contingent liabilities if it is not probable that an 

outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle an obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient 

reliability.

4 Segment reporting
The	Market	Review	accompanying	these	annual	financial	statements	reports	on	the	marketplace	that	Fidessa addresses and therefore 

the sub-headings within that section of the report reflect the structure of the marketplace. The segment reporting reflects the structure of 

the business operations which are focused on the method of delivery to the marketplace. 

The business is structured into three business units; Enterprise, Hosted and LatentZero. Shared and support services such as core product 

development, office costs and overhead functions, are controlled and monitored centrally. The primary management and performance 

monitoring is undertaken by the Operating Board which comprises the heads of the business units and global functional heads.

The Enterprise business unit is focused on providing tailored solutions for large sell-side customers, packaging and integrating our 

products, services and consultancy and working with our customers to deliver a complete solution. The Hosted business unit is focused 

on the software as a service (SaaS) delivery model allowing rapid deployment of complex workflow across a wide sell-side customer base. 

The LatentZero business unit is focused on providing tailored solutions for large buy-side customers, packaging and integrating our 

products, services and consultancy and working with our customers to deliver a complete solution. All segments leverage our products in 

the areas of connectivity and market data across our sell-side and buy-side customer base. The Hosted business unit has responsibility for 

the provision of the connectivity and market data services. The inter-business unit revenue relates to the provision of the connectivity and 

market data services and the provision of components of the hosted service for implementation to enterprise customers. 

Revenue	and	direct	costs	are	reported	by	business	unit	to	present	a	profit	contribution	for	each	unit,	such	revenue	and	costs	being	

measured and reported to the Operating Board. The Operating Board monitors overall operating profit excluding amortisation of 

acquisition	intangibles	and	product	development	capitalisation	and	amortisation,	which	is	not	an	IFRS	measure.	Finance	income,	finance	

costs, assets and liabilities are not reported by business unit. 

No	single	external	customer	accounts	for	10%	or	more	of	the	Group	revenue.	Recurring	revenue	reflects	the	periodic	fees	for	software	

and related services that is charged on a rental or subscription basis. Non-recurring revenue comprises the consultancy fees for 

implementation, configuration and ongoing support activity.

For the year ended 31st December 2009
Enterprise 

£’000
Hosted 
£’000

LatentZero 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Recurring	revenue 61,117 118,368 14,450 193,935

Non-recurring revenue 31,124 5,534 7,913 44,571

Total revenue from external customers 92,241 123,902 22,363 238,506

Inter-business	unit	revenue – 11,426 1,656 13,082

Business unit profit contribution 59,286 43,654 6,882 109,822



Fid
essa group plc

50

A	reconciliation	of	business	unit	profit	contribution	to	profit	before	income	tax	is	provided	as	follows:

For the year ended 31st December 2009
Total 
£’000

Business unit profit contribution 109,822

Core product development (20,874)

Central staff costs (27,079)

Building costs (19,355)

Other unallocated costs (13,288)

Operating profit as monitored by the Operating Board 29,226

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (6,074)

Product development capitalised 18,100

Product development amortised (11,317)

Operating profit in the income statement 29,935

Finance income 1,209

Finance cost (131)

Profit before income tax in the income statement 31,013

Other	segmental	disclosures:

For the year ended 31st December 2009
Enterprise 

£’000
Hosted 
£’000

LatentZero 
£’000

Not allocated 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment – 6,422 – 6,322 12,744

Amortisation of intangible assets – – 6,074 12,807 18,881

Property, plant and equipment – 13,766 – 15,712 29,478

Intangibles	assets – 5,544 46,382 26,232 78,158

For the year ended 31st December 2009
UK 

£’000
USA 

£’000
Asia 

£’000
Other 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Revenue 118,472 80,162 32,692 7,180 238,506

Property, plant and equipment 16,590 10,138 2,127 623 29,478

Intangibles	assets 77,982 94 42 40 78,158

Individual	countries	within	Asia	do	not	meet	the	disclosure	requirements	of	IFRS8	Operating	Segments	but	in	aggregate	their	revenues	are	

sufficiently	material	that	disclosure	has	been	made.	Revenue	is	attributed	to	a	country	based	on	the	ownership	of	the	customer	contract	

and where the work is being performed.

The business unit structure was established during the second half of 2008. Comparable numbers for 2008 are available for revenue from 

external customers but not for inter-business unit revenue or business unit profit contribution. The comparable revenue from external 

customers	for	2008	is	as	follows:	

For the year ended 31st December 2008
Enterprise 

£’000
Hosted 
£’000

LatentZero 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Revenue	from	external	customers

Recurring	revenue 40,626 93,900 11,998 146,524

Non-recurring revenue 29,022 5,542 8,014 42,578

Total revenue from external customers 69,648 99,442 20,012 189,102

Notes to the financial statements continued



A
n

n
u

al R
ep

o
rt an

d
 A

cco
u

n
ts 2009

51

IFRS	8	Operating	Segments	requires	that	when	the	internal	structure	of	an	organisation	changes	and	corresponding	numbers	for	

prior period cannot be produced then the segment information under the previous structure should also be presented for that period. 

The following tables present the segment information in the same format as reported in prior years, including the current period for 

information purposes.

For the year ended 31st December 2009
Europe 
£’000

North  
America 
£’000

Asia 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Segment revenue 120,279 85,535 32,692 238,506

Segment result 18,851 18,912 12,045 49,808

Amortisation of product development (11,317)

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (6,074)

Central costs (2,482)

Operating profit 29,935

Capital additions 7,173 5,259 1,815 14,247

Depreciation and amortisation 7,984 4,986 1,264 14,234

Segment assets 88,261 42,538 17,227 148,026

Unallocated assets 85,319

Consolidated total assets 233,345

Segment liabilities 58,237 32,805 5,171 96,213

Unallocated liabilities 13,817

Consolidated total liabilities 110,030

For the year ended 31st December 2008
Europe 
£’000

North  
America 
£’000

Asia 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Segment revenue 95,849 69,492 23,761 189,102

Segment result 14,149 14,192 10,104 38,445

Patent dispute settlement – (980) – (980)

Lehman receivable write off (394) – (232) (626)

Amortisation of product development (10,229)

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (2,631)

Central costs (1,457)

Operating profit 22,522

Capital additions 16,570 6,414 751 23,735

Depreciation and amortisation 5,725 3,836 772 10,333

Segment assets 72,009 38,695 15,923 126,627

Unallocated assets 79,036

Consolidated total assets 205,663

Segment liabilities 55,059 30,894 4,906 90,859

Unallocated liabilities 10,517

Consolidated total liabilities 101,376
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5 Operating expenses

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

Staff costs – salaries 100,537 80,031

Staff costs – social security 9,701 7,399

Staff costs – pension 1,675 1,127

Staff costs – share incentives 1,285 1,141

Total staff costs 113,198 89,698

Amounts payable to subcontractors 4,310 4,773

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12,744 9,274

Amortisation of other intangible assets 1,490 1,060

Capitalisation of product development (18,100) (14,916)

Amortisation of product development 11,317 10,229

Communications and data 36,402 26,901

Operating lease rentals – property 13,843 10,014

Operating lease rentals – plant and machinery 33 25

Gain	on	sale	of	property,	plant	and	equipment 20 –

Exchange loss/(gain) 919 (1,657)

Other operating expenses 26,709 27,334

Operating expenses before amortisation of acquisition intangibles, patent dispute settlement and 
Lehman receivable write off 202,885 162,735

Patent dispute settlement – 980

Lehman receivable write off – 626

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 6,074 2,631

Total operating expenses 208,959 166,972

Other operating income represents income from sublet office space.

Included	in	operating	expenses	are	the	direct	costs	of	research	and	development	of	£23,497,000	(2008:	£20,734,000),	which	includes	

the amount capitalised above.

Patent dispute settlement in 2008

In	June	2003	Fidessa	noted	an	announcement	released	by	Lava	Trading	Inc.	(now	part	of	Citigroup)	that	it	had	filed	a	patent	

infringement claim in the US against Fidessa. The patent related to the concept of displaying prices from more than one source (ECN) on 

a	single	screen	in	the	US.	In	December	2003	Lava	filed	an	amendment	to	its	lawsuit	alleging	unfair	trade	practices	on	the	part	of	Fidessa, 

in particular in relation to the pricing of products and associated services. 

In	December	2004	Fidessa announced that a Stipulated Judgement had been entered into the record in the United States District Court 

for the Southern District of New York which formally recorded that the patent had not been infringed. Lava lodged an appeal and in April 

2006	the	United	States	Court	of	Appeals	for	the	Federal	Circuit	determined	that	the	lower	court	did	not	correctly	interpret	all	the	

technical terms in the patent and referred the case back to the lower court. This meant that the patent proceedings, started in June 2003, 

were for the most part restarted from the beginning and all previous judgements no longer stood. Both parties were therefore expecting 

further significant expenditure on litigation in order to progress the case.

On 30th July 2008 Fidessa announced that a settlement agreement had been reached with Lava under which Fidessa would provide 

Lava	with	products	and	services	valued	at	$1.95	million	over	the	following	three	years.	In	return	Lava	would	license	Fidessa to use the 

inventions covered by the patent. Both firms agreed to drop all claims and counter claims relating to this dispute. The $1.95 million 

settlement was charged to the income statement in 2008. 

The dispute had previously been treated as a contingent liability since due to the then uncertainty of the eventual outcome of the case, 

no	provision	was	made	in	accordance	with	the	requirements	of	IAS	37	Provisions,	Contingent	Liabilities	and	Contingent	Assets.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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Lehman receivable write off in 2008

On	15th	September	2008	Lehman	Brothers	International	(Europe)	appointed	Administrators	in	the	UK	and	Lehman	Brothers	Holdings	Inc	

filed	petitions	for	relief	under	Chapter	11	in	the	US.	On	16th	September	2008	Lehman	Brothers	Japan	Inc	commenced	civil	rehabilitation	

procedures	under	the	Japan	Civil	Rehabilitation	Law.	These	entities	together	with	certain	of	their	subsidiaries	(together	“Lehman”)	

accounted	for	circa	£2.0	million	of	revenue	per	annum	and	were	a	top	ten	customer.	The	receivables	from	Lehman	at	these	dates	were	

unlikely	to	be	recoverable	and	a	£626,000	write	off	resulted	in	the	income	statement	for	the	year	ended	31st	December	2008.

6 Auditor fees
The	following	table	shows	an	analysis	of	fees	payable	to	the	Group’s	auditors:

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

Fees payable for the audit of these financial statements 65 36

Fees payable for audits of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 173 140

Fees payable for reviews of subsidiaries 60 62

Services relating to taxation 35 82

Total fees paid to the auditor 333 320

7 Staff numbers
The	average	number	of	people	employed	by	the	Group	during	the	year	was	as	follows:

2009 
Number

2008 
Number

Europe 795 719

North America 467 429

Asia 180 133

Total average staff numbers 1,442 1,281

At 31st 
December 

2009 
Number

At 31st 
December  

2008 
Number

Technical 801 730

Product development 307 328

Sales and marketing 155 157

Management and administration 212 176

Total staff numbers at 31st December 1,475 1,391

8 Finance income
2009 

£’000
2008 
£’000

Interest	receivable	on	cash	and	cash	equivalents 148 791

Interest	received	on	Touchpaper	“A”	and	“B”	Loan	Notes – 488

Other interest receivable 85 35

Capital	repayment	of	Touchpaper	"A"	and	“B”	Loan	Notes – 1,900

Sale of Touchpaper ordinary and preferred ordinary shares 976 10,687

Total finance income 1,209 13,901
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9 Income tax expense
2009 

£’000
2008 
£’000

Current	tax	expense:

Current year domestic tax 4,415 1,204

Current year foreign tax 7,222 5,494

Adjustments for prior years 607 67

Total current tax expense 12,244 6,765

Deferred	tax	expense:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (2,067) 1,610

Benefit and utilisation of tax losses (176) (82)

Total deferred tax expense (2,243) 1,528

Total income tax expense in income statement 10,001 8,293

Reconciliation	of	effective	tax	rate
2009 2009 

£’000
2008 2008 

£’000

Profit before tax 31,013 35,958

Income	tax	using	the	domestic	corporation	tax	rate 28% 8,684 28.5% 10,248

Effective tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 2,693 1,586

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 362 1,022

Tax incentives (1,302) (1,042)

Non-taxable items (1,043) (3,588)

Adjustment relating to prior years 607 67

Tax expense and effective tax rate for the year 32% 10,001 23% 8,293

Tax recognised directly in equity
2009 

£’000
2008 
£’000

Current tax credit relating to equity settled share incentives (509) (485)

Deferred tax (credit)/debit relating to equity settled share incentives (2,885) 463

10 Earnings per share
Earnings per share have been calculated by dividing profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of shares in issue 

during the year, details of which are below. The diluted earnings per share have been calculated using an average share price of 1017p 

(2008:	765p)	for	the	year.
2009 

£’000
2008 
£’000

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 21,012 27,665

Add amortisation of acquisition intangibles net of deferred tax 4,373 1,881

Add patent dispute settlement net of income tax – 550

Add Lehman debtor write off net of income tax – 514

Add notional interest on contingent consideration 131 465

Less gains relating to Touchpaper net of tax (976) (12,936)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company after adjustments 24,540 18,139

Notes to the financial statements continued
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2009 
 Number ‘000

2008 
Number ‘000

Weighted average number of shares in issue 35,573 34,994

Weighted average number of shares held by the employee share trusts (423) (477)

Shares used to calculate basic earnings per share 35,150 34,517

Dilution due to share options 538 471

Shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share 35,688 34,988

2009 2008

Basic earnings per share 59.8p 80.1p

Diluted earnings per share 58.9p 79.1p

Basic earnings per share on adjustments 10.0p (27.5)p

Diluted earnings per share on adjustments 9.8p (27.3)p

Basic earnings per share after adjustments 69.8p 52.6p

Diluted earnings per share after adjustments 68.8p 51.8p

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been adjusted to exclude the amortisation of acquisition intangibles, the Lava patent dispute 

settlement, Lehman receivable write off, notional interest charge and gains relating to Touchpaper. Management consider that earnings 

per share after these adjustments provide a better year to year comparison of performance.

11 Property plant and equipment

Group
Total 
£’000

Furniture & 
Equipment 

£’000

Long  
leasehold 
buildings 
£’000

Computers 
£’000

Vehicles 
£’000

Cost

At 1st January 2008 29,674 11,156 1,122 17,348 48

Exchange adjustment 7,742 3,679 172 3,891 –

Additions 22,724 15,312 – 7,412 –

Disposals (850) – – (850) –

At 1st January 2009 59,290 30,147 1,294 27,801 48

Exchange adjustment (3,308) (1,581) (68) (1,659) –

Additions 12,440 5,705 – 6,735 –

Disposals (4,743) (1,716) – (2,990) (37)

Cumulative cost at 31st December 2009 63,679 32,555 1,226 29,887 11

Depreciation

At 1st January 2008 15,384 5,180 155 10,031 18

Exchange adjustment 4,165 1,713 56 2,396 –

Charged in the year 9,274 3,661 46 5,555 12

Disposals (850) – – (850) –

At 1st January 2009 27,973 10,554 257 17,132 30

Exchange adjustment (1,862) (753) (23) (1,086) –

Charged in the year 12,744 5,900 49 6,787 8

Disposals (4,654) (1,633) – (2,990) (31)

Cumulative depreciation at 31st December 2009 34,201 14,068 283 19,843 7

Carrying value

At 31st December 2009 29,478 18,487 943 10,044 4

At 1st January 2009 31,317 19,593 1,037 10,669 18

At 1st January 2008 14,290 5,976 967 7,317 30

There are no fixed assets in the Company, all items being fully depreciated and disposed.
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12 Goodwill
Total
£’000

LatentZero
£’000

Hosted
£’000

Carrying value at 1st January 2008 47,129 41,474 5,655

Adjustment to deferred considerations in 2008 (2,232) (2,232) –

Carrying value at 1st January 2009 and at 31st December 2009 44,897 39,242 5,655

Goodwill	acquired	in	a	business	combination	is	allocated	to	cash	generating	units	which	can	be	no	larger	than	an	operating	segment.	 

The	Group	conducts	annual	impairment	tests	on	the	carrying	value	of	goodwill,	based	on	the	recoverable	amount	of	the	cash	generating	

units	to	which	goodwill	has	been	allocated.	Value	in	use	calculations	are	used	to	determine	the	recoverable	amount	of	cash	generating	

units. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are the discount rate applied, future growth rate of the revenue, operating 

margin	and	net	operating	cash	flows.	These	take	into	account	past	experience,	both	before	and	after	the	ownership	by	the	Group,	and	

the specific market trends for the particular product offerings.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of LatentZero results from the value of the assembled workforce, the synergistic nature of the 

acquisition due to the long-term cross-selling opportunities between the buy-side and sell-side clients, potential cost savings, the expected 

future	growth	and	the	acceleration	of	the	Group’s	operations	into	the	buy-side.

The LatentZero acquisition goodwill has been assigned to the LatentZero	and	Hosted	business	units.	The	Group	prepares	cash	flow	

forecasts derived from the latest approved forecasts for the following year which have been extended for the following four years based on 

estimated growth rates of between 14% and 30% which management consider reflects a reasonable future rate for the cash generating 

units after considering recent growth rates, the increasing amount of recurring revenue, assessing the market opportunities and threats and 

the potential to expand the addressable market. A declining rate of cash flow growth to 5% and a terminal growth of 2% has been 

assumed after the five year period as the expected useful life is materially greater than five years. This is considered to reflect a cautious 

long-term average growth rate for the products and services. Future cash flows are discounted in line with the appropriate discount rate for 

each	cash	generating	unit	of	10%	pre-tax	(2008:	10%).	These	have	been	calculated	after	assessing	the	specific	risk	premium	for	each	cash	

generating unit, current gilt rates and the business's beta factor. 

The recoverable amount for the LatentZero cash generating unit is sensitive to the improvement in operating margin that is achieved. The 

value in use calculation assumes that a long-term operating margin of 11% is achieved and for this the recoverable amount exceeds the 

carrying	value	by	£21,000,000.	If	the	long-term	operating	margin	should	be	only	7%	then	the	recoverable	amount	would	be	equal	to	the	

carrying value.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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13 Acquisition intangible assets

Total 
£’000

Customer 
relationships 

£’000

Complete 
technology 

£’000

Marketing 
related 
£’000

Cumulative cost at 1st January 2008, 1st January 2009 and at 31st 
December 2009 17,600 7,300 8,200 2,100

Amortisation

At 1st January 2008 1,755 487 1,093 175

Charged in the year 2,631 730 1,639 262

Cumulative amortisation at 1st January 2009 4,386 1,217 2,732 437

Charged in year 6,074 730 4,097 1,247

Cumulative amortisation at 31st December 2009 10,460 1,947 6,829 1,684

Carrying value

At 31st December 2009 7,140 5,353 1,371 416

At 1st January 2009 13,214 6,083 5,468 1,663

At 1st January 2008 15,845 6,813 7,107 1,925

The estimated lives of the intangible assets arising from the acquisition of LatentZero have been reviewed. The estimated life for 

complete technology has been revised from five years to three years, this now being consistent with the estimated life for product 

development	that	the	Group	undertakes.	The	estimated	life	for	brands	and	marketing	related	assets	has	been	revised	from	eight	years	

to three years, reflecting the prevalence of the Fidessa brand as the synergistic opportunities between the buy-side and sell-side 

continue to develop. The estimated life of customer relationships remains unchanged at ten years as no material change in this area 

has	been	detected.	The	impact	of	these	changes	to	estimated	life	is	that	the	amortisation	for	the	year	has	increased	from	£1,639,000	

to	£4,097,000	for	complete	technology	and	from	£262,000	to	£1,247,000	for	brands	and	marketing.

14 Other intangible assets
Product 

development 
£’000

Carrying value at 1st January 2008 12,996

Additions 14,916

Amortisation (10,229)

Carrying value at 1st January 2009 17,683

Additions 18,100

Amortisation (11,317)

Carrying value at 31st December 2009 24,466

The product development is a continual process without defined end dates. For the elements that are capitalised management consider 

that a net carrying value presentation is the most appropriate presentation for development of this nature.
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Software purchased for internal use  
£’000

Cost

Cumulative cost at 1st January 2008 2,335

Exchange adjustment 200

Additions 1,010

Disposals (4)

Cumulative cost at 1st January 2009 3,541

Exchange adjustment (79)

Additions 1,807

Disposals (217)

Cumulative cost at 31st December 2009 5,052

Depreciation

Cumulative depreciation at 1st January 2008 987

Exchange adjustment 142

Charged in the year 1,060

Disposals (4)

Cumulative depreciation at 1st January 2009 2,185

Exchange adjustment (61)

Charged in the year 1,490

Disposals (217)

Cumulative depreciation at 31st December 2009 3,397

Carrying value

At 31st December 2009 1,655

At 1st January 2009 1,356

At 1st January 2008 1,348

15 Investments

Group and Company

Sale of Investment in Touchpaper in 2008 

In	July	2001	the	royalblue	technologies	help	desk	and	call	centre	software	business	was	divested	by	the	Company	with	a	minority	stake	

being	retained.	The	business	subsequently	changed	its	name	to	Touchpaper	Group	Limited	(“Touchpaper”).	Following	the	divestment,	the	

Company held financial assets in Touchpaper comprising preference shares, ordinary shares, warrants to subscribe for ordinary shares and 

loan notes. Since July 2001 the Company had no financial influence or operational involvement in the Touchpaper business and their 

results had not been consolidated into Fidessa’s	performance.	In	the	year	to	31st	December	2007	Touchpaper	had	reported	revenue	of	

£17.5	million,	profit	before	tax	of	£0.4	million	and	gross	assets	of	£9.4	million	under	UK	GAAP.	

On	30th	June	2008	Avocent	Ireland	Holdings	Limited	(“Avocent”)	acquired	the	entire	share	capital	of	Touchpaper	and	the	preference	

shares	and	loan	notes	were	redeemed.	The	Company	recorded	a	gain	in	2008	of	£10,687,000	for	the	sale	and	redemption	of	the	

ordinary	and	preference	shares,	£1,900,000	for	the	redemption	of	the	loan	notes	and	£488,000	for	the	accrued	interest	on	the	loan	

notes.	The	gain	for	the	sale	and	redemption	of	the	ordinary	and	preference	shares	included	£550,000	held	in	escrow	in	respect	of	

working capital at completion and an indemnities and general warranties retention. 

During	2009	payment	of	£346,000	has	been	received	in	respect	of	the	working	capital	escrow.	No	further	monies	are	due	from	this	element	

of the escrow. The retention for the indemnities and general warranties reaches the end of its term on 30th June 2010. No observable 

market comparator is available to determine the fair value of this retention. Therefore, the directors have determined its fair value by 

deducting from the potential maximum receivable the items known at the time of the sale that could lead to claims against the retention. 

Notes to the financial statements continued
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During 2009 the directors became aware that one of the material issues that could have lead to a claim had been satisfactorily resolved. 

Consequently, they have considered it appropriate to reassess the fair value of the amount still held in escrow. As a result of this 

reassessment	further	income	of	£976,000	has	been	recognised	in	2009.	The	maximum	additional	future	receipt	possible	from	the	

indemnities	and	general	warranties	escrow	is	£3,352,000	of	which	£1,180,000	has	been	recognised	as	the	fair	value	in	other	receivables.	

The final amount received is dependent on the extent of any indemnity or warranty claims that materialise and professional fees incurred 

in processing such claims. Any final payment is not expected until the second half of 2010 at the earliest.

Company £’000

Investments	at	1st	January	2008 67,801

Prior year acquisition – adjustment to deferred considerations (2,232)

Share incentive charges – subsidiaries 3,221

Share incentive reimbursements – subsidiaries (3,221)

Investments	at	1st	January	2009 65,569

Investment	in	subsidiaries 38

Share incentive charges – subsidiaries 1,110

Share incentive reimbursements – subsidiaries (1,110)

Investments	at	31st	December	2009 65,607

The subsidiary undertakings and other trade investments at 31st December 2009, all being engaged in developing and selling computer 

software and providing associated services, are in the table below. All principally operate in their country of incorporation.

Country of incorporation Proportion of ordinary share capital held

Fidessa plc England and Wales 100%

Fidessa LatentZero Limited England and Wales 100%

Fidessa software limited England and Wales 100%

Fidessa investments limited England and Wales 100%

royalblue financial limited England and Wales 100%

royalblue group limited England and Wales 100%

Fidessa corporation USA 100%

Fidessa LatentZero	Incorporated USA 100%

Fidessa US corporation USA 100%

Fidessa limited Hong Kong 100%

Fidessa kk Japan 100%

Fidessa SAS France 100%

Fidessa LatentZero	SARL France 100%

Fidessa Canada corporation Canada 100%

Fidessa WLL Bahrain 100%

Fidessa Pte Limited Singapore 100%
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16 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Group	–	Recognised	deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	

Deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	are	attributable	to	the	following:

            Assets            Liabilities Net Assets/(Liabilities)

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

Property, plant and equipment 886 845 (198) (460) 688 385

Intangible	assets 52 115 (8,860) (8,639) (8,808) (8,524)

Employee benefits 4,382 742 – (303) 4,382 439

Tax losses and allowances carried forward 1,524 1,242 – – 1,524 1,242

Other temporary differences 1,764 1,217 – – 1,764 1,217

Tax assets/(liabilities) 8,608 4,161 (9,058) (9,402) (450) (5,241)

Set off of tax (3,562) (977) 3,562 977 – –

Net tax assets/(liabilities) 5,046 3,184 (5,496) (8,425) (450) (5,241)

Group	–	Movement	during	the	year	
Balance at  

1st January  
2009 
£’000

Translation 
adjustment 

£’000

Recognised	 
in income 

£’000

Recognised	 
in equity 
£’000

Balance at  
31st December 

2009 
£’000

Property, plant and equipment 385 (76) 379 – 688

Intangible	assets (8,524) (9) (275) – (8,808)

Employee benefits 439 (63) 1,121 2,885 4,382

Tax losses and allowances carried forward 1,242 (27) 309 – 1,524

Other temporary differences 1,217 (162) 709 – 1,764

(5,241) (337) 2,243 2,885 (450)

Balance at  
1st January 

2008 
£’000

Translation 
adjustment 

£’000

Acquisition of 
LatentZero 

£’000

Recognised	 
in income 

£’000

Recognised	 
in equity 
£’000

Balance at  
31st December  

2008 
£’000

Property, plant and equipment 1,067 193 – (875) – 385

Intangible	assets (7,991) 30 – (563) – (8,524)

Employee benefits 1,232 88 – (415) (466) 439

Tax losses and allowances carried forward 994 13 (179) 414 – 1,242

Interest	income 107 – – (107) – –

Other temporary differences 765 434 – 18 – 1,217

(3,826) 758 (179) (1,528) (466) (5,241)

Notes to the financial statements continued
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Company	–	Recognised	deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	 	

Deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	are	attributable	to	the	following:

            Assets            Liabilities Net Assets/(Liabilities)

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

Property, plant and equipment 2 3 – – 2 3

Employee benefits 662 183 – – 662 183

Tax assets/(liabilities) 664 186 – – 664 186

Company – Movement during the year 
Balance at  

1st January  
2009 
£’000

Recognised	 
in income 

£’000

Recognised	 
in equity 
£’000

Balance at  
31st December 

2009 
£’000

Property, plant and equipment 3 (1) – 2

Employee benefits 183 48 431 662

186 47 431 664

Balance at  
1st January 

2008 
£’000

Recognised	 
in income 

£’000

Recognised	 
in equity 
£’000

Balance at  
31st December 

2008 
£’000

Property, plant and equipment 4 (1) – 3

Employee benefits 176 30 (23) 183

Interest	income 107 (107) – –

287 (78) (23) 186

17 Trade and other receivables  

															Group                 Company

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

Trade receivables 60,475 49,891 – –

Amount due from subsidiaries – – 494 11,603

Prepayments 4,974 3,981 2 2

Accrued revenue 1,913 2,148 – –

Other receivables 4,056 4,616 1,815 906

Total trade and other receivables 71,418 60,636 2,311 12,511

18 Share capital and reserves  
2009 

Number
2008 

Number
2009 

£’000
2008 
£’000

Authorised ordinary shares of 10p each 43,600,000 43,600,000 4,360 4,360

Ordinary shares allotted, called up and fully paid at 1st January 35,169,431 34,629,180 3,517 3,463

Issued	for	share	options	exercised 282,457 114,144 28 11

Issued	for	acquisition	of	LatentZero 362,193 426,107 36 43

Ordinary shares allotted, called up and fully paid at 31st December 35,814,081 35,169,431 3,581 3,517
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The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at 

meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. 

Cumulative translation adjustment

The cumulative translation adjustment comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of 

foreign operations.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the excess of the fair value over the nominal value of shares issued by the Company to acquire at least 90% 

equity interest in an acquiree company. A purchaser company acquiring at least 90% equity interest in an acquiree company under an 

arrangement, which provides for the allotment of equity shares by the purchaser in return for the equity interest in the acquiree, must apply 

Section	612	of	the	Companies	Act	2006.	When	applicable,	the	section	requires	that	the	premium	on	the	issue	of	equity	shares	by	the	

purchaser company be disregarded. Accordingly, the Company did not record a premium on the shares it issued but recognised a merger 

reserve in the consolidated balance sheet.

Dividends paid and proposed 

On	8th	June	2009	the	2008	final	dividend	of	17.0	pence	per	share,	£5,988,000,	(2008:	final	dividend	for	2007	of	12.0	pence	per	share,	

£4,149,000)	was	paid.	On	28th	September	2009	an	interim	dividend	of	10.0	pence	per	share,	£3,543,000,	(2008:	7.5	pence	per	share,	

£2,602,000)	was	paid.

A second interim dividend in respect of the year ended 31st December 2009 has been declared by the directors. This is in place of a final 

dividend	for	2009.	The	second	interim	dividend	will	be	60.0p	per	share	and	comprises	20.0p	per	share	as	a	replacement	for	a	final	dividend	

for 2009 and 40.0p per share as a special dividend. The second interim dividend will be paid on 29th March 2010 to shareholders on the 

register at the close of business on 5th March 2010, with an ex-dividend date of 3rd March 2010. The dividend has not been included as a 

liability in these financial statements.

Employee share trusts

At 31st December 2009 the Fidessa	group	plc	Employee	Benefit	Trust	1997	owned	200,014	(2008:	344,889)	shares	representing	0.6%	of	

the issued capital. At 31st December 2009 the Fidessa	group	plc	Share	Bonus	Trust	owned	174,949	(2008:	162,033)	shares	representing	

0.5% of the issued capital.

19 Trade and other payables  
															Group                 Company

Current liabilities
2009 

£’000
2008 
£’000

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

Trade payables 6,093 4,094 62 52

Amount due to subsidiaries – – 6,702 112

Accrued expenses 27,767 29,982 707 793

Other liabilities 754 3,035 196 189

Deferred revenue 47,666 38,241 – –

Other taxes and social security 4,801 4,968 2,264 1,413

Total trade and other payables 87,081 80,320 9,931 2,559

 
															Group                 Company

Non-current liabilities
2009 

£’000
2008 
£’000

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

Accrued expenses 2,511 – – –

Other liabilities 6,621 553 404 553

Total trade and other payables 9,132 553 404 553

Notes to the financial statements continued
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20 Deferred consideration for acquisition
During the year the final consideration for the LatentZero acquisition was settled. The deferred consideration was in two parts, being  

a payment in each of 2008 and 2009 based on performance in the respective prior year. The payment in 2009 comprised cash of 

£6,597,000	(2008:	£7,753,000)	and	shares	of	£4,027,000	(£4,692,000).	There	are	no	further	payments	due	for	the	acquisition.

21 Share-based payments
A	full	description	of	each	type	of	share-based	payment	to	employees	is	in	the	Directors’	Remuneration	Report.	All	share	incentives	are	

over ordinary shares of the Company. The Company grants share incentives to employees in the form of share options, share bonuses 

and	under	the	Exceptional	Growth	Rate	Incentive	Plan.	The	fair	value	of	incentives	is	recognised	as	an	employee	expense	with	a	

corresponding increase in equity. The employee expense is recognised equally over the time from grant until vesting of the incentive.  

The	employee	expense	in	2009	was	£1,285,000	(2008:	£1,141,000).	

For share options and share bonuses the fair value has been measured using a binomial model. The expected volatility is based on the 

historic	volatility	adjusted	for	any	expected	changes	to	future	volatility.	The	material	inputs	into	the	model	have	been:

 

Share options
Granted	in	 

2005
Granted	in	 

2006
Granted	in	 

2007
Granted in  

2009

Fair value 108.5p 190p 267p 276p

Share price at grant 632p 860p 949p 1,154p

Exercise price 632p 860p 949p 1,154p

Expected volatility 20% 25% 30% 30%

Expected life 6	years 5 years 5 years 5 years

Expected dividends 3.4% 2.9% 2.2% 2.2%

Risk-free	rate	of	return 4.1% 4.7% 5.0% 2.5%

 

Share bonuses
Awards in  

2007
Awards in  

2008
Awards in  

2009

Fair value 775p	to	1116p 456p	to	672p 1029p to 1245p

Share price at purchase 829p to 1193p 482p to 710p 1100p to 1330p

Expected volatility 30% 30% 30%

Expected life 3 years 3 years 3 years

Expected dividends 2.2% 1.8% 2.2%

The	fair	value	of	the	award	under	the	Exceptional	Growth	Rate	Incentive	Plan	(EGRIP)	has	been	measured	using	a	Monte	Carlo	simulation	

model. The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility. The inputs to and 

output from this model are listed below.

 

EGRIP	award
March  
2006

September  
2007

September  
2008

September 
2009

Fair value 153p 245p 224p 234p

Share price at grant 896p 1,018p 920p 1,154p

Exercise price 10p 10p 10p 10p

Expected volatility 25% 30% 30% 30%

Expected life 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years

Expected dividends 3.4% 2.2% 1.8% 2.2%

Risk-free	rate	of	return 4.3% 5.0% 4.3% 2.5%
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Share	options	subsisting	at	31st	December	2009	were:

Grant	year

Options at  
1st January 

2009
Exercised  

in year
Expired  
in year

New  
grants

Options at  
31st December 

2009
Exercise  
price p 

Vested	at	 
31st December 

2009
Remaining 

 life

1999 9,132 (9,132) – – – 535p – 0 year

2000 12,572 – – – 12,572 1285p 12,572 1 year

2001 9,432 (1,250) – – 8,182 612.5p 8,182 2 years

2002 178,913 (152,827) (3,035) – 23,051 252.5p 23,051 0–3 years

2003 261,453 (89,617) (1,287) – 170,549 257.5p 170,549 1–4 years

2004 267,382 (79,575) (2,125) – 185,682 560p 185,682 2–5 years

2005 349,535 (89,528) (15,949) – 244,058 632p 244,058 3–6	years

2006 362,180 – (15,880) – 346,300 860p – 4 years

2007 392,910 (900) (17,730) – 374,280 949p – 5 years

2009 – – (1,700) 384,400 382,700 1154p – 6	years

For	all	share	options	exercised	in	2009	the	weighted	average	share	price	at	the	time	of	exercise	was	1081p	(2008:	892p).

Included	in	the	above	table	for	the	grant	made	in	2000	there	were	2,334	share	options	subsisting	at	1st	January	2009	relating	to	the	

Company. None was exercised and none expired in the year, leaving 2,334 subsisting at 31st December 2009.

Potential	share	bonuses	subsisting	at	31st	December	2009	were:

Group

Award year
Outstanding at 

1st January 2009
Exercised  

in year
Expired  
in year

New  
awards

Outstanding at 
31st December 

2009

Vested	at	 
31st December 

2009
Remaining 

life

2005 23,169 (23,169) – – – – 0 year

2007 46,644 – – – 46,644 – 1 year

2008 77,136 – (1,809) – 75,327 – 2 years

2009 – – – 35,521 35,521 – 3 years

For all share bonus awards exercised by employees of the group in 2009 the weighted average share price at the time of exercise was 

908p	(2008:	602p).

Company

Award year
Outstanding at 

1st January 2009
Exercised  

in year
Expired  
in year

New  
awards

Outstanding at 
31st December 

2009

Vested	at	 
31st December 

2009
Remaining 

life

2005 6,013 (6,013) – – – – 0 year

2007 11,964 – – – 11,964 – 1 year

2008 13,447 – – – 13,447 – 2 years

2009 – – – 5,222 5,222 – 3 years

For	all	share	bonus	awards	exercised	in	2009	the	weighted	average	share	price	at	the	time	of	exercise	was	718p	(2008:	550p).	

Notes to the financial statements continued
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Awards	under	the	EGRIP	subsisting	at	31st	December	2009	were:

Grant	year

Options at  
1st January 

2009
Exercised  

in year
Expired  
in year

New  
grants

Options at  
31st December 

2009
Exercise  
price p 

Vested	at	 
31st December 

2009
Remaining 

 life

2006 523,512 – – – 523,512 10p – 2 years

2007 470,310 – (11,360) – 458,950 10p – 3 years

2008 415,400 – (11,200) – 404,200 10p – 4 years

2009 – – (3,750) 357,250 353,500 10p – 5 years

Relating	to	the	Company	in	the	above	table	are	177,000	EGRIP	options	granted	in	2006,	91,500	EGRIP	options	granted	in	2007,	50,000	

EGRIP	options	granted	in	2008	and	36,000	EGRIP	options	granted	in	2009.	None	of	these	options	has	expired,	been	exercised	or	vested.

22 Related party transactions
The Company has a related party relationship with its subsidiaries and with its directors and members of key management. There are no 

transactions	with	related	parties	who	are	not	members	of	the	Group.

The	remuneration	of	individual	directors	is	disclosed	in	the	Directors’	Remuneration	Report.	The	remuneration	of	directors	and	other	

members	of	key	management	during	the	year	was	as	follows:

2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

Short-term employee benefits 5,211 5,236

Post employment benefits 8 3

Equity compensation benefits 481 492

Total remuneration of directors and key management 5,700 5,731

The	Company	leases	office	premises	and	provides	treasury	management	on	behalf	of	Group	companies	in	the	UK.	Rent	and	service	

charges	are	charged	at	cost,	£1,119,000	(2008:	£1,097,000).	All	income	arising	from	cash	and	cash	equivalents	is	retained	by	the	

Company.

23 Financial risk management
The use of financial instruments is managed under policies and procedures approved by the Board. These are designed to reduce the 

financial	risks	faced	by	the	Group,	which	primarily	relate	to	credit,	interest,	liquidity	and	currency	risks,	which	arise	in	the	normal	course	of	

the	Company’s	and	Group’s	business.

Credit risk

Financial	instruments	which	potentially	expose	the	Group	to	credit	risk	consist	primarily	of	cash	equivalents	and	trade	receivables.	The	

maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset. At the balance sheet date, there were no 

significant	concentrations	of	customer	credit	risk.	Our	largest	customer	accounts	for	less	than	5%	of	the	Group	revenue	and	the	ten	

largest	customers	account	for	less	than	30%	of	the	Group	revenue.	

Cash	equivalents	are	deposited	only	with	major	financial	institutions	that	satisfy	certain	credit	criteria	as	specified	in	the	Group's	treasury	

policy.	The	maximum	deposit	with	a	counterparty	is	£5,100,000.

The	trade	receivables	for	the	Group	as	at	31st	December	are	aged	as	in	the	table	below.	There	were	no	trade	receivables	for	the	Company.
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2009 
£’000

2008 
£’000

Not due 34,184 28,495

Not more than three months past due 21,596 18,822

More than three months but not more than six months past due 1,892 1,964

More than six months past due 2,803 610

Trade receivables 60,475 49,891

All	material	trade	receivable	balances	relate	to	sales	transactions	with	financial	institutions.	The	Group	provides	credit	to	customers	in	the	

normal course of business and the amount that appears in the balance sheet is net of an allowance for specific doubtful receivables, the 

allowance	being	due	to	insolvency	or	age	of	receivable.	In	most	situations	where	a	receivable	is	aged	but	no	specific	allowance	has	been	

made	for	it	no	revenue	has	been	taken	and	it	forms	part	of	the	deferred	revenue	balance.	The	Group	does	not	require	collateral	in	respect	

of financial assets.

The movement in the year in the allowance for doubtful receivables is in the table below. 
2009 

£’000
2008 
£’000

Allowance for doubtful receivables at 1st January 1,369 840

Exchange adjustment (43) 206

Allowances released in the period (947) (556)

New allowances made in the period 875 879

Allowance for doubtful receivables at 31st December 1,254 1,369

Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities. 
Carrying  
amount 
£’000

3 months  
or less 
£’000

3–12  
months 
£’000

Greater	than	 
1 year 
£’000

Trade payables 6,093 6,071 22 –

Accrued expenses 30,278 26,563 1,204 2,511

It	is	not	expected	that	the	cash	flows	included	in	the	maturity	analysis	will	arise	materially	earlier	or	at	significantly	different	values.

Interest receivable and payable

The	Group	and	the	Company	holds	net	funds	and	hence	its	interest	risks	are	associated	with	short-term	cash	deposits.	The	Group’s	and	

the Company's overall objective with respect to these deposits is to maintain a balance between security of the funds, accessibility of 

funds	and	competitive	rates	of	return.	In	practice	this	means	that	no	deposits	are	made	with	a	maturity	date	greater	than	three	months.	

All deposits are at current market rates.

The	Group	has	no	borrowings.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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Foreign currency risk

The	Group	operates	internationally	and	is	exposed	to	foreign	currency	risk	on	transactions	denominated	in	a	currency	other	than	the	

functional currency and on the translation of the balance sheet and income statement of foreign operations into sterling. The currencies 

giving	rise	to	this	risk	are	primarily	US	dollars,	Euros	and	Japanese	Yen.	The	Group	has	both	cash	inflows	and	outflows	in	these	currencies	

that create a natural hedge.

In	managing	currency	risks	the	Group	aims	to	reduce	the	impact	on	short-term	fluctuations	on	the	Group’s	cash	inflows	and	outflows	 

in	a	foreign	currency.	The	Group	has	not	entered	into	hedging	contracts	for	cash	positions	denominated	in	foreign	currencies.	

Over	the	longer	term	permanent	changes	in	foreign	exchange	would	have	an	impact	on	consolidation	of	foreign	subsidiaries	earnings.	It	

is estimated that a general increase of one percentage point in the value of sterling against other currencies would have decreased the 

Group’s	profit	before	tax	by	approximately	£127,000	for	the	year	ended	31st	December	2009	(2008:	£148,000).

Capital management

The Company maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain employee, customer, market, investor and creditor confidence in the 

business. Special dividends have been used to return surplus capital to shareholders. The Board monitors the retained cash and reserves 

and determines the level of annual dividend and when and how a return of capital to shareholders is appropriate.

Fair values

Unless otherwise disclosed, there is no significant difference between the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet and the fair 

values	of	the	Group	and	Company’s	financial	instruments.	For	current	trade	and	other	receivables/payables	with	a	remaining	life	of	less	

than one year, the amortised cost is deemed to reflect the fair value. 

24 Operating leases
At	31st	December	the	Group	had	outstanding	commitments	under	non-cancellable	operating	leases,	which	fall	due	as	follows:

Group
2009 

£’000
2008 
£’000

Less than one year 12,145 12,352

Between one and five years 40,668 45,490

More than five years 64,894 76,842

Total commitment under operating leases 117,707 134,684

Company
2009 

£’000
2008 
£’000

Less than one year 5,060 5,060

Between one and five years 18,063 19,196

More than five years 50,253 54,180

Total commitment under operating leases 73,376 78,436

The	Group	and	the	Company	lease	office	space	and	data	centre	facilities	under	operating	leases.	The	lease	term	typically	ranges	from	

three years to 20 years, longer term leases normally having options to break the commitment before the end of the term. Lease terms of 

greater than five years are often subject a rent review during the term.

Part of the office space has been sublet by the Company to entities outside of the Fidessa group. The lease expires in December 2012 

and	the	sublease	expires	in	December	2012.	Sublease	receipts	of	£1,165,000	are	expected	during	the	remainder	of	the	subleases.
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25 Accounting estimates and judgements
The	preparation	of	financial	statements	in	conformity	with	IFRSs	requires	management	to	make	judgements,	estimates	and	assumptions	

that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 

results for which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available from 

other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates, assumptions and judgements that are likely to contain the 

greatest degree of uncertainty are summarised below. This summary is not a list of all risks, estimates and judgements encountered by the 

group and others could arise that cause a material adjustment to the carrying value of assets and liabilities.

a Development expenditure

The	Group	invests	in	the	development	of	future	products	and	material	enhancement	of	existing	products	in	accordance	with	the	

accounting policy. The assessment as to whether each element of this expenditure will be technically feasible, generate future economic 

benefit or the period over which to amortise the expenditure is a matter of judgement. The carrying value of product development 

capitalised is detailed in note 14 and the amounts capitalised and amortised in the year are detailed in note 5.

b Income taxes

In	recognising	income	tax	assets	and	liabilities	estimates	have	to	be	made	of	the	likely	outcome	of	decisions	by	tax	authorities	on	

transactions and events whose treatment for tax purposes is uncertain and on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of 

deferred tax assets and liabilities.

c Revenue

The revenue for perpetual software licences and fixed price implementations is recognised on a percentage of completion basis. 

Management exercises judgement in determining the percentage complete for software and consultancy revenue and the total cost of 

implementation.	Estimates	are	continually	revised	based	on	changes	in	the	facts	relating	to	each	contract.	In	recognising	revenue	on	

contracts where losses are expected the quantum of the loss has to be estimated based on the latest facts available and judgement 

applied to factors that are still variable. 

d Fair values

IFRSs	require	many	assets,	liabilities	and	expenses	to	be	recognised	at	fair	value.	This	includes	the	intangible	assets	(notes	13	and	14),	

potential gains held in escrow in respect of the sale of investment in Touchpaper (note 15) and other liabilities arising from acquisitions.  

By their nature fair values are estimates and subject to different interpretation.

e Impairment of goodwill

The determination of whether or not goodwill has been impaired requires an estimate to be made of the value in use of the cash 

generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation includes estimates about the future financial 

performance of the cash generating units, management’s estimates of discount rates, long-term operating margins and long-term 

growth	rates	(note	12).	If	the	results	of	the	cash	generating	unit	in	a	future	period	are	materially	adverse	to	the	estimates	used	for	the	

impairment testing an impairment charge may be triggered.
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This document is important and requires your immediate attention.
If	you	are	in	any	doubt	as	to	any	aspect	of	the	proposals	referred	to	in	this	document	or	as	to	the	action	you	should	take,	you	should	seek	

your own advice from a stockbroker, solicitor, accountant, or other professional adviser. 

If	you	have	sold	or	otherwise	transferred	all	of	your	shares,	please	pass	this	document	together	with	the	accompanying	documents	to	the	

purchaser or transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these documents to the person who now 

holds the shares.

Notice	is	hereby	given	that	the	fourteenth	Annual	General	Meeting	of	Fidessa	group	plc	(“the	Company”)	will	be	held	at	One	Old	Jewry,	London	
EC2R	8DN	on	27th	April	2010	at	1.30	p.m.	for	the	following	purposes:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive the financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2009 together with the reports of the directors and auditors thereon.

2.	To	consider,	and	if	thought	fit,	to	approve	the	Directors’	Remuneration	Report	for	the	year	ended	31st	December	2009.

3. To re-elect Andy Malpass who retires by rotation as a director of the Company.

4.	To	re-elect	Ron	Mackintosh	who	retires	by	rotation	as	a	director	of	the	Company.

5.		To	re-appoint	KPMG	Audit	Plc	as	the	Company’s	auditors	to	hold	office	until	the	conclusion	of	the	next	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	

Company at which accounts are laid. 

6.	To	authorise	the	directors	to	agree	the	remuneration	of	the	auditors	of	the	Company.

Special Business

7.				To	consider,	and	if	thought	fit,	to	pass	the	following	resolution	as	an	Ordinary	Resolution:	 

(a)	 	to	authorise	the	directors	generally	and	unconditionally	pursuant	to	Section	551	of	the	Companies	Act	2006	(the	“Act”)	to	

exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company or grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, 

shares	in	the	Company	(“Rights”)	up	to	an	aggregate	nominal	amount	of	£1,193,634.70	(such	amount	to	be	reduced	by	the	

nominal	amount	of	any	equity	securities	allotted	under	paragraph	(b)	below	in	excess	of	£1,193,634.70)	provided	that	this	

authority	unless	renewed	shall	expire	on	the	earlier	of	the	conclusion	of	the	next	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Company	and	

fifteen months from the date of the passing of this resolution, such authority being in substitution for any existing authority to allot 

shares	or	grant	Rights	but	so	as	to	enable	the	Company	before	such	date	to	make	offers	or	agreements	which	would	or	might	

require shares to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot shares in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the 

authority conferred hereby had not expired; and further 

 (b)  to authorise the directors generally and unconditionally to exercise all powers of the Company to allot equity securities (within the 

meaning	of	Section	560	of	the	said	Act)	in	connection	with	a	rights	issue	in	favour	of	ordinary	shareholders	where	the	equity	

securities respectively attributable to the interests of all ordinary shareholders are proportionate (as nearly as may be) to the 

respective	numbers	of	ordinary	shares	held	by	them	up	to	an	aggregate	nominal	amount	of	£2,387,269.40	(such	amount	to	be	

reduced by any shares allotted or rights granted under sub-paragraph (i) above) provided that this authority unless renewed shall 

expire	on	the	earlier	of	the	conclusion	of	the	next	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Company	and	fifteen	months	from	the	date	of	

the passing of this resolution, but so as to enable the Company before such date to make offers or agreements which would or 

might require shares to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot shares in pursuance of such offer or agreement  

as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired. (Please see note 13).

8.			Subject	to	the	passing	of	resolution	7	above,	to	consider,	and	if	thought	fit,	to	pass	the	following	resolution	as	a	Special	Resolution:	

to	empower	the	directors	in	accordance	with	Section	570	of	the	Act,	until	the	earlier	of	the	conclusion	of	the	next	Annual	General	

Meeting of the Company and fifteen months from the date of the passing of this resolution, to make allotments of equity securities 

(as	construed	in	accordance	with	section	560	of	the	Act)	for	cash	pursuant	to	the	authority	that	was	conferred	on	the	directors	by	

Resolution	7	above	as	if	section	561	of	the	Act	did	not	apply	to	any	such	allotment,	such	power	being	limited	to	the	allotment	of	

equity	securities:

 (a)  in connection with an issue or offer by way of rights in favour of holders of equity securities and of any other person entitled to 

participate in such issue or offering where the equity securities respectively attributable to the interests of such holders and persons 

are proportionate (as nearly as may be) to the respective number of equity securities held or deemed to be held by them on the 

record date of such allotment or are otherwise in accordance with their respective entitlements, subject only to such exclusions or 

other arrangements as the directors may deem fit to deal with fractional entitlements or problems arising under the laws of any 

overseas territory or the requirements of any regulatory authority or any stock exchange; and
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	 	(b)		otherwise	than	pursuant	to	paragraph	(a)	above,	up	to	an	aggregate	nominal	amount	of	£179,063.10;	

    save that the Company may, before expiry of that authority, make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity 

securities to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot equity securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as  

if such authority had not expired. (Please see Note 14).

9.			To	consider	and,	if	thought	fit,	to	pass	the	following	resolution	as	a	Special	Resolution:	that	the	Company	be	and	is	hereby	generally	

and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 701 of the Act to make one or more market purchases (as defined in 

section	693(4)	of	the	said	Act)	of	ordinary	shares	of	10p	each	in	the	capital	of	the	Company	upon	such	terms	and	in	such	manner	as	

the	directors	of	the	Company	shall	determine	provided	that:

	 	(a)			the	maximum	number	of	ordinary	shares	hereby	authorised	to	be	purchased	is	3,581,262	(representing	approximately	10	per	cent.	

of the Company's issued ordinary share capital at the date of the Notice of this Meeting);

  (b)  the minimum price which may be paid for an ordinary share is 10p per share (excluding expenses) being the nominal amount 

thereof;

  (c)  the maximum price (excluding expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share shall be 5 per cent. above the average of the 

middle market quotation of an ordinary share of the Company taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the 

five business days immediately preceding the date on which the purchase is made;

  (d)  the authority hereby conferred shall (unless previously renewed or revoked) expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the next Annual 

General	Meeting	of	the	Company	and	the	date	which	is	fifteen	months	after	the	date	on	which	this	resolution	is	passed;	and

  (e)  the Company may make a contract or contracts to purchase ordinary shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to the 

expiry of such authority which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority, and may make a purchase 

of ordinary shares in pursuance of any such contract or contracts as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired. (Please see 

Note 15).

10.		To	consider	and,	if	thought	fit,	to	pass	the	following	resolution	as	a	Special	Resolution:	that	a	general	meeting	of	the	Company,	other	than	an	
annual	general	meeting,	may	be	called	on	not	less	than	14	clear	days’	notice.	(Please	see	Note	16).

By	order	of	the	Board	 Registered	Office	 Registered	in	England	and	Wales
	 Dukes	Court	 Number	03234176
S Freeman Duke Street     
Secretary Woking, Surrey
12th	February	2010	 GU21	5BH

Notes

1.	 	Pursuant	to	Regulation	41	of	the	Uncertificated	Securities	Regulations	2001,	the	time	by	which	a	person	must	be	entered	in	the	register	

of	members	in	order	to	have	the	right	to	attend	or	vote	at	the	Annual	General	Meeting	is	6.00	p.m.	on	25th	April	2010.	If	the	meeting	

is adjourned, the time by which a person must be entered on the register of members in order to have the right to attend or vote at the 

adjourned	meeting	is	6.00	p.m.	on	the	day	two	days	prior	to	the	adjourned	meeting.	Changes	to	entries	on	the	register	of	members	

after the relevant time will be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting. 

2.  A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to exercise all or any of such member’s 

rights	to	attend,	speak	and	vote	on	behalf	of	the	member	at	the	Annual	General	Meeting.	A	proxy	need	not	be	a	member	of	the	

Company. To be valid a proxy form must be lodged with the Company’s registrars, Equiniti Limited, not later than 48 hours before the 

time fixed for the meeting. The appointment of a proxy does not preclude a member from attending the meeting and voting in person, 

in which case any votes of the proxy will be superseded. Members may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed 

to exercise rights attached to different shares. Members may not appoint more than one proxy to exercise rights attached to any one 

share.

3.	 	A	person	to	whom	this	notice	is	sent	who	is	a	person	nominated	under	section	146	of	the	Companies	Act	2006	to	enjoy	information	

rights	(“a	Nominated	Person”)	may,	under	an	agreement	between	himself/herself	and	the	shareholder	by	whom	he/she	was	nominated,	

have	the	right	to	be	appointed	(or	to	have	someone	else	appointed)	as	a	proxy	for	the	Annual	General	Meeting.	If	a	Nominated	Person	

has no such proxy appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may under any such agreement have a right to give 

Notice of Annual General Meeting Fidessa group plc continued
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instructions to the shareholder as to the exercise of voting rights. The statements of the rights of shareholders in relation to the 

appointment of proxies in note 2 above do not apply to Nominated Persons. The rights described in that note may only be exercised by 

shareholders of the Company. 

4.  Any corporate member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a 

member provided that they do not do so in relation to the same shares.

5.	 	Under	section	319A	of	the	Companies	Act	2006,	a	member	attending	the	meeting	has	the	right	to	ask	questions	in	relation	to	the	

business of the meeting. The Company must cause to be answered any such question relating to the business being dealt with at the 

meeting but no such answer need be given if (i) to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the 

disclosure of confidential information (ii) the answer has already been given on a website in the form of an answer to a question or (iii) 

it is undesirable in the interests of the Company of the good order of the meeting that the question be answered. 

6.	 	Copies	of	the	contracts	of	service	between	the	directors	and	the	Company,	the	letters	of	appointment	of	the	non-executive	directors	

and the directors’ indemnities are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during each business day and will be 

available	for	inspection	at	One	Old	Jewry,	London	for	15	minutes	prior	to	and	during	the	Annual	General	Meeting.	The	register	of	

interests of directors and their families in the shares of the Company will be available for inspection at the commencement of, and 

during,	the	Annual	General	Meeting.

7.  As at 11th February 2010 being the last business day prior to the publication of this notice, the Company's issued share capital 

consisted	of	35,812,623	ordinary	shares	carrying	one	vote	each.	The	total	voting	rights	in	the	Company	as	at	11th	February	2010	are	

therefore	35,812,623.

8.	 	CREST	members	who	wish	to	appoint	a	proxy	or	proxies	through	the	CREST	electronic	proxy	appointment	service	may	do	so	by	using	

the	procedures	described	in	the	CREST	Manual.	CREST	Personal	Members	or	other	CREST	sponsored	members,	and	those	CREST	

members	who	have	appointed	a	service	provider(s),	should	refer	to	their	CREST	sponsor	or	voting	service	provider(s)	who	will	be	able	to	

take the appropriate action on their behalf.

9.	 	In	order	for	a	proxy	appointment	or	instruction	made	using	the	CREST	service	to	be	valid,	the	appropriate	CREST	message	(a	“CREST	

Proxy	Instruction”)	must	be	properly	authenticated	in	accordance	with	Euroclear	UK	&	Ireland	Limited's	specifications,	and	must	contain	

the	information	required	for	such	instruction,	as	described	in	the	CREST	Manual	(available	via	www.euroclear.com/CREST).	The	

message, regardless of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or is an amendment to the instruction given to a previously 

appointed	proxy	must,	in	order	to	be	valid,	be	transmitted	so	as	to	be	received	by	the	issuer's	agent	(IDRA19)	by	1.30	p.m.	on	25th	

April 2010. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the time stamp applied to the message 

by	the	CREST	Application	Host)	from	which	the	issuer's	agent	is	able	to	retrieve	the	message	by	enquiry	to	CREST	in	the	manner	

prescribed	by	CREST.	After	this	time	any	change	of	instructions	to	proxies	appointed	through	CREST	should	be	communicated	to	the	

appointee through other means. 

10.		CREST	members	and,	where	applicable,	their	CREST	sponsors,	or	voting	service	providers	should	note	that	Euroclear	UK	&	Ireland	

Limited	does	not	make	available	special	procedures	in	CREST	for	any	particular	message.	Normal	system	timings	and	limitations	will,	

therefore,	apply	in	relation	to	the	input	of	CREST	Proxy	Instructions.	It	is	the	responsibility	of	the	CREST	member	concerned	to	take	(or,	

if	the	CREST	member	is	a	CREST	personal	member,	or	sponsored	member,	or	has	appointed	a	voting	service	provider,	to	procure	that	

his	CREST	sponsor	or	voting	service	provider(s)	take(s))	such	action	as	shall	be	necessary	to	ensure	that	the	a	message	is	transmitted	by	

means	of	the	CREST	system	by	any	particular	time.	In	this	connection,	CREST	members	and,	where	applicable,	their	CREST	sponsors	or	

voting	system	providers	are	referred,	in	particular,	to	those	sections	of	the	CREST	Manual	concerning	practical	limitations	of	the	CREST	

system and timings. 

11.		The	Company	may	treat	as	invalid	a	CREST	Proxy	Instruction	in	the	circumstances	set	out	in	Regulation	35(5)(a)	of	the	Uncertificated	

Securities	Regulations	2001.	

12.		A	copy	of	this	notice	and	other	information	required	by	section	311A	of	the	Companies	Act	2006	can	be	found	on	the	group's	

website www.fidessa.com.
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13.		Directors'	authority	to	allot	securities.	Section	551	Companies	Act	2006:	this	Ordinary	Resolution,	if	approved,	will	authorise	the	

directors	to	(i)	allot	shares	with	an	aggregate	nominal	amount	of	up	to	£1,193,634.70,	(representing	33.33%	of	the	issued	share	

capital at 12th February 2010); and (ii) allot further shares, including the shares referred to in paragraph (b) of resolution 7 with an 

aggregate	nominal	amount	of	up	to	£2,387,269.40	(representing	66.66%	of	the	issued	share	capital	at	12th	February	2010),	in	

connection with a rights issue in favour of ordinary shareholders; for a period of fifteen months or, if earlier, until the end of the 2011 

Annual	General	Meeting.	This	authority	succeeds	that	granted	in	2009	under	section	80	of	the	Companies	Act	1985	(which	has	now	

been	superseded	by	the	Companies	Act	2006).	

  The directors have no current intention to allot shares except in connection with employee share incentive schemes. However, it is 

considered	prudent	to	maintain	the	flexibility	that	this	authority	provides.	If	they	do	exercise	the	authority,	the	directors	intend	to	follow	

emerging	best	practice	as	regards	its	use	as	recommended	by	the	Association	of	British	Insurers.	

14.		Disapplication	of	pre-emption	rights.	Under	Section	561(1)	of	the	Companies	Act	2006,	this	Special	Resolution	will,	if	approved,	

partially	disapply	the	statutory	pre-emption	rights	for	a	period	of	fifteen	months	or,	if	earlier,	until	the	end	of	the	2011	Annual	General	

Meeting, in order to provide the directors with a limited power to issue equity securities for cash otherwise than pro rata to ordinary 

shareholders,	which	following	the	introduction	of	the	Companies	(Acquisition	of	Own	Shares)	(Treasury	Shares)	Regulations	2003	now	

extends	to	the	sale	of	shares	from	treasury.	The	existing	power	to	this	effect	will	expire	at	the	end	of	this	year’s	Annual	General	

Meeting.	The	resolution	conforms	with	the	guidelines	of	the	Investment	Committee	of	the	Association	of	British	Insurers	and	the	

National Association of Pension Funds and, if approved, will maintain the flexibility for the Company to allot shares for cash either by 

way	of	a	rights	issue	or	up	to	a	maximum	aggregate	nominal	amount	of	£176,063.10,	representing	5%	of	the	issued	share	capital	at	

the date of the Notice of this Meeting. The directors intend to renew this authority annually. 

15.		Authority	to	purchase	own	shares.	The	existing	power	to	this	effect	will	expire	at	the	end	of	this	year’s	Annual	General	Meeting.	The	

ordinary	shares	purchased	pursuant	to	this	Special	Resolution	will	be	either	cancelled	on	buy-back	or	held	in	treasury.	No	more	than	

10% of the issued share capital may be held in treasury. The directors only intend to exercise this power if they believe that it would 

increase earnings per share and would be in the best interests of shareholders generally, or in the case of creation of treasury shares, 

that to do so would be in the interests of shareholders generally.

16.		Notice	of	general	meetings.	Changes	made	to	the	Act	by	the	Companies	(Shareholders’	Rights)	Regulations	2009	(the	“Shareholders’	

Rights	Regulations”)	increase	the	notice	period	required	for	general	meetings	of	the	Company	to	21	days	unless	shareholders	approve	

a shorter notice period, which cannot, however, be less than 14 clear days. Annual general meetings will continue to be held on at 

least 21 clear days’ notice.

	 	Before	the	coming	into	force	of	the	Shareholders’	Rights	Regulations	on	3	August	2009,	the	Company	was	able	to	call	general	

meetings	other	than	an	annual	general	meeting	on	14	clear	days’	notice	without	obtaining	such	shareholder	approval.	In	order	to	

preserve	this	ability,	Resolution	10	seeks	such	approval.	If	given,	the	approval	will	be	effective	until	the	Company’s	next	annual	general	

meeting, when it is intended that a similar resolution will be proposed.

  Notwithstanding the ability to call a general meeting of the Company on 14 clear days' notice the Company will give as much notice 

as is practicable when calling a general meeting, consistent with the relevant circumstances, in order to give shareholders adequate 

time to consider their voting decision. 

Notice of Annual General Meeting Fidessa group plc continued
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I/We	the	undersigned,	being	a	member	/	members	of	Fidessa	group	plc	(hereinafter	called	“the	Company”),	hereby	appoint	the	Chairman	of	the	

Meeting or ………………………………………………………………… as my/our proxy to attend, vote and speak on my/our behalf at the Annual 

General	Meeting	of	the	Company,	to	be	held	on	27th	April	2010	at	1.30	p.m.	and	at	any	adjournment	thereof.

I/We	direct	my/our	proxy	to	vote	on	the	resolutions	as	set	out	in	the	Notice	convening	the	Annual	General	Meeting	as	follows:-

Resolutions For Against Abstain

	 1		Receive	the	Directors’	Report	and Financial Statements   

	 2		Approve	the	Directors’	Remuneration	Report	   

	 3		Re-elect	Mr	A	Malpass	as	a	director	   

	 4		Re-elect	Mr	R	Mackintosh	as	a	director	   

	 5		Re-appoint	KPMG	Audit	Plc	as	auditors		   

	 6			To	authorise	the	Directors	to	agree	the	remuneration	of	the	auditors   

 7  Authorise the Directors to allot shares   

 8  Disapply the statutory pre-emption rights   

 9 Approve the purchase and cancellation of up to 10% of the issued ordinary share capital    

 10  Allow meetings other than annual general meetings    

  to be called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice

Signed this ………………………….............................................. day of ……………………………………………….................................. 2010

Member’s name …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….................................
(in block letters)

Member’s signature ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...................................

Address ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..................................

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………................................

  Please tick here if this proxy appointment is one of multiple appointments being made. For the appointment of more than one proxy please refer 

to note 3 below.

Notes on completing the Form of Proxy
1. Please complete this form legibly in block capitals.

2.	 	To	appoint	a	person(s)	other	than	the	Chairman	as	your	proxy,	insert	the	name	of	the	proxy	or	proxies	desired	and	delete	the	words	“the	Chairman	of	the	Meeting”.	

3.	 	As	a	member	of	the	Company	you	are	entitled	to	appoint	a	proxy	to	exercise	all	or	any	of	your	rights	to	attend,	speak	and	vote	on	your	behalf	at	the	Annual	General	
Meeting. You may appoint more than one proxy by contacting the Company’s registrars, Equiniti Limited, provided each proxy is appointed to exercise rights attached 
to	different	shares.	Please	indicate	how	you	want	your	proxy	to	vote	by	marking	the	appropriate	box	opposite	each	resolution.	If	none	of	the	boxes	are	marked,	your	
proxy may vote or abstain as he/she thinks fit. The appointment of a proxy does not preclude a member from attending and voting at the meeting in person. 

4.	 	If	you	mark	the	Abstain	box	for	a	particular	item,	you	are	abstaining	from	voting	on	that	resolution.	An	abstention	is	not	a	vote	in	law	and	will	not	be	counted	in	the	
votes	“For”	or	“Against”.

5.  This form of proxy must be signed by the appointer or his/her attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointer is a corporation it must be executed under its 
common seal or, be signed by an officer or attorney duly authorised by the corporation.

6.	 	In	the	case	of	joint	holders	only	one	needs	to	sign	the	form.	The	vote	of	the	senior	holder	who	tenders	a	vote,	whether	in	person	or	by	proxy,	will	be	accepted	to	the	
exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders. Seniority will be determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders stand in the register of members.

7.  To be valid, a proxy form and the power or other authority under which it has been executed, (or a copy of such power or authority certified notarially), must be 
lodged	with	the	Company’s	registrars,	Equiniti	Limited,	Aspect	House,	Spencer	Road,	Lancing,	West	Sussex,	BN99	6ZR	by	1.30	p.m.	on	25th	April	2010.

Form of proxy Fidessa group plc
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15th February 2010 

2009 annual results announced

24th March 2010

2009	Annual	Report	circulated

29th March 2010

Second 2009 interim dividend paid

27th April 2010

Annual	General	Meeting

August 2010

2010 interim results announced

October 2010

2010 interim dividend paid

February 2011

2010 annual results announced

Registered office

Dukes Court
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Woking, Surrey 

GU21	5BH

England

Registrar

Equiniti Limited 
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Lancing
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England
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